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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K
(Mark One)

p  ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended March 29, 2014
or

0  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF

1934
Commission File Number: 001-13057
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware 13-2622036
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
650 Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10022
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
(212) 318-7000
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:
Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Class A Common Stock, $.01 par value New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢iie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%cB#turities Act. Yes p Noo
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ord)®f the Act. Yes o Nop

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @ filed all reports required to be filed by Secti or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preagdi@ months (or for such shorter period that thgisteant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has bedsestito such filing requirements for the past 89« Yes p Noo

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lndsnitted electronically and posted on its corpokieb site, if any,
every Interactive Data File required to be subrdit@d posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation(8282.405 of this
chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or fohsiwrter period that the registrant was requioeslibmit and post such
files). Yes p Noo

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquéllers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (82B% of this
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not batained, to the best of registrant's knowledgejéfinitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by referendeairt Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendment testhbrm 10-K. o]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant iarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See the definitions of "largeederated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smalleporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer p Accelerated filer o
Non-accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smalegorting company) Smaller reporting company o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act) Yes o Nop

The aggregate market value of the registrant'sngodommon stock held by non-affiliates of the regist was approximately
$9,952,987,112 as of September 27, 2013, the lashéss day of the registrant's most recently ceteglsecond fiscal quarter based on
the closing price of the common stock on the NewkY&tock Exchange.

At May 9, 2014, 61,846,655 shares of the regissadlass A common stock, $.01 par value and 262881shares of the registrant's
Class B common stock, $.01 par value were outstgndi

Part 11l incorporates information from certain ports of the registrant's definitive proxy statemtnbe filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission within 120 days after the figear end of March 29, 2014.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Various statements in this Form 10-K or incorpadaby reference into this Form 10-K, in future fd® by us with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"quinpress releases, and in oral statements mantetiimee to time by us or on
our behalf constitute "forward-looking statementgthin the meaning of the Private Securities Litiga Reform Act of 1995.
Forward-looking statements are based on currerga@apons and are indicated by words or phrasds asiCanticipate,” "estimate,"
"expect,” "project,” "we believe," "is or remainptimistic,” "currently envisions," and similar wa@r phrases and involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other facidieh may cause actual results, performance, bieaements to be materially
different from the future results, performanceachievements expressed in or implied by such fald@oking statements. These
risks, uncertainties, and other factors includegmagnothers:

« the loss of key personnel, including Mr. Ralph teay

e our ability to successfully implement our antidigéh growth strategies and to capitalize on our sipming initiatives
in certain regions and merchandise categories;

« our ability to secure our facilities and systems #ose of our third-party service providers framong other things,
cybersecurity breaches, acts of vandalism, compirtgses, or similar Internet or email events;

e our ability to continue to maintain our brand ireaand reputation and protect our trademarks;

» the impact of global economic conditions on us, customers, our suppliers, and our vendors, anduorability and
their ability to access sources of liquidity;

» the impact of the volatile state of the global mmmy or consumer preferences on purchases of prertifastyle
products that we offer for sale and our ability ftwecast consumer demand, which could result iruidddup of
inventory;

« changes in the competitive marketplace, includihg introduction of new products or pricing chand®s our
competitors, and consolidations, liquidations, megtirings, and other ownership changes in thél iatiustry;

e a variety of legal, regulatory, tax, political, careconomic risks, including risks related to thepdmation and
exportation of products, tariffs, and other traderiers which our international operations are scbjo and other risks
associated with our international operations, saglkompliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practicesdkasiolations of
other anti-bribery and corruption laws prohibitimgproper payments, and the burdens of complying wivariety of
foreign laws and regulations, including tax lawside and labor restrictions, and related laws thay reduce the
flexibility of our business;

< our ability to continue to expand or grow our lmesis internationally, and the impact of relatechges in our customer,
channel, and geographic sales mix as a result;

e our exposure to domestic and foreign currencytdlations and risks associated with increases inctiss of raw
materials, transportation, and labor;

e changes to our effective tax rates in future years
« changes in our relationships with department stastomers and licensing partners;

« our efforts to improve the efficiency of our dibtition system and to continue to enhance and degoar global
information technology systems;

e ourintention to introduce new products or entéo ior renew alliances and exclusive relationships;

e our ability to access sources of liquidity to p®s for our cash needs, including our debt oblagaj payment of
dividends, capital expenditures, and potential refpase of our Class A common stock;

e our ability to open new retail stores, concessstiops, and e-commerce sites in an effort to expamddirect-
to-consumer presence;
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« our ability to make certain strategic acquisitiafiselected licenses held by our licensees ancesstully integrate the
acquired businesses into our existing operations;

e our ability to maintain our credit profile andirags within the financial community;
» the potential impact on our operations and onomstomers resulting from natural or man-made disasand

» the impact to our business of events of unrestiastdbility that are currently taking place inteém parts of the world,
as well as from any terrorist action, retaliatiand the threat of further action or retaliation.

These forward-looking statements are based lamyelpur expectations and judgments and are sulgeztriumber of risks
and uncertainties, many of which are unforeseeatdebeyond our control. A detailed discussion ghi§icant risk factors that have
the potential to cause our actual results to diffieterially from our expectations is described &P of this Form 10-K under the
heading of "Risk Factors." We undertake no oblmatio publicly update or revise any forward-lookisigtements, whether as a
result of new information, future events, or othisey

WEBSITE ACCESS TO COMPANY REPORTS AND OTHER INFORMA TION

Our investor website is http://investor.ralphlaucem. We were incorporated in June 1997 under dhes lof the State of
Delaware. Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quayte#ports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form &# amendments to
those reports filed with or furnished to the SE@spant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of theuBties Exchange Act of 1934 are
available at our investor website under the capt®BC Filings" promptly after we electronicallydisuch materials with or furnish
such materials to the SEC. Information relatingctoporate governance at Ralph Lauren Corporatiociuding our Corporate
Governance Policies, our Code of Business CondudtEthics for all directors, officers, and emplayeeur Code of Ethics for
Principal Executive Officers and Senior Financidfié@rs, and information concerning our directoBymmittees of the Board,
including Committee charters, and transactionsatpR Lauren Corporation securities by directors exetutive officers is available
at our website under the captions "Corporate Garera" and "SEC Filings." Paper copies of thesegdiand corporate governance
documents are available to stockholders withoutrgghdpy written request to Investor Relations, Rdlgliren Corporation, 625
Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10022.

In this Form 10-K, references to "Ralph Lauren,ur&elves,” "we," "our," "us," and the "Company"aefo Ralph Lauren
Corporation and its subsidiaries ("RLC"), unless tlontext indicates otherwise. Due to the collatdeezand ongoing nature of our
relationships with our licensees, such licenseessametimes referred to in this Form 10-K as "lgeg alliances." Our fiscal year
ends on the Saturday closest to March 31. All exfees to "Fiscal 2015" represent the 52-week figeat ending March 28, 2015.
All references to "Fiscal 2014" represent the 52kviscal year ended March 29, 2014. All referertoe$-iscal 2013" represent the
52-week fiscal year ended March 30, 2013. All refees to "Fiscal 2012" represent the 52-week figeat ended March 31, 2012.
All references to "Fiscal 2011" represent the 52¥fiscal year ended April 2, 2011.

PART |
ltem 1. Business.

General

Founded in 1967 by Mr. Ralph Lauren, we are a dltdzader in the design, marketing, and distributddrpremium lifestyle
products, including men's, women's, and childrepparel, accessories, fragrances, and home fungishiOur long-standing
reputation and distinctive image have been congigteleveloped across an expanding number of ptsdbecands, sales channels,
and international markets. We believe that our glabach, breadth of product offerings, and muihmnel distribution are unique
among luxury and apparel companies.

We operate in three distinct but integrated segmaéftholesale, Retail, and Licensing. Our Wholesrisiness, representing
approximately 47% of our Fiscal 2014 net revenaensists of sales made principally to major depantnstores and specialty stores
around the world. Our Retail business, represergiogroximately 51% of our Fiscal 2014 net revenwesisists of sales made
directly to consumers through our retail storesuadbthe world; through concession-based shop-wahps located primarily in
Asia, Australia, and Europe; and through our reeadommerce channel in North America, Europe, amsth.AOur Licensing
business, representing approximately 2% of ouraFig014 net revenues, consists of royalty-baseahgaments under which we
license to unrelated third parties the right to rape retail stores and/or to use our various tragksnin connection with the
manufacture and sale of designated products, suapparel, eyewear, and fragrances, in specifiedrgphic areas for
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specified periods. Approximately 36% of our Fis28ll4 net revenues were earned in internationabnegoutside of the U.S. See
Note 22 to the accompanying audited consolidateahfiial statements for a summary of net revenuesfyrtable segment and by
geographic location.

Over the past five fiscal years, our sales havevgroy 50% to $7.450 billion in Fiscal 2014 from $49 billion in the fiscal
year ended April 3, 2010. This growth has beenbattable to both our acquisitions and organic glowtde have diversified our
business by channels of distribution, price paamigl target consumer, as well as by geography. @bagreach is extensive, with
Ralph Lauren-branded merchandise available thraughwholesale distribution channels at over 11,8@ferent retail locations
worldwide. We also sell directly to customers thghaut the world via our 433 retail stores, our 808cession-based shop-within-
shops, and our eight e-commerce sites. In additoaur directly-operated stores and shops, ournat®nal licensing partners
operate 64 Ralph Lauren Stores, 9 Ralph Laurenessimn shops, and 106 Club Monaco stores and shops.

We continue to invest in our business. In the past fiscal years, we have invested approximately5%0 billion for
acquisitions and capital improvements, primarilpdad through strong operating cash flow. We intendontinue to execute our
long-term strategy, which includes expanding owspnce internationally, extending our direct-tostomer reach, expanding our
accessories and other product and brand offerargsjnvesting in our operational infrastructuree S@bjectives and Opportunities
for further discussion of our long-term strategy.

We have been controlled by the Lauren family sitheefounding of our Company. As of March 29, 204, Ralph Lauren,
or entities controlled by the Lauren family, helobeoximately 81% of the voting power of the outstimy common stock of the
Company.

Seasonality of Business

Our business is typically affected by seasonaldsemith higher levels of wholesale sales in owose and fourth quarters
and higher retail sales in our second and thirdtgte These trends result primarily from the tighof seasonal wholesale shipments
and key vacation travel, back-to-school, and hglistaopping periods in our Retail segment. As altedigrowth and other changes
in our business, along with changes in consumendipg patterns and the macroeconomic environmestprital quarterly
operating trends and working capital requiremeray mot be indicative of our future performanceattdition, fluctuations in sales,
operating income, and cash flows in any fiscal tpramay be affected by other events affecting ret@ies, such as changes in
weather patterns.

Working capital requirements vary throughout thary&orking capital requirements typically increaseing the first half of
the fiscal year as inventory builds to support pglaibping/selling periods and, accordingly, typigalecrease during the second half
of the fiscal year as inventory is shipped/soldstCprovided by operating activities is typicallgher in the second half of the fiscal
year due to reduced working capital requirements;duhat period.

Objectives and Opportunities

Our core strengths include a portfolio of globatmpium lifestyle brands, a proven ability to devebopl extend our brands
distributed through multiple channels in global keds, a disciplined investment philosophy suppobga@ strong balance sheet, and
an experienced management team. Despite the varisks and uncertainties associated with the ctrgiabal economic
environment, as discussed further in Item 7Maflagement's Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdition and Results of
Operations — Current Trends and Outldokie believe our core strengths will allow us ttgportunity to execute our strategy for
long-term sustainable growth in revenue, net inccane operating cash flow.

As our business has grown, our portfolio mix anaircontrol has evolved from primarily that of amaéorand U.S.-centric
menswear wholesaler with a broad array of prodadt geographic licenses, to that of a portfolioifestyle brands with a "direct
control" model over most of our brands, products] aternational territories. We believe that thi®ader and better-diversified
portfolio mix positions us for ongoing growth, allmg us to offer our customers a range of prodymti€e points, and channels of
distribution. We operate our retail business usingomni-channel retailing strategy to deliver andeas and integrated shopping
experience to our customers. We believe that @ and global operations favorably position usatetadvantage of synergies in
design, sourcing, and distribution across our diffie businesses.
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While balancing our key long-term strategic objeesi with our near-term priorities, we intend to e to pursue select
opportunities for growth during the course of Fis2@15 and beyond. These opportunities and comdirioeestment initiatives
include:

* International Growth;

* Direct-to-Consumer Growth;

¢ Product Innovation and Brand Extension Growth;

¢ Investment in Operational Infrastructure;

¢ Global Talent Development and Management; and

e Strong Financial Management and Cash Flow Reinverst.

Recent Developments

Australia and New Zealand Licensed Operations Acsjtiobn

In July 2013, in connection with the transitiontbé Ralph Lauren-branded apparel and accessorgsess in Australia and
New Zealand (the "Australia and New Zealand Bust)ebBom a licensed to a wholly-owned operation, agguired certain net
assets from Oroton Group/PRL Australia ("Orotont)d@xchange for an aggregate payment of approxign&eb million (the
"Australia and New Zealand Licensed Operations Agitjon"). Oroton was our licensee for the Austiahnd New Zealand
Business. The operating results of the acquirethbas have been consolidated in our operatingteelsaginning on July 1, 2013.

Chaps Menswear License Acquisition

In April 2013, in connection with the transition thie North American Chaps-branded men's sportsiuesiness (the "Chaps
Menswear Business") from a licensed to a wholly-esvioperation, we entered into an agreement with \Waenaco Group, Inc.
("Warnaco"), a subsidiary of PVH Corp., to acquigztain net assets in exchange for an aggregatmerayof approximately $18
million (the "Chaps Menswear License AcquisitiorMarnaco was our licensee for the Chaps MensweamBss. The operating
results of the Chaps Menswear Business have bemolaated in our operating results beginning omilA®, 2013.

Rugby Closure Plan

In October 2012, we approved a plan to wind-down Rugby brand retail operations (the "Rugby ClosBtan"). This
decision was primarily based on the results of ralysis of the brand concept, as well as an oppitytto reallocate our resources
related to these operations to support other high business opportunities and initiatives. Immoection with the Rugby Closure
Plan, 13 of our 14 global freestanding Rugby st@med our related domestic e-commerce site locatdRugby.com were closed
during the second half of Fiscal 2013. The one irimg Rugby store was closed during Fiscal 2014 Rugby Closure Plan also
resulted in a reduction in our workforce of appmately 160 employees. See Notes 11 and 12 to owsolidated financial
statements for detailed discussions of impairmemnt @estructuring charges recorded during Fiscal32@lconnection with the
Rugby Closure Plan.

Discontinuance of American Living at JCPenney
During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2012, we dedidalong with our wholesale partner J.C. Penney |@om, Inc.
("JCPenney"), to discontinue the majority of theducts sold under the American Living brand credtecand exclusively sold to

JCPenney, effective for the Fall 2012 wholesaléngekeason. The discontinuance of these Ameridgimd. product lines did not
have a material impact on our consolidated or segnesults.

Our Brands and Products

Since 1967, our distinctive brand image has beesistently developed across an expanding numbproafucts, price tiers,
and markets. Our products, which include appacelessories, and fragrance collections for men aoden, as well as
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childrenswear and home furnishings, comprise onh@fvorld's most widely recognized families of somer brands. Reflecting a
distinctive American perspective, we have beemaovator in aspirational lifestyle branding andidet that, under the direction of
internationally renowned designer Mr. Ralph Laurga,have had a considerable influence on the waplpalress and the way that
fashion is advertised throughout the world.

We combine consumer insight with our design, mamgetand imaging skills to offer, along with oucdinsing alliances, broad
lifestyle product collections with a unified vision

e Apparel— Products include extensive collections of memtanen's, and children's clothing;

e Accessories— Products encompass a broad range, including fsntveyewear, watches, fine jewelry, hats, beftd, a
leathergoods, including handbags and luggage;

e« Home— Coordinated home products include bedding and paiducts, furniture, fabric and wallpaper, ligigti paint,
tabletop, and giftware; and

e Fragrance— Fragrance products are sold under our Big Powynd&hce, Midnight Romance, Polo, Lauren, Safari,
Ralph, Black Label, and Purple Label brands, amaihgrs.

Our lifestyle brand image is reinforced by our egand concession shop-within-shops, our wholeselenels of distribution,
and our e-commerce sites, including our North Ao®riRalph Lauren and Club Monaco e-commerce ste$;our Ralph Lauren
e-commerce sites in Europe, Japan, and South Korea.

Ralph Lauren Women's Collection

Each runway season, Ralph Lauren's most dramagionviof women's fashion is presented to the wofFidheless and
sophisticated, Women's Collection reflects Ralpbrka's definitive design philosophy in its juxtapiosis of feminine glamour with
fine tailoring once found only in menswear. Frongeisite hand-embroidered evening gowns worn onréldecarpet to luxurious
hand-finished cashmere tweed suitings to chic gmt@denim inspired by rustic Americana, we belida bur Women's Collection is
the epitome of modern, rarefied fashion. Ralph eauWomen's Collection is available in Ralph Laus&sres around the world, in
an exclusive selection of fine specialty stores| anline at our Ralph Lauren e-commerce sitesyitin RalphLauren.com.

Ralph Lauren Purple Label

In the time-honored tradition of bespoke clothimgl daberdashery, Ralph Lauren Purple Label presetasel of sartorial
craftsmanship we believe to be unparalleled toRa§ined suitings are hand-tailored from a selectibfine fabrics. Custom-tailored
Made-to-Measure suits are hand-constructed byaagitrained in the art of handmade clothing. Saichied sportswear and dandy-
inspired dress furnishings are designed with migtic attention to every detail. Dedicated to thghbst level of quality and
elegance, Ralph Lauren Purple Label is the ultireaf@ession of luxury for the modern gentlemanpRalauren Purple Label also
offers benchmade footwear and made-to-order dnassshings, accessories, and luggage, as well ad heonogramming and
custom engraving services. Ralph Lauren Purple lLliatsvailable in Ralph Lauren stores around theldyan an exclusive selection
of fine specialty stores, and online at our Ralplurlen e-commerce sites, including RalphLauren.com.

Accessories

Ralph Lauren accessories for men and women refieadistinctive design philosophies known throughte world of Ralph
Lauren and represent a continuous dedication tedcgble craftsmanship and iconic beauty. Ralphdraaccessories for women
capture a wide array of timeless styles, from angleus handmade alligator Ricky Bag that takesaid2 hours to craft to
weathered canvas saddle bags with authentic e@arest@rdware to vintage luggage-inspired handblagisrecall the golden age of
travel. Ralph Lauren's signature motifs can be dotlmoughout — from jockey-print scarves, ridingobowith equestrian hardware,
and vintage aviator sunglasses to striking diamamtming shoes, romantic ruffled scarves, and aetigne-of-a-kind belts and
jewelry. Ralph Lauren accessories and dress fumgshare a man's most refined finishing touch. ic@nd innovative neckties,
which launched the Polo brand in 1967, are wovemfthe finest silks. Footwear ranges from velvehogyammed slippers and
benchmade dress shoes to hand-sewn penny loafdrsugiged suede and shearling duck boots. Handdrdftegage and
leathergoods combine handsome sophistication witictfonality. Each accessory is meticulously desibto complement Ralph
Lauren's menswear collections — from vintage-iregpieyewear and Savile Row-inspired haberdashesleék silver engraved cuff
links and engine-turned belt buckles to luxe caskrsearves and hand-sewn shearling gloves. Ralpteha
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accessories are available in Ralph Lauren stomsdrthe world, select specialty stores, and ordineur Ralph Lauren e-commerce
sites, including RalphLauren.com.

Ralph Lauren Watches

In 2008, Ralph Lauren launched his premier colectdf timepieces in partnership with internatiopaiénowned luxury
group Compagnie Financiére Richemont SA ("Richerforithe three pillar collections — the iconic Ralphuren Stirrup, the
refined Ralph Lauren Slim Classique, and the Rdlaluren Sporting, which features classic sport, motive, and safari
inspirations — embody Ralph Lauren's passion fgueotable quality and exquisite design. Ralph Lauirepieces feature the
finest in Swiss Made manufacture movements and swrttee world's most luxurious materials — from g@unlatinum and polished
18-carat gold cases to enamel dials, traditiondloghé patterns, and full-cut diamonds. Each y&alph Lauren Watches debuts
new designs that continue this legacy of autherigh-end watchmaking. Ralph Lauren Watches arélabla at select Ralph
Lauren stores and flagship locations around thédyand the finest watch retailers.

Ralph Lauren Fine Jewelry

In 2010, Ralph Lauren Watch & Jewelry Co. introdlicee premier collections of Ralph Lauren Fine Jewénspired by
brilliance, movement, and the alluring traditionfisfe jewelry, this debut unveiled several collens, including the Ralph Lauren
Diamond Link Collection, the Ralph Lauren Equestr@2ollection, and the Ralph Lauren Chunky Chaine€tion — all capturing
the glamour and craftsmanship of Ralph Lauren'stiwssirious designs. The fine jewelry collectiomelude elegantly sgiavé
diamond links, classic equestrian motifs stylizadshimmering diamonds, chic chunky chains, and rtimachandelier earrings.
Each piece is handcrafted using precious mateaats intricate finishing techniques, highlightinguaique beauty and graceful
silhouette that is signature Ralph Lauren. Ralptrea Fine Jewelry is available in select Ralph eawstores and flagship locations
around the world.

Ralph Lauren Women's Black Label

Black Label is the essence of sleek, modern saphigtn for women. Proportions are chic and dramatanging from
menswear-inspired silhouettes to shimmering andri@® eveningwear. Fabrics are ultra-luxe and tetficolor statements are rich
and striking, and racy technical references infinse glamorous collection with a bold edge. Blacbekl is offered in select Ralph
Lauren stores around the world, designer boutigfires,specialty stores, better department stoned,amline at our Ralph Lauren
e-commerce sites, including RalphLauren.com.

Ralph Lauren Men's Black Label

With a sharp, modern attitude, Ralph Lauren Blaekd! is the essence of sophisticated dressing &. i@lassic suitings
feature razor-sharp tailoring and dramatically lsdhouettes. Luxe, racy sportswear is crafted ffora fabrics and designed with
subtle references to technical performance wearaidtylish yet timeless, the Black Label collentis sleek, bold, and masculine.
Ralph Lauren Black Label is available in Ralph leausstores around the world, a limited selectiorsgecialty stores and better
department stores, and online at our Ralph Lawewmamerce sites, including RalphLauren.com.

Ralph Lauren Women's Black Label Denim

The Ralph Lauren Women's Black Label Denim coltetipossesses the ultramodern appeal with sexyofagbiward fits, cool
innovative treatments, and an elevated mix of rdgged luxury fabrics. Black Label Denim is offeradselect Ralph Lauren stores
around the world, designer boutiques, fine specistibres, better department stores, and onlinauaRalph Lauren e-commerce
sites, including RalphLauren.com.

Ralph Lauren Men's Black Label Denim

Introduced in 2011, Ralph Lauren Men's Black Ldbehim represents the next evolution of luxe, ulwdern denim for men,
with fashion-forward fits, chic signature detaiBnd a focus on authentic, innovative treatmentsthVdi renegade edge and
international appeal, Black Label Denim redefinesnic pieces in luxury and rugged fabrics, with eats that capture Ralph
Lauren's unique sensibility, from utility and leathto western and automotive. Confident and maseulRalph Lauren combines
state-of-the-art denim and superfine sportsweardate the ultimate in cool sophistication. Bla@dbkl Denim is available in Ralph
Lauren stores around the world, a limited selectibspecialty stores and better department stamas,online at our Ralph Lauren
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e-commerce sites, including RalphLauren.com.
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Women's Polo Ralph Lauren

Polo for women is the new symbol of personal exgpoesfor the young modern girl. A romantic bohemiaith a cool
sportiness, the Polo girl mixes iconic all-Americgtgle with an eclectic downtown edge, all put thge with individual flair. From
sophisticated tweeds and simple black dressesggeduoutdoorsy looks and city-worn leather, Pojoresents easy, energetic style
— free-spirited and cool. This collection will beuhched in Fall 2014 at the new Polo store at 7fth Rvenue in New York City,
and will be sold at Polo stores around the woréd{dy department stores, and online at our Ralphdrae-commerce sites, including
RalphLauren.com and RalphLauren.com/WorldofPolai¢hing in Fall 2014.

Men's Polo Ralph Lauren

Authentic and iconic, Polo is the original symbdl the modern, preppy lifestyle. Combining Ivy Leagulassics and
time-honored English haberdashery with downtowrestynd All-American sporting looks, Polo sportswaad tailored clothing
present a one-of-a-kind vision of menswear thastydish and timeless, and appeals to all genemtminmen. Polo's signature
aesthetic — along with our renowned polo playeoleg is recognized worldwide as a mark of contempoteeritage excellence.
Polo is available in Ralph Lauren and Polo storesrad the world, better department stores, sefgtialty stores, and online at our
Ralph Lauren e-commerce sites, including RalphLawamm and RalphLauren.com/WorldofPolo launchingatl 2014.

Ralph Lauren Blue Label

Modern and eclectic with a sexy, youthful spiritu® Label embodies the iconic Ralph Lauren serisibil its mix of vintage
Ivy League prep, equestrian heritage, romantic bode, and rugged Western inspirations. Blue Labalffered in Ralph Lauren
stores around the world, better department staras$online at our Ralph Lauren e-commerce siteyding RalphLauren.com. We
plan to transition from the Ralph Lauren Blue Labend subsequent to launching Women's Polo Radpindn in Fall 2014.

RRL

RRL captures an authentic American spirit with auf® on integrity, character, and timeworn charnmurféied in 1993 and
named after Ralph and Ricky Lauren's "Double Rlichain Colorado, RRL for men and women offers a wifixselvage denim,
vintage apparel and accessories, and cool, ruggatssear with roots in workwear and military geafith denim at the heart of the
brand, RRL is dedicated to time-honored details thredhighest quality workmanship — from ring-spond-staple cotton yarns to
traditional dyeing techniques and hand-appliedsantl finishes that result in one-of-a-kind, eximaptlly durable pieces. RRL is
available at RRL stores, at select Ralph Laurerest@and an exclusive selection of the finest gitgcstores around the world, as
well as online at our Ralph Lauren e-commerce sitetuding RalphLauren.com.

RLX Ralph Lauren

Created to answer the demand for superior, higfepeance outfitting, RLX Ralph Lauren for men andmen unites the
highest standards of luxury, technology, and stiylem cutting-edge functional gear for professicaidlletes to exceptionally luxe
lifestyle apparel for modern living, RLX Ralph Laur defines the next evolution of design with a gdolphy focused on purity of
form, unique construction techniques, and innoeafabrications. The RLX Ralph Lauren line is avalidaat select Ralph Lauren
stores around the world, top specialty and departnstores, and online at our Ralph Lauren e-comeneites, including
RalphLauren.com.

Lauren Ralph Lauren

Lauren translates the sophisticated luxury of Ralpbren womenswear into an affordable wardrobeef@ry occasion. From
timeless essentials with special finishing toucteepolished silhouettes with a chic, modern splrauren maintains an elegant,
feminine heritage while making strong seasonalifasktatements. Lauren Active infuses a fashiorsibdity into practical sports
apparel for golf, tennis, yoga, and weekend weanrén Jeans Co. presents a fresh perspective an dath a breadth of styles and
a complementary collection of sportswear items.reatHandbags, first introduced for the Fall 2018ss@, add to a wide range of
accessories offerings from Lauren, including beltsirves, gloves, footwear, and jewelry. Laurearsfa range of fits from Petites to
Women's sizes. Lauren is sold in select departrstemés in North America and Europe, with plansxpaad to Japan and South
Korea in Fiscal 2015, and is also available ondiheur Ralph Lauren e-commerce sites, includinggRaduren.com.
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Ralph Lauren Childrenswear

Ralph Lauren Childrenswear is designed to refleetttmeless heritage and modern spirit of Ralphré@s collections for
men and women. Signature classics, including icpoio knit shirts and luxurious cashmere cable sgrsaare interpreted in the
most sophisticated and vibrant colors. Fashionalyées are inspired by Ralph Lauren's unique vistach season — from
All-American sportswear with preppy and equestiiiagpirations to tailored and elegant ensemblessfmcial occasions. Ralph
Lauren Childrenswear is available in a full ran@isines for children, from baby, infant, and toddte girls size 16 and boys size 20.
Ralph Lauren Childrenswear can be found in seladptiRLauren stores around the world, better degartrstores, and online at our
Ralph Lauren e-commerce sites, including RalphLaaem.

Denim & Supply Ralph Lauren

Introduced in Fall 2011 with a young bohemian adkit, Denim & Supply Ralph Lauren captures the umigffortless style of
clothes that live and breathe individuality. Ecle@nd carefree — from destructed premium denimey, romantic free-spirited
clothes to rugged, weathered American utility — De& Supply is the next generation of down-to-ealthssing. Denim & Supply
Ralph Lauren opened its first freestanding U.Sestan New York and Boston in Summer 2013. DenirB@&ply Ralph Lauren is
available at our Denim & Supply stores around tleldy at Macy's and Hudson's Bay in North Ameriod aelect department stores
in Europe and Asia, and in specialty stores andession shops in Asia. In addition, Denim & SupRbBlph Lauren is available
online at our Ralph Lauren e-commerce sites, inotpu&alphLauren.com.

Golf

Tested and worn by top-ranked professional golfBdp Golf for men and Ralph Lauren Golf for womaefine heritage
excellence in the world of golf. With a sharpenedus on the needs of the modern player but alwagted in the rich design
tradition of Ralph Lauren, the Golf collections duinme state-of-the-art performance wear with luxusidinishing touches for
collections that travel effortlessly between theirse and the clubhouse. The RLX Golf collectioruisamodern, graphic, and
dedicated to performance-driven design. From pgsijve fits and sophisticated styles to the techgioddly advanced fabrics, RLX
golf is the ultimate in functional luxury. Ralph Wwan is proud to sponsor professional golfers,uidiclg Tom Watson, Davis Love
I, Jonathan Byrd, Luke Donald, Matteo Manass@itly Horschel,and Morgan Hoffman. The Polo, Ralph Lauren, and REXf
collections are available at select Ralph Laurenestaround the world, exclusive private clubs msbrts, and online at our Ralph
Lauren e-commerce sites, including RalphLauren.com.

Pink Pony

Established in 2000, Pink Pony is our worldwiddidtive in the fight against cancer. Pink Pony s programs for early
diagnosis, education, treatment, and researchjsadddicated to bringing patient navigation andliu@ancer care to medically
underserved communities. A percentage of sales &lbfink Pony products benefits the Pink Pony Fahthe Polo Ralph Lauren
Foundation and other major cancer charities ardimedworld. Pink Pony primarily consists of feminir&im-fitting women's
sportswear and accessories crafted in luxuriousc&bFrom hooded sweatshirts and cotton mesh polasanvas tote bags and
cashmere yoga pants, all Pink Pony items featuracomic pink Polo Player — a symbol of our comneimh to the fight against
cancer. Pink Pony is available at select Ralph é&mustores and online at our Ralph Lauren e-commesites, including
RalphLauren.com. During the month of October, Frany is also available at select Macy's storesMadys.com. To learn more
about Pink Pony and our Company's other philanibrefforts, please visit RalphLauren.com/Philangy.o

Ralph Lauren Home

As the first American fashion designer to createalbiencompassing collection for the home, Ralplirka presents home
furnishings and accessories that reflect the endustyle and exquisite craftsmanship synonymouk wie name Ralph Lauren.
Whether inspired by time-honored tradition, the astmin modern sophistication, or the beauty of @gcts collected around the
world, Ralph Lauren Home is dedicated to fine nialerand great attention to detail for the ultimateartisanal luxury. The
collections include furniture, bed and bath linectsina, crystal, silver, decorative accessories giftd, as well as lighting, fabric,
wallcovering, and floorcovering. Ralph Lauren Hooféers exclusive luxury goods at select Ralph Laustores, home specialty
stores, trade showrooms, and online at our Ralpirdrae-commerce sites, including RalphLauren.cohe domplete world of
Ralph Lauren Home can be explored online at RalpterdHome.com.
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Ralph Lauren Paint

Introduced in 1995, Ralph Lauren Paint offers etiosal quality and beauty in the Ralph Lauren tiadi Drawing on over
four decades of iconic design, Ralph Lauren paimbéticulously crafted from some of the finest miate in the industry to achieve
from fine coverage to long-lasting brilliance. lddition to a signature palette of over 400 one-&fral colors, Ralph Lauren Paint
brings the texture and appearance of some of Radphen's most celebrated lifestyles to the homé witistinctive collection of
faux techniques and unique specialty finishes. Rakuren Paint is offered at select specialty stimehe U.S. The complete color
palette, paint how-to's, and a guide to professipaiters can be explored online at RalphLauramRaim.

Fragrance

In 1978, Mr. Ralph Lauren expanded his lifestylartat to encompass the world of fragrance, launchingen for women and
Polo for men. Since then, Ralph Lauren Fragransechatured the essence of Ralph Lauren's men'svamén's brands, from the
timeless heritage of Lauren and Polo to the soighigid beauty of Polo Black for men and Romanceviamen to the modern, fresh
Ralph fragrances for her, designed to appeal t@unger audience. Women's fragrances include Romaviiclnight Romance,
Lauren, Safari, the Ralph Collection, Ralph LauBdme, and the Big Pony collection. Men's fragranioetude Polo, Polo Red, Polo
Blue, Polo Blue Sport, Polo Black, Double Black]d®8port, Romance for Men, Safari, Purple Labed #re Big Pony collection.
Ralph Lauren fragrances are available in departrsgmes, specialty and duty free stores, perfuregselect Ralph Lauren stores
around the world, and online at our Ralph Laurem®wmerce sites, including RalphLauren.com.

Lauren for Men

Classic and polished, Lauren for Men conveys aitspirtradition with a contemporary attitude. A cplate collection of
men's tailored clothing, including suits, sporttsparess shirts, dress pants, tuxedos, topcaadsties, the Lauren men's line offers
the sophisticated spirit and preppy heritage opR&lauren menswear at a more accessible price.goisoft, natural shoulder and
modern construction details ensure elegant styliitly superior comfort and the integrity of a welkde garment. Lauren for Men is
available at select department stores in North Acaeand Europe.

Ralph by Ralph Lauren

Superior fabrics and a precise, impeccable consrudefine the distinguished aesthetic of the Raly Ralph Lauren
collection for men. Suit separates, sport coatstsy@nd topcoats are all fashioned with the hakmaf better men's suitings, from
half-canvas jacket constructions and high-qualigyrBerg linings to hand-finished seams, felled ¢uffel hems and reinforcements
at natural points of wear. Timeless and unmistgk&allph Lauren, the Ralph by Ralph Lauren collectiffers refined luxury at an
excellent value. Ralph by Ralph Lauren is availa@xelusively at Dillard's stores and Dillards.com.

Chaps

Chaps translates the classic heritage and timaksthetic of Ralph Lauren into an accessible lanarfen, women, children,
and the home. From casual basics designed fortiltysand ease of wear to smart, finely tailoréthauettes perfect for business
and more formal occasions, Chaps creates intereladte classics that are both enduring and affoeddiile Chaps men's collection
is available at select department and specialtsestin the U.S. and Canada, and in departmentsstord Chaps retail stores in
Mexico. The Chaps collections for women, childrand home are offered in the U.S. by Kohl's Corponaf'Kohl's") at their stores
and Kohls.com. The Chaps collections for women elnittiren are also offered in Canada at Hudson's ®#ases and thebay.com,
and in Mexico at Chaps retail stores. The launcthefChaps store concept in the U.S. and expamditte Chaps brand to certain
international locations is planned for Fiscal 2015.

Club Monaco

Founded in 1985, Club Monaco is an internationaltidation for affordable, stylish luxury. Each ssasClub Monaco
designs and markets its own clothing and accessdde men and women, offering key fashion pieceth whodern, urban
sophistication and a selection of updated classidsom the versatile white shirt and black pena&ittsto refined suiting and Italian
cashmere. The brand's signature aesthetic is defipeclean, contemporary design and a palette fatiée neutrals infused with
pops of vibrant colors. Club Monaco apparel ancssories are available at Club Monaco stores arthendiorld, as well as online
at our Club Monaco domestic e-commerce site at i@araco.com. In April 2012, Club Monaco further erdad its e-commerce
presence in North America by launching ClubMonaadrc Canada. Club Monaco is currently also ava#lahl Europe at Club
Monaco stores, department stores and specialtysshog in Asia through our licensing arrangements.
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Our Wholesale Segment

Our Wholesale segment sells our products to leadpsgale and certain mid-tier department storesgiafty stores, and golf
and pro shops, both domestically and internatign&lle have continued to focus on elevating our drby improving in-store
product assortment and presentation, as well &priigke sell-throughs to consumers. As of the ehBiscal 2014, our Ralph Lauren-
branded products were sold through over 11,000sdeorldwide and we invested $53 million of capitatelated shop-within-shops
primarily in domestic and international departmant specialty stores. Our products are also sotigih the e-commerce sites of
certain of our wholesale customers.

The primary product offerings sold through our wdsalle channels of distribution include menswearmemswear,
childrenswear, accessories, and home furnishings.c@lection brands — Ralph Lauren Women's Caltecand Black Label and
Men's Purple Label and Black Label — are distriduterldwide through a limited number of premiertias retailers. Department
stores are our major wholesale customers in Nortterica. In Latin America, our wholesale products sold in department stores
and specialty stores. In Europe, our wholesalessate a varying mix of sales to both departmentest@nd specialty stores,
depending on the country. In Japan, our wholesedelyets are distributed primarily through shop-witehops at premier and
top-tier department stores, and the mix of busiiesgighted to Men's and Women's Blue Label. lm@reater China and Southeast
Asia region and Australia, our wholesale producessold mainly at mid and top-tier department stpesd the mix of business is
primarily weighted to Men's and Women's Blue Lab®é also distribute product to certain licensedest@perated by our partners
in Latin America, Europe, and Asia. In additionr dZiub Monaco products are distributed through ctetlepartment stores and
specialty stores in Europe.

We sell the majority of our excess and out-of-segs@ducts through secondary distribution chanaelddwide, including
our retail factory stores.

Worldwide Distribution Channels

The following table presents the number of doorgiéggraphic location in which Ralph Lauren-brangemtiucts distributed
by our Wholesale segment were sold to consumesariprimary channels of distribution as of March 2014

Location Number of Doors
The America®) 6,459
Europe 4,864
Asialb) 130
Total 11,453

@ Includes the U.S., Canada, and Latin America.
® Includes Australia, China, Japan, the Philippires] Thailand.

In addition, Chaps-branded products distributedoby Wholesale segment were sold domestically throagproximately
2,800 doors as of March 29, 2014.

We have three key wholesale customers that gensigtéficant sales volume. For Fiscal 2014, theastamers in the
aggregate accounted for approximately 50% of oual t&Vholesale revenues, with Macy's, Inc. ("Macy'sépresenting
approximately 25% of our total Wholesale revenues.

Our products are sold primarily through our ownesdiorces. Our Wholesale segment maintains itsgyirmhowrooms in
New York City. In addition, we maintain regionalostrooms in Milan, Paris, London, Munich, Madridp&tholm, and Panama.

Shop-within-Shops. As a critical element of our distribution topdetment stores, we and our licensing partnerizeaitil
shop-within-shops to enhance brand recognitiopetonit more complete merchandising of our linesheydepartment stores, and to
differentiate the presentation of our products.

As of March 29, 2014, we had approximately 22,000pswithin-shops in our primary channels of digitibn dedicated to
our Ralph Lauren-branded wholesale products woddwiThe size of our shop-within-shops ranges fr@praximately 100 to
9,200 square feet. Shop-within-shop fixed assetsapily include items such as customized freestagdixtures, wall cases

17 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

11

18 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

and components, decorative items, and flooring.nenally share in the cost of building out thesepstvithin-shops with our
wholesale customers.

Basic Stock Replenishment Program. Basic products such as knit shirts, chino paotdord cloth shirts, selected
accessories, and Home products can be ordered ylmnlesale customers at any time through our bsisick replenishment
programs. We generally ship these products withimtb five days of order receipt.

Our Retail Segment

As of March 29, 2014, our Retail segment consistéd433 directly-operated freestanding stores woididy totaling
approximately 3 million square feet, 503 conces$iased shop-within-shops, and eight e-commerceitesb3he extension of our
direct-to-consumer reach is one of our primary kemn strategic goals. We operate our retail bissingsing an omni-channel
retailing strategy to deliver a seamless and imtiegk shopping experience with a consistent messager brands and products to
our customers, regardless of whether they are $hggpr our products in one of our physical stosesnline.

Ralph Lauren Stores

Our Ralph Lauren stores feature a broad range pérap accessories, home, watch and jewelry, aagrdnce product
assortments in an atmosphere reflecting the distmattitude and image of the Ralph Lauren, PBIBL, and Denim & Supply
brands, including exclusive merchandise that issoid in department stores. During Fiscal 2014 owened 17 new Ralph Lauren
stores, acquired eight previously licensed storef\ustralia and New Zealand, converted three stéres concession-based
shop-within-shops, and closed five stores. Our Rdlpuren stores are primarily situated in majorcajes street locations and
upscale regional malls, generally in large urbankets.

We operated the following Ralph Lauren stores adafch 29, 2014:

Location Ralph Lauren Stores
The Americas 57
Europe 27
Asia@ 54
Total 138

@ Includes Australia, China, Hong Kong, Japan, Madaiaysia, New Zealand, Singapore, South Korea \agtham.

Our seven flagship Ralph Lauren store locationsvelase our upper-end luxury styles and productsd@naonstrate our most
refined merchandising techniques. In addition toegating sales of our products, our worldwide Ralpturen stores establish,
reinforce, and capitalize on the image of our bsaf@ur Ralph Lauren stores range in size from apmately 700 to 38,000 square
feet.

Club Monaco Stores

Our Club Monaco stores feature fashion apparel aodessories for both men and women. The brandan cénd
contemporary signature style forms the foundatioa modern wardrobe. As of March 29, 2014, we deer&0 Club Monaco retalil
stores in North America and Europe. Our Club Morstooes range in size from approximately 900 tdQ0d square feet.

Factory Stores

We extend our reach to additional consumer grobpsugh our 235 factory stores worldwide, generédlyated in outlet
centers. During Fiscal 2014, we added 24 new facttares, acquired five previously licensed stame&ustralia, and closed seven
factory stores.
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We operated the following factory stores as of M&26, 2014:

Location Factory Stores

The Americas 150

Europe 50

Asia® 35
Total 235

@ Includes Australia, China, Hong Kong, Japan, MadkySouth Korea, and Taiwan.

Our factory stores in the Americas offer selectiafsour menswear, womenswear, childrenswear, acdesschome
furnishings, and fragrances. Ranging in size frggpreximately 2,700 to 20,000 square feet, with aarage of approximately
10,400 square feet, these stores are principatbtéal in major outlet centers in 40 states in ti& (LCanada, and Puerto Rico.

Our factory stores in Europe offer selections af menswear, womenswear, childrenswear, accesshaes furnishings, and
fragrances. Ranging in size from approximately Q,&® 19,700 square feet, with an average of appratdly 7,000 square feet,
these stores are located in 12 countries, pringipaimajor outlet centers.

Our factory stores in Asia offer selections of megnswear, womenswear, childrenswear, accessonigédragrances. Ranging
in size from approximately 1,100 to 11,800 squard,fwith an average of approximately 6,200 sqfemt these stores are primarily
located throughout China and Japan, in Hong Kong,ia or near other major cities in Asia and AugsraOur factory stores are
principally located in major outlet centers.

Factory stores obtain products from our suppliets, product licensing partners, and our other Irstares and e-commerce
operations, and also serve as a secondary distribchhannel for our excess and out-of-season pteduc

Concession-based Shop-within-Shops

The terms of trade for shop-within-shops are largeinducted on a concession basis, whereby inwerontinues to be
owned by us (not the department store) until ultéveale to the end consumer. The salespeople iedadlvthe sales transactions are
generally our employees and not those of the deyaautt store.

As of March 29, 2014, we had 503 concession-bakeg-within-shops at 243 retail locations dedicatedur products,
which were located in Asia, Australia, New Zealaadd Europe. The size of our concession-based sithpy-shops ranges from
approximately 140 to 7,400 square feet. We mayeslrarthe cost of building-out certain of these shdghin-shops with our
department store partners.

E-commerce Websites

In addition to our stores, our Retail segment gaislucts online through our e-commerce channekiwincludes:

e Our North American e-commerce sites located at viRalphLauren.com and www.ClubMonaco.com, as welb@s
Club Monaco site in Canada located at www.ClubMonee;

e Our Ralph Lauren e-commerce sites in Europe, inotydvww.RalphLauren.co.uk (servicing the United #diom),
www.RalphLauren.fr (servicing Belgium, France, ytaLuxembourg, the Netherlands, Portugal, and Spaind
www.RalphLauren.de (servicing Germany and Austaa)]

e Our Ralph Lauren e-commerce sites in Asia, inclgdimwww.RalphLauren.co.jp servicing Japan and
www.RalphLauren.co.kr servicing South Korea.

Our Ralph Lauren e-commerce sites in the U.S., igjrand Asia offer our customers access to a laoag of Ralph Lauren,
RRL, Polo, and Denim & Supply apparel, accessofragrance, and home products, and reinforce therjuimage of our brands.
While investing in e-commerce operations remaingrianary focus, it is an extension of our investmémtthe integrated
omni-channel strategy used to operate our ovee#dilrbusiness, in which our e-commerce operatamasinterdependent with our
physical stores.

Our Club Monaco e-commerce sites in the U.S. anth@a offer our domestic and Canadian customersadoeour Club
Monaco global assortment of womenswear, menswedraecessories product lines, as well as seletteoakclusives.
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Our Licensing Segment

Through licensing alliances, we combine our consumsight, design, and marketing skills with theesific product or
geographic competencies of our licensing partrergeate and build new businesses. We generalky agdicensing partners who
are leaders in their respective markets, contridii® majority of the product development costs,vig® the operational
infrastructure required to support the businesd,@m the inventory.

We grant our product licensees the right to marufacand sell at wholesale specified categorieprofiucts under one or
more of our trademarks. We grant our internatigedgraphic area licensing partners exclusive rightistribute certain brands or
classes of our products and operate retail starepeécific international territories. These geobrafarea licensees source products
from us, our product licensing partners, and indepat sources. Each licensing partner pays ustieydlased upon its sales of our
products, generally subject to a minimum royaltguieement for the right to use our trademarks aesigh services. In addition,
licensing partners may be required to allocateréiqpoof their revenues to advertising our produats sharing in the creative costs
associated with these products. Larger allocat@wagequired in connection with launches of newdpaots or in new territories. Our
licenses generally have one to five-year termsmaag grant the licensees conditional renewal options

We work closely with all of our licensing partnets ensure that their products are developed, medketnd distributed to
reach the intended consumer and are presentedstanthi across product categories and internatiomatkets to convey the
distinctive identity and lifestyle associated withir brands. Virtually all aspects of the desigmduction quality, packaging,
merchandising, distribution, advertising, and préioto of Ralph Lauren products are subject to oumrpspproval and continuing
oversight. We perform a broader range of servioeofir Ralph Lauren Home licensing partners thardedor our other licensing
partners, including design, operating showroomgkatang, advertising, and, in some cases, salegeireral, our Home licensing
partners manufacture and own the inventory, anal thig products.

Approximately 45% of our licensing revenue for k2014 was earned from four of our largest liceggartners: Luxottica
Group, S.p.A., L'Oreal S.A., Peerless, Inc., anchdsdrands Inc. The following table lists our latgesnsing agreements as of
March 29, 2014. Except as noted in the table, thesgduct licenses cover the U.S. or North Americh.o

Category Licensed Products Licensing Partners

Men's Apparel Underwear and Sleepwear Hanesbrangls, In
Chaps, Lauren, and Ralph Tailored Clothing Peerlass,

Beauty Products Fragrances, Cosmetics, Color, amiCGice L'Oreal S.A. (global)

Accessories Eyewear Luxottica Group, S.p.A. (global)

Home?) Bedding and Bath Ichida (Japan) and Kohl's Departr8tares, Inc.
Utility and Blankets Hollander Sleep Products LLGQIdfohl's Department

Stores, Inc.

Fabric and Wallpaper Designers Guild Limited anH&ufmann Inc.
Furniture EJ Victor, Inc.

@ Our Home products are sold under our Ralph Lauremé] Lauren by Ralph Lauren, and Chaps brandsf Macch 29, 2014,
we had agreements with ten domestic and threenimtienal Home product licensing partners.

In July 2013, our international licensing agreemmenith Oroton in Australia and New Zealand and Cania¢ Madison, S.A.
in Chile expired, and we assumed control over #h@ted product distribution in these regions. Wéebie that international markets
will continue to offer us additional growth oppartties for our quintessential American design aifestyle image through both
international licensing arrangements and our diyestned operations.

Product Design

Our products reflect a timeless and innovative rprietation of American style with a strong intefonal appeal. Our
consistent emphasis on new and distinctive designbieen an important contributor to the prominesttength, and reputation of
the Ralph Lauren brands.
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Our Ralph Lauren products are designed by and uhdedirection of Mr. Ralph Lauren and our desitaffsWe form design
teams around our brands and product categoriesuwelap concepts, themes, and products for eactdtaad category. Through
close collaboration with merchandising, sales, gm@duction staff, these teams support all threemsedgs of our
business — Wholesale, Retail, and Licensing — ireptd gain market information and other valuabfguin

Marketing and Advertising

Our marketing and advertising programs communitaethemes and images of our brands and are ihtegour product
offerings. The majority of our advertising prograsncreated and executed on a centralized basiaghrour in-house creative and
advertising organization to ensure consistencyregntation, which is complemented by our marketixgerts in each region who
help to execute our international strategies.

We create distinctive image advertising for oumiolss conveying the particular message of each dthénvthe context of the
overall Ralph Lauren aesthetic. Advertisements gelyeportray a lifestyle rather than a specifienit and include a variety of
products offered by ourselves and, in some casedicensing partners. Our primary advertising medlis print, with multiple page
advertisements appearing regularly in a rangesifiém, lifestyle, and general interest magazinesjoMprint advertising campaigns
are conducted during the fall and spring retailseaa, with additions throughout the year to coiecidth product deliveries. In
addition to print, we utilize television and outdouedia in certain of our marketing programs. Waaharket our brand through
direct-to-consumer marketing, special events, amdractive digital activities. We use our consundatabase and consumer
knowledge to guide these activities.

Our digital advertising programs focus on high ictpand innovative digital media outlets, which allas to convey our key
brand messages and lifestyle positioning. We ats@ldp digital editorial initiatives that allow faleeper education and engagement
around the Ralph Lauren lifestyle, including thddRaLauren magazine, style guides, and videos. ¥#oy these marketing and
advertising initiatives through online, mobile, @éimand social media. Our e-commerce sites predemtRalph Lauren lifestyle
online, while offering a broad array of our appaseicessories, and Home product lines.

We advertise in consumer and trade print and digitdia, and participate in cooperative advertisinga shared cost basis
with some of our retail and licensing partners. &0 provide point-of-sale fixtures and signageotw wholesale customers to
enhance the presentation of our products at tleé&hillocations. In addition, when our licensingtpars are required to spend an
amount equal to a percentage of their licensedymtoshles on advertising, we coordinate the adiediplacement on their behalf.
We believe our investments in shop-within-shop eounents and retail stores, including our flagskipations worldwide,
contribute to and enhance the themes of our brEndsnsumers. We expensed approximately $256 mitiidated to the advertising,
marketing, and promotion of our products in Fis2l4.

We also conduct a variety of public relations dtiée. Each of our spring and fall womenswear Gxuitens are presented at
major fashion shows in New York City, which typilgagienerate extensive domestic and internationalianeoverage. In addition, in
Fiscal 2014, we also showcased our Resort and &frecBllections in fashion shows at our Women'g$leip store in New York
City. We introduce each of the spring and fall nveger collections at press presentations in maj@scsuch as New York City and
Milan. In addition, we organize in-store events;limling appearances by our models, certain athleted other public interest
figures.

We continue to be the exclusive oultfitter for alt@ourt officials at the Wimbledon tennis tournamand the official outfitter
of all on-court officials at the U.S. Open tenrdgimament. Both tournaments provide worldwide ewp@$or our brand in a relevant
lifestyle environment. We also continue to be thelsive Official Parade Outfitter for the U.S. @ipic and Paralympic Teams,
with the right to manufacture, distribute, advesrtipromote, and sell products in the U.S. whicHicafe the Parade Outfits and
associated leisure wear. Most recently, we drefisedeam for the 2014 Winter Olympic Games in Saufd preparations have
already started to dress the team for the 2016 filyr@ames in Rio. As part of our involvement witkaim U.S.A., we have
established a partnership with athletes servingpraad ambassadors and as the faces of our adwgrtisiarketing, and public
relations campaigns.

Under our agreement with the United States Goloaidion ("USGA"), we continue to be the officiad@arel outfitter for the
USGA and the U.S. Open Championships and servheashtampionship's largest on-site apparel supp@igditionally, under our
agreement with The Royal & Ancient, we are an @fi®atron of The Open Championship that is plagedually on British links
golf courses. As part of this agreement, we aréttog all officials and staff members at The Opgéhampionship and are serving as
the championship's largest on-site apparel retailer believe our partnerships with prestigious glaiournaments reinforce our
brand's sporting heritage.
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Sourcing, Production and Quality

We contract for the manufacture of our products dodnot own or operate any production facilitiesxe©700 different
manufacturers worldwide produce our apparel, foatwaccessories, and home products, with no onelf@etrer providing more
than approximately 4% of our total production dgriRiscal 2014. We source both finished products &wd materials. Raw
materials include fabric, buttons, and other trifmished products consist of manufactured and faigembled products ready for
shipment to our customers. In Fiscal 2014, less #% of our products (by dollar value) were proautethe U.S., and over 98% of
our products (by dollar value) were produced owtside U.S., primarily in Asia, Europe, and Latin émga. See "Import
Restrictions and other Government Regulations”lgerd 1A — 'Risk Factors— Risks Related to Our Business — Our business is
subject to risks associated with importing produantsl could suffer as a result of increases in thieepof raw materials, freight, or
labor, or a manufacturer's inability to produce ogwods on time and to our specifications

Most of our businesses must commit to the manufiagfuof our garments before we sell finished goodbgether to
wholly-owned retail stores or to wholesale cust@n&¥e also must commit to purchase fabric fromanilell in advance of our
sales. If we overestimate our primary customensiated for a particular product or the need for aipaar fabric or yarn, we may
sell the excess products or garments made from falmic or yarn in our factory stores or throughest secondary distribution
channels.

Suppliers operate under the close supervision ofmbal manufacturing division and buying agentadquartered in Asia,
the Americas, the Middle East, and Europe. All pidd are produced according to our specificatiBngduction and quality control
staff in Asia, the Americas, the Middle East, andtdpe monitor manufacturing at supplier facilitiasorder to correct problems
prior to shipment of the final product. Procedunase been implemented under our vendor certifinadiod compliance programs so
that quality assurance is reviewed early in thelpetion process, allowing merchandise to be recdeatethe distribution facilities
and shipped to customers with minimal interruption.

Competition

Competition is very strong in the segments of tighifon and consumer product industries in whicloperate. We compete
with numerous designers and manufacturers of appadeaccessories, fragrances, and home furnighroducts, both domestic and
international. Some of our competitors may be $icgmtly larger and have substantially greater veses than us. We compete
primarily on the basis of fashion, quality, valaed service, which depend on our ability to:

« anticipate and respond to changing consumer desnaraltimely manner;
* maintain favorable brand recognition, loyalty, aegutation for quality;

« develop and produce high quality products thaeapf consumers;

e appropriately source raw materials at cost-eféectirices;

e appropriately price our products;

e provide strong and effective marketing support;

e ensure product availability; and

« obtain additional points of distribution and saifint retail floor space, and effectively preseumt products at retail.

See Item 1A — Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the Industry inidWhNMe Compete — We face intense competition
worldwide in the markets in which we operate
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Distribution

To facilitate global distribution, our products afeipped from manufacturers to a network of distiin centers around the

world for inspection, sorting, packing, and delivéo retail and wholesale customers. This netwardtudes the following primary
distribution facilities:

Facility
Geographic Region Facility Type Facility Location Ownership
u.s. Wholesale and Retail distribution center GreersNorth Carolina Owned
Wholesale distribution center High Point, North Cizra Leased
E-commerce distribution center High Point, North @iaa® Owned
Distribution center Chino Hills, California Third-ggr
Distribution center Miami, Florida Third-party
Canada Distribution center Toronto, Ontario Third-part
Europe Distribution center Parma, It&ly Third-party
Japan Distribution center Yokohama, Jdpan Third-party
South Korea Distribution center Bugok, South Kéfea Leased
Greater China and Distribution centers Hong Kong, China, Singapore, Third-party
Southeast Asi@ Malaysia, and Taiwan
Latin America Distribution center Col6n, Panama Third-party

@
(b)

©

(d)

(e)

This distribution center performs customer orddfilfionent for RalphLauren.com and ClubMonaco.com.

This distribution center performs customer orddfilfment for our European businesses, including etcommerce operations
in Europe.

This distribution center performs customer orddfilflonent for our Japanese businesses, includingesaommerce operations
in Japan.

This distribution center performs customer orddfillment for our businesses in South Korea, inéhgd our e-commerce
operations.

Includes China, Hong Kong, Macau, Malaysia, thelififines, Singapore, Taiwan, Thailand, and Vietn&ur distribution
center in Hong Kong also performs customer ordiitlfaent for our businesses in Australia and Neeafand.

All facilities are designed to allow for high-detyscube storage and value-added services, andautilit and carton tracking

technology to facilitate process control and ineeptmanagement. The distribution network is manageaugh globally integrated
information technology systems.

Management Information Systems

Our management information systems make the desigrketing, manufacturing, importing, and distribatof our products

more efficient by providing, among other things:

e comprehensive order processing;
e production and design information;
e accounting information; and

* an enterprise view of information for our desigrarketing, manufacturing, importing, and distribatfunctions.

The point-of-sale registers, in conjunction withert systems in our stores, enable us to track towerfirom store receipt to

final sale on a real-time basis. We believe ouralmandising and financial systems, coupled with peoint-of-sale registers and
software programs, allow for efficient stock repggiment, effective merchandise planning, and riea-tinventory and sales
accounting.
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In the U.S. and Europe, we utilize an automatetereghment system to facilitate the processingasidreplenishment orders
from our Retail segment and wholesale customeses,ntbvement of goods through distribution channate] the collection of
information for planning and forecasting. In theSUand Europe, we also utilize an automated allatatystem to facilitate the flow
of inventory for our Retail segment.

We are in the process of implementing a new gloparating and financial reporting information teclugy system, SAP, as
part of a multi-year plan to integrate and upgradesystems and processes. The implementationgkbbal system is scheduled
to occur in phases over the next several yearsn®uiscal 2014, we continued to migrate certamaarof our business to SAP,
including global merchandise procurement and custasnder management and record-to-report for outiNamerican wholesale
operations, which is scheduled to be completedsnaF 2015. During Fiscal 2015, we will also beglanning the migration of our
European operations to SAP, which will be complétestages over the next several years.

See Item 1A — Risk Factors— Risks Related to Our Business Implementation of management information systems ma
negatively impact our businésand 'Risk Factors— Risks Related to Our Business Our business could suffer if our computer
systems and websites are disrupted or cease tatgpeffectively

Wholesale Credit Control
We manage our own credit function. We sell our rhandise principally to major department stores exténd credit based
on an evaluation of the wholesale customer's fiigwapacity and condition, usually without requodricollateral. We monitor credit
levels and the financial condition of our wholesalestomers on a continuing basis to minimize credk. We do not factor or
underwrite our accounts receivables, or maintagditinsurance to manage the risk of bad debtdldrth America, collection and

deduction transactional activities are provideatigh a third-party service provider. See Item 1A'Risk Factors — Risks Related
to Our Business— Our business could be negatively impacted by amanéial instability of our customet's

Wholesale Backlog

We generally receive wholesale orders approximateige to five months prior to the time the produate delivered to
customers. Such orders are generally subject tadbcancellation rights. Our total backlog was apipnately $1.5 billion and $1.4
billion as of March 29, 2014 and March 30, 2013pextively. We expect that substantially all of backlog orders as of March 29,
2014 will be filled within the next fiscal year.

The size of our order backlog depends upon a numibfarctors, including the timing of the market Wwedor our particular
lines during which a significant percentage of otdlers are received and the timing of shipmentschwiiaries from year-to-year
with consideration for holidays, consumer trendsnoept plans, and the basic stock replenishmengranos usage. As a
consequence, a comparison of the size of our draedog from period to period may not be meaningfor may it be indicative of
eventual shipments.

Trademarks

We own the RALPH LAUREN, POLO, POLO BY RALPH LAURENESIGN, and the famous polo player astride a horse
trademarks in the U.S. and approximately 120 ciestworldwide. Other trademarks that we own include

* PURPLE LABEL;
 BLACK LABEL,;

» BLUE LABEL,

* RRL;

* RLX;

* LAUREN RALPH LAUREN;

18

29 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

30 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

 DENIM & SUPPLY RALPH LAUREN,;

*  PINK PONY;

*  LAUREN;
*+  RALPH;
*+  CHAPS;

+ CLUB MONACO;
* RUGBY;
* AMERICAN LIVING; and

e Various trademarks pertaining to fragrances arsunetics.

Mr. Ralph Lauren has the royalty-free right to asetrademarks RALPH LAUREN, DOUBLE RL, and RRL ierpetuity in
connection with, among other things, beef and tjvamimals. The trademarks DOUBLE RL and RRL areenily used by the
Double RL Company, an entity wholly-owned by Mr.utan. In addition, Mr. Lauren has the right to eggyén personal projects
involving film or theatrical productions (not incling or relating to our business) through RRL Puwtides, Inc., a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Lauren. Any activity by thesempanies has no impact on us.

Our trademarks are the subject of registrationsperdling applications throughout the world for nsea variety of items of
apparel, apparel-related products, home furnishirggaurant and café services, online servicesalide publications, and beauty
products, as well as in connection with retail gggs, and we continue to expand our worldwide usagkregistration of related
trademarks. In general, trademarks remain validearidrceable as long as the marks are used in ctianevith the related products
and services and the required registration renemr@ldiled. We regard the license to use the tradksnand our other proprietary
rights in and to the trademarks as extremely vdduabsets in marketing our products and, on a wuidllel basis, vigorously seek to
protect them against infringement. As a resulthef appeal of our trademarks, our products have tieenbject of counterfeiting.
While we have a broad enforcement program whichldeesy generally effective in protecting our intefleal property rights and
limiting the sale of counterfeit products in theSUand in most major markets abroad, we face grehtdlenges with respect to
enforcing our rights against trademark infringemartertain parts of Asia.

In markets outside of the U.S., our rights to samall of our trademarks may not be clearly estdigd. In the course of our
international expansion, we have experienced aaaflivith various third parties who have acquiredherghip rights in certain
trademarks, including POLO and/or a representatdfoe Polo Player Design, which impede our use &gistration of our principal
trademarks. While such conflicts are common and arése again from time to time as we continue atgrnational expansion, we
have, in general, successfully resolved such adsfinh the past through both legal action and natgat settlements with third-party
owners of the conflicting marks (see Item 1A -Risk Factors— Risks Related to Our Business Our trademarks and other
intellectual property rights may not be adequatphptected outside the U'Sand Item 3 — Legal Proceedindsfor further
discussion). Although we have not in the past seffeany material restraints or restrictions on ddimsiness in desirable markets,
we cannot assure that significant impediments natl arise in the future as we expand product offgriand introduce trademarks to
new markets.

Import Restrictions and Other Government Regulatiors

Virtually all of our merchandise imported into tAenericas, Europe, Asia, Australia, and New Zealmsnslbject to duties. In
addition, most of the countries to which we shipldoimpose safeguard quotas and duties to prokeit tocal industries from
import surges that threaten to create market diemupThe U.S. and other countries may also unidiieimpose additional duties in
response to a particular product being importeah{fiChina or other countries) at unfairly tradedgsiin such increased quantities
that would cause (or threaten) injury to the refev@omestic industry (generally known as "anti-dimgp actions). If dumping is
suspected in the U.S., the U.S. government mayirggHite a dumping case on behalf of the U.S.ikexhdustry which could
significantly affect our costs. Furthermore, aduitil duties, generally known as countervailing eljtican also be imposed by the
U.S. government to offset subsidies provided bgrai§n government to foreign manufacturers if t@aortation of such subsidized
merchandise injures or threatens to injure a Uh@ustry. Legislative proposals have been introduckeidh,
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if adopted, would treat a manipulation by Chinata# value of its currency as actionable under titedumping or countervailing
duty laws.

We are also subject to other international tradeergents and regulations, such as the North Anrefcae Trade Agreement,
the Central American Free Trade Agreement, thebBadn Basin Initiative, and other special tradegmams. A portion of our
imported products are eligible for certain of thdséy-advantaged programs. In addition, each otthatries in which our products
are sold has laws and regulations covering imp8esause the U.S. and the other countries in whigtproducts are manufactured
and sold may, from time to time, impose new dutiesiffs, surcharges, or other import controls estrictions, including the
imposition of a "safeguard quota," or adjust prédgeprevailing duty or tariff rates or levels, weamtain a program of intensive
monitoring of import restrictions and opportunitiéde seek to minimize our potential exposure todrpelated risks through,
among other measures, adjustments in product desigrfabrication, shifts of production among coiestand manufacturers, and
through geographical diversification of our souroésupply.

As almost all our products are manufactured byigoresuppliers, the enactment of new legislatiorther administration of
current international trade regulations, executiedon affecting textile agreements, or changesoircing patterns resulting from
the elimination of quotas could adversely affect operations. On January 1, 2005, the World Tradgafization's 148 member
nations lifted all quotas on apparel and textifesa result, all textiles and apparel manufactimeegach member nation and exported
after January 1, 2005 are no longer subject toaquestrictions. Although we generally expect thet 2005 elimination of quotas
will result, over the long term, in an overall retion in the cost of apparel produced abroad, ty@eémentation of any "safeguard
guota provisions," any "anti-dumping" or "countdlivg duty" actions, or any other actions impactintgrnational trade may result,
in the near term, in cost increases and in dissaptf the supply chain for certain product categmriSee Item 1A —Risk
Factors — Risks Related to Our Business Our ability to conduct business in internationahmets may be affected by legal,
regulatory, political, and economic risks" and "RiBactors— Risks Related to Our Business Our business is subject to risks
associated with importing products and could su#iera result of increases in the price of raw miatsr freight, or labor, or a
manufacturer's inability to produce our goods andiand to our specificatioris.

Apparel and other products sold by us are alsoestiltp regulation in the U.S. and other countrigsother governmental
agencies, including, in the U.S., the Federal Tradenmission, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, and @onsumer Products Safety
Commission, including the Consumer Product Safetgrbvement Act, which imposes limitations on thenpissible amounts of
lead and phthalates allowed in children's produtiese regulations relate principally to produdtelang, licensing requirements,
flammability testing, and product safety, particlyavith respect to products used by children. Véédve that we are in substantial
compliance with these regulations, as well as apple federal, state, local, and foreign rulesragdlations governing the discharge
of materials hazardous to the environment. We dastimate any significant capital expenditureseiovironmental control matters
either in the next fiscal year or in the near fatuur licensed products, licensing partners, lfgwurcing agents, and the vendors
and factories with which we contract for the mawtiee and distribution of our products are alsojextbto regulation. Our
agreements require our licensing partners, buysngésng agents, vendors, and factories to operat®impliance with all laws and
regulations, and we are not aware of any violatiwhgch could reasonably be expected to have a mah&miverse effect on our
business or operating results.

We are also subject to new disclosure and reporéggirements, established under existing or nelerfd or state laws, such
as the requirements to identify the origin and texise of certain "conflict minerals" under the Ddeldnk Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act, and disclosures of abusilmr practices in portions of our supply chaindem the California
Transparency in Supply Chains Act, which could éase the cost of doing business, adversely afteotin results of operations.

Although we have not suffered any material resticfrom doing business in desirable markets inghst, we cannot assure
that significant impediments will not arise in theéure as we expand product offerings and introdadditional trademarks to new
markets.

Employees

As of March 29, 2014, we had approximately 23,00(leyees, including approximately 14,000 full-tiruied approximately
9,000 part-time employees. Approximately 14,00@af employees are located in the U.S. and apprdgign8,000 are located in
foreign countries. Approximately 30 of our U.S. guetion and distribution employees in the womenswesiness are members of
Workers United (which was previously known as UNIHERE) under an industry association collectivegbaring agreement,
which our womenswear subsidiary has adopted. Weidenour relations with both our union and nonearémployees to be good.
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Executive Officers

The following are our current executive officerslaheir principal recent business experience:

Ralph Lauren Age 74 Mr. Lauren has been our Chairman, Chief ExeeDfficer and
director since prior to our initial public offeririg 1997, and was
a member of the Advisory Board of the Board of Dices of our
predecessors since their organization. He foundeduwosiness in
1967. For over four decades, Mr. Lauren has cu#ivathe
iconography of America into a global lifestyle bdan

Roger N. FaraH? Age 61 Mr. Farah has been Executive Vice Chairmanthef Company
since November 2013 and a director of the CompamesApril
2000. He was the Company's President and Chief abpgr
Officer from April 2000 through October 2013. Mrafah was
Chairman of the board of directors of Venator Groug. (now
Foot Locker, Inc.) from December 1994 until Aprd@, and was
Chief Executive Officer of Venator Group, Inc. frobecember
1994 to August 1999. He is Chairman of the FinaBoenmittee
and a member of the Executive Committee of thedwati Retail
Federation and is currently a member of the boadirectors of
Aetna, Inc., The Progressive Corporation, and MBaok.

Jackwyn L. Nemerov Age 62 Ms. Nemerov has been our President & Chiedr&timg Officer
since November 2013 and a director of the Companges
February 2007. She served as Executive Vice Pmsiofethe
Company from September 2004 through October 2018. M
Nemerov was President & Chief Operating Officer Juflnes
Apparel Group, Inc. from January 1998 until Mard@02. Prior
to that, Ms. Nemerov was affiliated with Allied $s, Bernard
Chaus and Gloria Vanderbilt for Murjani. Ms. Nemerurrently
serves as a member of the board of governors ofNEwe School
University's Parsons School of Design.

Christopher H. Peterson Age 47 Mr. Peterson has been our Executive Vice idkerg Chief
Administrative Officer and Chief Financial Officesince
November 2013. He served as Senior Vice PresidestGhief
Financial Officer of the Company from September2@irough
November 2013. From 1992 to 2012, Mr. Peterson ketibus
positions with The Procter & Gamble Company, mastently
serving as Vice President and Chief Financial @ffiof its
Global Household Care division.

Mitchell A. Kosh Age 64 Mr. Kosh has served as our Executive VicesiBemt of Human
Resources since March 2014, He was Senior Viceid@rmsof
Human Resources of the Company from July 2000 tirou
February 2014. Mr. Kosh was Senior Vice PresiddntHaman
Resources of Conseco, Inc. from February 2000 tp 2000.
Prior to that time, Mr. Kosh held executive humasaurce
positions with the Venator Group, Inc. startindLBo6.

@ On May 8, 2014, Roger N. Farah notified us of ksignation from the Company as Executive Vice Chair, effective as of
May 31, 2014. Mr. Farah will remain on our BoardRifectors until our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockd®rs in August
2014.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

There are risks associated with an investment in ssmeurities. The following risk factors should bead carefully in
connection with evaluating our business and thevdiod-looking statements contained in this Annugbéteon Form 10-K. Any of
the following risk factors could materially advdssaffect our business, our prospects, our resoft®perations, our financial
condition, our liquidity, the trading price of owecurities, and/or the actual outcome of mattersoawhich forward-looking
statements are made in this report. Additionalsrigkd uncertainties not currently known to us @t tiwve currently view as
immaterial may also materially adversely affect business, results of operations, and financiaditmm in future periods or if
circumstances change.

Risks Related to Our Business

The loss of the services of Mr. Ralph Lauren, memlvg of our executive management team, or other keygpsonnel could have
a material adverse effect on our business.

Mr. Ralph Lauren's leadership in the design, mamgetand operational areas of our business hasdedtical element of our
success since the inception of our Company. Mrrémis instrumental to, and closely identified witkur brand that bears his name.
Our ability to maintain our brand image and leveréige goodwill associated with Mr. Lauren's name tmadamaged if we were to
lose his services. We depend on the service andgeament experience of Mr. Lauren and other key gike officers, who have
substantial experience and expertise in our ingdustid our business. The death or disability of Mruren or other extended or
permanent loss of his services, or any negativkebar industry perception with respect to him nsiag from his loss, could have
a material adverse effect on our business, resdlsperations, and financial condition. Our otheeautive officers and other
members of senior management have substantialierperand expertise in our business and have nigiéicant contributions to
our growth and success. The loss of the servicenpff the key members of senior management, dirajumembers of the Office
of the Chairman, or one or more of our other kess@enel, or the concurrent loss of several of thed&iduals or any negative
public perception with respect to these individyatsuld also have a material adverse effect onbosiness, results of operations,
and financial condition. We are not protected byaterial amount of key-man or similar life insuranmovering Mr. Lauren, our
other executive officers, or other members of semianagement. We have entered into employment isgreis with Mr. Lauren and
certain other executive officers, but competition &xperienced executives in our industry is inteaad the non-compete period
with respect to Mr. Lauren and certain other exgeubfficers could, in some circumstances in thergwf their termination of
employment with our Company, end prior to the emplent term set forth in their employment agreements

We cannot assure the successful implementation ofilogrowth strategy.

As part of our growth strategy, we seek to extemdbsands and merchandise categories, expand ogragghic coverage, and
increase direct management of our brands by openomg of our own stores, strategically acquiringndegrating into our existing
operations select businesses previously held byiansees, and enhancing our operations. Impleatientof our strategy involves
the continued expansion of our business in NorthreAra, Asia, Europe, Latin America, and other inéional areas. For example,
as discussed in Iltem 1 —BUsiness— Recent Developmeritsye completed the Chaps Menswear License AcquisitioApril 2013
and the Australia and New Zealand Licensed Operatikrquisition in July 2013.

We may have difficulty integrating acquired buseessinto our operations, hiring and retaining diealikey employees, or
otherwise successfully managing such expansiorth€umore, we may not be able to successfully irtiegthe business of any
licensee that we acquire into our own businessinag incur additional costs, and we may fail to aghiany expected cost savings
or synergies from such integration.

Implementation of our growth strategy involves tmatinuation and expansion of our retail distribotnetwork on a global
basis, including our e-commerce operations, whichubject to many factors beyond our control. We mat be able to procure,
purchase, or lease desirable freestanding or depattstore locations, renew and maintain existiegdtanding store leases and
department store locations on acceptable termsea@rre suitable replacement locations. The leageatiation, as well as the number
and timing of new stores and shop-within-shop locet actually opened during any given period amir tassociated contribution to
net income for the period, depends on a numbeacibfs including, but not limited to: (i) the awadillity of suitable financing to us
and our landlords; (ii) the timing of the deliveoy the leased premises to us from our landlorderder to commence build-out
construction activities; (i) our ability and olandlords' ability to obtain all necessary governtaklicenses and permits to construct
and operate our stores on a timely basis; (iv)ahility to manage the construction and developnoasts of new stores; (v) the
rectification of any unforeseen engineering or estwinental problems with the leased premises; (di)eese weather conditions
during the construction period; and (vii) the hiriand training of qualified operating personnel
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in the local market. In addition, the success of eecommerce operations depends on our ability &ntain and upgrade our
e-commerce platform to provide our customers wifleamless shopping experience. While we continexpéore new markets and
are always evaluating new potential locations, ahyhe above factors could have an adverse impaatuw business, results of
operations, and financial condition. Further, asomgtinue to expand and increase the global presehour e-commerce business,
sales from our brick and mortar stores and whateshlnnels of distribution in areas where e-comensites are introduced may
decline due to changes in consumer shopping habéi<annibalization.

In Europe, we lack the large wholesale distributbiannels we have in the U.S., and we may haviewtif§ developing and
maintaining successful distribution strategies atlcances in certain major European countries. BiaAour primary mode of
distribution is via a network of shops located witleading department stores. As we operate atdioeconsumer business in this
region and face established competitors, who inescases maintain licensing relationships with sdepartment stores, we may
have difficulty in successfully retaining this nettk and expanding into alternate distribution cteanin addition, certain of the
international countries in which we operate, patédy in Asia, have unique operational charactessthat vary from the U.S.,
including but not limited to employment and labmansportation, logistics, acquiring store locasioand legal requirements, which
may pose challenges to the execution and successirofelated growth strategies. Further, macroecondrends may not be
favorable and could limit our ability to implemesur growth strategies in select geographies wherbave foreign operations, such
as Europe, Asia, Australia, New Zealand, and LAtirerica.

Achievement of our growth strategy requires investmin new capabilities, distribution channels, amedhnologies
worldwide. These investments may result in sharteosts without accompanying current revenues tuedefore, may be dilutive
to our earnings in the short term. In addition,mey continue to incur costs in connection with fioning our business in certain
geographic areas, including in Asia. Although wédwe that our strategy will lead to long-term gtovin revenue and profitability,
the anticipated benefits may not be fully realized.

Our ability to conduct business in international makets may be affected by legal, regulatory, politial, and economic risks.

Our ability to capitalize on growth in new interivatal markets and to maintain our current levebpérations in our existing
international markets is subject to certain risksomiated with operating in various internatiolablttions. These include, but are not
limited to:

« the burdens of complying with a variety of foreigms and regulations, including trade and labstrigtions;

e compliance with U.S. and other country laws relgtto foreign operations, including, but not linditeo, the Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act, which prohibits U.S. comganfrom making improper payments to foreign offiifor the
purpose of obtaining or retaining business, andlie Bribery Act, which prohibits U.K. and relatedmpanies from
any form of bribery;

e unexpected changes in laws, judicial processaeggulatory requirements;
e adapting to local customs and culture; and

* new tariffs or other barriers in certain interoatkl markets.
We are also subject to general political and ecaaaisks in connection with our international ogeras, including:

e political instability and terrorist attacks;

» changes in diplomatic and trade relationshipduting sanctions resulting from the current paoditisituation in Russia
and Ukraine; and

e general economic fluctuations in specific courstioe markets.

We cannot predict whether quotas, duties, taxesthar similar restrictions will be imposed by teS., the European Union,
Asia, or other countries upon the import or expdrdour products in the future, or what effect afiyn@se actions would have, if any,
on our business, results of operations, and fimhmtindition. Changes in regulatory, geopoliticai¢ial, or economic policies and
other factors may have a material adverse effecbuanbusiness in the future, or may require usxio & particular market or
significantly modify our current business practices
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A data security or privacy breach could damage oureputation and our relationships with our customers expose us to
litigation risk, and adversely affect our business.

We are dependent on information technology systenas networks, including the Internet, for a sigdfit portion of our
direct-to-consumer sales, including our e-commeoperations and retail business credit card traimacauthorization and
processing. We are also responsible for storing delating to our customers and employees and arlyhird parties for the
operation of our e-commerce websites and for thi®ws social media tools and websites we use aopaur marketing strategy. In
our normal course of business, we often collediaime and transmit certain sensitive and confidggntustomer information,
including credit card information, over public neflks. There is significant concern by consumers emgloyees over the security
of personal information transmitted over the In&trrconsumer identity theft, and user privacy. Otesfhe security measures we
currently have in place, our facilities and systeansl those of our third-party service providers nba&yvulnerable to security
breaches, acts of vandalism, computer viruses,latieg or lost data, programming and/or human erarsther Internet or email
events. Any perceived or actual electronic or pdaissecurity breach involving the misappropriatitss, or other unauthorized
disclosure of confidential or personally identifiatinformation, including penetration of our netkaecurity, whether by us or by a
third-party, could disrupt our business, severelgndge our reputation and our relationships withoostomers, expose us to risks of
litigation, fines and penalties, and liability, amelsult in deterioration in our employees' and @ugrs' confidence in us, and
adversely affect our business, results of operatiand financial condition. Since we do not conthild-party service providers and
cannot guarantee that no electronic or physicalprder break-ins and security breaches will occuthi future, any perceived or
actual unauthorized disclosure of personally idextitie information regarding our customers or wabsiisitors could harm our
reputation and credibility, reduce our e-commeree sales, impair our ability to attract websiteiteis, and reduce our ability to
attract and retain customers. As these threatdaeamd grow, we may find it necessary to makei@ant further investments to
protect data and infrastructure. In addition, as régulatory environment relating to informatiorciggty and privacy is becoming
increasingly demanding, we may also incur signifta@osts in complying with the various applicaligte, federal, and foreign laws
regarding protection of, and unauthorized disclesfr personal information.

Implementation of management information systems manegatively impact our business.

We are continually improving and upgrading our catep systems and software. For example, we aréénptocess of
implementing a new global operating and financedarting information technology system, SAP, ad p&ra multi-year plan to
integrate and upgrade our operational and finarsyatems and processes, which began in Fiscal ZDdiing Fiscal 2014, we
continued to migrate certain areas of our busit@<$AP, including global merchandise procuremenst@mer order management,
and record-to-report for our North American wholesgperations, which is scheduled to be complateeiscal 2015. During Fiscal
2015, we will also begin planning the migrationoofr European operations to SAP, which will be catgal in stages over the next
several years. We have an orderly plan to tramséioyumber of our existing legacy systems to the sgstem over the next few
years.

Implementation of a new management information esysinvolves risks and uncertainties. Any disrupdiodelays, or
deficiencies in the design or implementation ofevrsystem, such as the new global operating arahdial reporting system
currently being implemented, could result in insesdh costs, disruptions in the sourcing and shiprokotr product, and delays in
the collection of cash from our customers, as aglhave an adverse effect on our ability to timmeport our financial results, all of
which could materially adversely affect our busgjegsults of operations, and financial condition.

Our business could suffer if our computer systemsral websites are disrupted or cease to operate effeely.

We are dependent on our computer systems to recatgrocess transactions and manage and operabeigsiness, including
in designing, marketing, manufacturing, importitrgcking, and distributing our products, procesgiagments, and accounting for
and reporting results. We also utilize an automaggdenishment system to facilitate the processihgasic replenishment orders
from our Retail segment and our wholesale custonteesmovement of goods through distribution chésrend the collection of
information for planning and forecasting. In adutiti we have e-commerce and other Internet webisitBrth America, Europe,
Japan, and South Korea, and have plans for additeocommerce sites in Asia and other parts ofwbed. Given the complexity of
our business and the significant number of tramsastthat we engage in on a daily basis, it is irapee that we maintain
uninterrupted operation of our computer hardwai software systems. Despite our preventative effatir systems are vulnerable
to damage or interruption from, among other thingsgurity breaches, computer viruses, malfunctienspower outages. Any
material disruptions in our information technolagstems could have a material adverse effect obwusiness, results of operations,
and financial condition.
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The success of our business depends on our ability retain the value of our Ralph Lauren brands, tocontinue to develop
products that resonate with our existing customerand attract new customers, and to provide a seamleshopping experience
to our customers.

Our success depends on the value of our brandswamnability to consistently anticipate and respema@ustomers' demands,
preferences, and fashion trends in the designingriand production of our products, including tireference for certain products to
be manufactured in the U.S. Any failure on our gar@anticipate, identify, and respond effectivetythese consumer demands,
preferences, and trends could adversely affectpa@aeee of our products. The Ralph Lauren nametégral to our business and our
business could be adversely affected if Mr. Lagrgniblic image or reputation were to be tarnishddrchandise missteps or
unfavorable publicity, especially through socialdi@ewhich accelerates and increases the potectiglesof negative publicity, could
negatively impact the image of our brands with oustomers and could result in diminished loyaltyoto brands, which could
adversely impact our business, results of operstiand financial condition.

The success of our business also depends on olity dbi continue to develop and maintain a relialolni-channel
experience for our customers. Our business hasreydrom an in-store experience to a shopping éspee through multiple
technologies, including computers, mobile phonedlets, and other devices, as our customers haeentee increasingly
technologically savvy. We strive to offer an omhaanel shopping experience to our customers andagal media to interact with
our customers and enhance their shopping experi¢ihwoe are unable to develop and continuously mrprour customer-facing
technologies, we may not be able to provide a coiewt and consistent experience to our customerdéess of the sales channel.
This could negatively affect our ability to competéh other retailers and result in diminished litydo our brands, which could
adversely impact our business, results of operstiand financial condition.

Our business is subject to risks associated with jporting products and could suffer as a result of isreases in the price of raw
materials, freight, or labor; or a manufacturer's inability to produce our goods on time and to our secifications.

We do not own or operate any manufacturing faesitand depend exclusively on independent thirdigsarfior the
manufacture of our products. Our products are n@tufed to our specifications through arrangemeuritls over 700 foreign
manufacturers in various countries. In Fiscal 20dvker 98% of our products (by dollar value) wereduced outside the U.S.,
primarily in Asia, Europe, and Latin America. Riskierent in importing our products include:

« changes in social, political, and economic condgior terrorist acts that could result in theusion of trade from the
countries in which our manufacturers or supplieeslacated;

e the imposition of additional regulations relatitggimports or exports, and costs of complying wétvs relating to the
identification and reporting of the sources of maig used in the Company's products;

« the imposition of additional duties, taxes, angeotcharges on imports or exports;

e significant fluctuations in the cost of raw masdsi

e increases in the cost of labor, fuel, travel, aadsportation;

« disruptions of shipping and international tradaeseal by natural and man-made disasters;
» significant delays in the delivery of cargo duesézurity considerations;

e the imposition of anti-dumping or countervailingitg proceedings resulting in the potential asseasroé special
anti-dumping or countervailing duties; and

« the imposition of sanctions in the form of addii#b duties either by the U.S. or its trading parrie remedy perceived
illegal actions by national governments.

Any one of these factors could have a material emveffect on our business, results of operatiang financial condition.

In addition, the inability of a manufacturer to glorders of our products in a timely manner or teetmour strict quality
standards could cause us to miss the deliveryrdgtérements of our customers for those items, wvb@uld result in cancellation of
orders, refusal to accept deliveries, or a subistiarduction in purchase prices, any of which dduhve a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations, and finanmisldition. Prices of raw materials used to manuf@cbur products may also
fluctuate, and increases in prices of such raw nadéecould have a material adverse effect on ost of sales. Furthermore, the cost
of labor at many of our third-party manufacturess been increasing significantly and, as the midtilss in developing countries
such as China continues to grow, it is unlikelyt tach cost pressure will abate. The cost of tramapon
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remains high as well, and it is unlikely that swdst pressure will abate if oil prices remain etedeor rise. We may not be able to
offset such increases in raw materials, freightabor costs through pricing actions or other means

Our business could suffer if we fail to comply withlabor laws or if one of our manufacturers fails touse acceptable labor or
environmental practices.

We are subject to labor laws governing relationshipgth employees, including minimum wage requiretagiovertime,
working conditions, and citizenship requirementmpliance with these laws may lead to increasedscasd operational
complexity and may increase our exposure to goventah investigations or litigation.

In addition, we require our licensing partners amdependent manufacturers to operate in compliavitte applicable laws
and regulations. While our internal and vendor afieg guidelines promote ethical business practiaed our employees
periodically visit and monitor the operations ofr @adependent manufacturers, we do not controletmanufacturers or their labor
practices. The violation of labor, environmental,other laws by an independent manufacturer usedsbgr one of our licensing
partners, or the divergence of an independent maatwrer's or licensing partner's labor or environtakepractices from those
generally accepted as ethical or appropriate irLtl®, could interrupt or otherwise disrupt thepshént of finished products to us or
damage our reputation. Any of these events, in, ttonld have a material adverse effect on our fssinresults of operations, and
financial condition.

Our business could be negatively impacted by anynfancial instability of our customers.

We sell our wholesale merchandise primarily to majepartment stores across North America, Europé&,Australia, and
Latin America and extend credit based on an evialuaif each wholesale customer's financial condjtigsually without requiring
collateral. However, the financial difficulties af wholesale customer could cause us to limit aniakte our business with that
customer. We may also assume more credit riskimglab that customer's receivables. During Fisdl4, sales to our largest
wholesale customer, Macy's, accounted for appraeina 2% of total net revenues. Further, salesuothree largest wholesale
customers, including Macy's, comprised approxinya2&s of total net revenues for Fiscal 2014, anustituted approximately 35%
of our gross trade accounts receivable outstanaingf March 29, 2014. Our inability to collect oardrade accounts receivable
from any one of these customers could have a mahtElverse effect on our business, results of ¢ipes and financial condition.
See Item 1 —Business — Wholesale Credit Contlol.

Uncertain economic conditions could have a negativienpact on our major customers, suppliers, and leners, which in turn
could materially adversely affect our business, redts of operations, and financial condition.

The uncertain state of the global economy contirtaémpact businesses around the world. The cughkaital political and
economic environments have resulted in continueti@mic unpredictability in the U.S., Europe, andaA#\lthough we believe that
our cash provided by operations and available ming capacity under our credit facilities will pride us with sufficient liquidity
through the current global economic uncertaintg, ithpact of economic conditions on our major cusisnsuppliers, and lenders
and their ability to access global capital marlktsnot be predicted. The inability of major mantdaers to ship our products could
impair our ability to meet the delivery date reguients of our customers. Deterioration in globaddficial markets could affect our
ability to access sources of liquidity to provid® bur future cash needs, increase the cost offauye financing, or cause our
lenders to be unable to meet their funding commitiheinder our credit facilities. A disruption inetlability of our significant
customers to access liquidity could cause serigersigtions or an overall deterioration of their im@sses which could lead to a
significant reduction in their future orders of quoducts and the inability or failure on their {par meet their payment obligations to
us, any of which could have a material adversecetfe our business, results of operations, ancdhéiad condition.

Our profitability may decline as a result of increasing pressure on margins.

Our industry is subject to significant pricing peee caused by many factors, including intense etitign and a highly
promotional environment, consolidation in the reiradustry, pressure from retailers to reduce tbst< of products, and changes in
consumer spending patterns. These factors may caugereduce our sales prices to retailers andwoars, which could cause our
gross margin to decline if we are unable to appadgly manage inventory levels and/or otherwisesedffprice reductions with
comparable reductions in our costs. If our saléseprdecline and we fail to sufficiently reduce quoduct costs or operating
expenses, our profitability will decline. This cdliave a material adverse effect on our businesslts of operations, and financial
condition. In addition, changes in our customearutel, and geographic sales mix could have a negiatipact on our profitability.
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Our business is exposed to domestic and foreign eancy fluctuations.

We generally purchase our products in U.S. Dolldmsvever, we source most of our products overseas result, the cost of
these products may be affected by changes in the v the relevant currencies. Changes in currexcpange rates may also affect
the U.S. Dollar value of the foreign currency deimated prices at which our international businessdisproducts. These foreign
currencies primarily include the Euro, the Japanése, the Hong Kong Dollar, the South Korean Wdrg €anadian Dollar, the
Swiss Franc, the British Pound Sterling, and thetfglian Dollar. Our international expansion wiltiease our exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations. Although we hedge certaipasures to changes in foreign currency exchangs ratsing in the ordinary
course of business, we cannot fully anticipateoflbur currency exposures and therefore foreigmetuy fluctuations may have a
material adverse impact on our business, resuligpefations, and financial condition. In additidactors that could impact the
effectiveness of our hedging activities include tudatility of currency markets, the accuracy ofdfoasted transactions, and the
availability of hedging instruments. As such, o@dbing activities may not completely mitigate thepact of foreign currency
fluctuations on our results of operations. See |fem "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results
of Operations— Market Risk Managemeht

Our trademarks and other intellectual property rights may not be adequately protected outside the U.S.

We believe that our trademarks, intellectual propemd other proprietary rights are extremely imgot to our success and
our competitive position. We devote substantialoveses to the establishment and protection of cademarks and
anti-counterfeiting activities worldwide. Howevesignificant counterfeiting of our products contisuyend in the course of our
international expansion we have experienced cdsflidth various third parties that have acquirecclaimed ownership rights to
some trademarks that include Polo and/or a repratsem of a polo player astride a horse, or otheewiave contested our rights to
our trademarks. We have in the past resolved cedfaihese conflicts through both legal action aedotiated settlements, none of
which, we believe, has had a material impact onresults of operations or financial condition. Vésmeot guarantee that the actions
we have taken to establish and protect our tradesmamd other proprietary rights will be adequatg@revent counterfeiting or a
material adverse effect on our business or brarigi®ig from imitation of our products by otherstorprevent others from seeking to
block sales of our products as a violation of treelémarks and proprietary rights of others. Alberé can be no assurance that
others will not assert rights in, or ownershiptedidemarks and other proprietary rights of ourthat we will be able to successfully
resolve these types of conflicts to our satisfactoat all. In addition, the laws of certain fapeicountries do not protect trademarks
or other proprietary rights to the same extent agh& laws of the U.S. and, as a result, our etéllal property may be more
vulnerable and difficult to protect in such couesi See ltem 1 —Business— Trademarks, and Item 3 — LLegal Proceedings.

Fluctuations in our tax obligations and effective &x rate may result in volatility of our operating results.

We are subject to income taxes in many U.S. antdioefioreign jurisdictions. We record tax expenasdd on our estimates of
future payments, which include reserves for ungeittx positions in multiple tax jurisdictions. Any one time, multiple tax years
are subject to audit by various taxing authoritiEise results of these audits and negotiations teiting authorities may affect the
ultimate settlement of these issues. In additiba,tax laws and regulations in the countries whereoperate may change or there
may be changes in interpretation and enforcemeekisting tax laws, which could materially affeectrancome tax expense in our
consolidated financial statements. As a resultewgect that throughout the year there could be iaggeariability in our quarterly
tax rates as events occur and exposures are ex@luataddition, our effective tax rate in a giarancial statement period may be
materially impacted by changes in the mix and lesekarnings by jurisdiction or by changes to émgstaccounting rules or
regulations.

We have significant undistributed earnings heldby subsidiaries outside the U.S. Most of our st cash equivalents and
short-term investments are held outside of the 8. are considered to be permanently reinvestedcifently intend to reinvest
these funds in order to fund strategic initiativegprking capital requirements, and debt repaymebtsth third-party and
intercompany) of such foreign subsidiaries. Anyufet repatriation of such amounts to the U.S. caelsllt in a significant
incremental tax liability in the period in whichetldecision to repatriate is made.

Our Company has an exclusive relationship with cegin customers for some of our products. The loss aignificant decline in
business of these customers could negatively impamir business.

We have exclusive relationships with certain cugisrfor the distribution of some of our productsir@rrangement with
these companies makes us dependent on those casipiamancial and operational health for the sdlsuch products. The loss of
these relationships could have an adverse effeotioliVholesale business.
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Our business could suffer as a result of consolidians, liquidations, restructurings, and other owneship changes in the retail
industry.

Several of our department store customers, incgudome under common ownership, account for a $ogmif portion of our
wholesale net sales. A substantial portion of safesur licensed products by our domestic licengagners are also made to our
largest department store customers. During Fisghdl 2sales to our largest wholesale customer, Maagtounted for approximately
12% of total net revenues. Further, sales to awetkargest wholesale customers, including Macgs)prised approximately 25% of
total net revenues for Fiscal 2014, and constitutpdroximately 35% of our gross trade accountsivabke outstanding as of
March 29, 2014. There can be no assurance thablideisons, restructurings, reorganizations, oreotbwnership changes in the
department store sector will not have a materiakesk effect on our wholesale business.

We typically do not enter into long-term agreemenith our customers. Instead, we enter into a nunolbgurchase order
commitments with our customers for each of our pobdines every season. A decision by the contrglbwner of a group of stores
or any other significant customer, whether motidaby competitive conditions, financial difficultieer otherwise, to decrease or
eliminate the amount of merchandise purchased @remr our licensing partners or to change theirmeanf doing business with us
or our licensing partners or their new strategid aperational initiatives, including their contitifocus on further development of
their "private label" initiatives, could have a midl adverse effect on our business, results efains, and financial condition.

Certain legal proceedings, regulatory matters, anéccounting changes could adversely impact our regalof operations.

We are involved in certain legal proceedings argllegory matters and are subject from time to timevarious claims
involving alleged breach of contract claims, irgetual property and other related claims, eschedtare unclaimed property, credit
card fraud, security breaches in certain of ouaikedtore information systems, employment issuessamer matters, and other
litigation. Certain of these lawsuits and clainfsgécided adversely to us or settled by us, coaflilt in material liability to our
Company or have a negative impact on our reputatiacelations with our employees, customers, lieessor other third parties. In
addition, regardless of the outcome of any litigatdr regulatory proceedings, such proceedingsdo@sdult in substantial costs and
may require our Company to devote substantial imgtresources to defend itself. Further, changgswernmental regulations both
in the U.S. and in other countries where we contwsiness operations could have an adverse impaoupbusiness, results of
operations, and financial condition. See Item 3lkedal Proceedindsfor further discussion of our Company's legal tevat

In addition, we are subject to changes in accogntines and interpretations. The Financial Accoumibtandards Board is
currently in the process of amending a number atieny accounting standards governing a varietyaiias. Certain of these
proposed standards, particularly the proposed atdngoverning accounting for leases, if and whéecéfe, would likely have a
material impact on our consolidated financial steats. See Note 4 to the accompanying audited tdated financial statements
for further discussion of proposed amendments teeatiaccounting standards.

Our results of operations could be affected by nanal events in the locations in which we or our custmers or suppliers
operate.

We have operations, including retail, distributiand warehousing operations, in locations subgeagtural disasters, such as
severe weather and geological events, that costdigi our operations. In addition, our supplierd enstomers also have operations
in these locations and could experience similaugisons. The occurrence of natural events mayltr@ssudden disruptions in the
business operations of the local economies affeesdvell as of the regional and global economliesaddition, our business is
affected by unseasonable weather conditions, ssclexéended periods of unseasonably warm tempesainréhe winter or
unseasonably cold temperatures in the summer. 8attiral events, including unseasonable weatheritoms, could result in
decreased demand for our products and disruptioosii sales channels and manufacturing and disivibbmetworks, which could
have a material adverse effect on our businessltsesf operations, and financial condition.

Our business could suffer if we need to replace mafacturers or distribution centers.

We compete with other companies for the productigpacity of our manufacturers. Some of these cdtopethave greater
financial and other resources than we have, angl mhay have an advantage in securing productioncigip# we experience a
significant increase in demand, or if an existingnufacturer of ours must be replaced, we may havexpand our third-party
manufacturing capacity. We cannot guarantee thigt additional capacity will be available when raegdi on terms that are
acceptable to us. See Item 1 -Business— Sourcing, Production and QualityWe enter into a number of purchase order
commitments each season specifying a time for deliimethod of payment, design and quality speatifims, and other standard
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industry provisions, but do not have long-term cacts with any manufacturer. None of the manufactuwe use produce our
products exclusively.

In addition, we rely on a number of owned and iredetently-operated distribution facilities around tiorld to warehouse and
ship products to our customers and perform othetea@ logistic services. As such, our ability toanthe needs of our customers
depends on the proper operation of these distdbutienters. If any of our distribution centers welesed or were to become
inoperable for any reason, we could experiencebatantial loss of inventory, disruption of delivesito our customers and our retail
stores, increased costs, and longer lead timesiatst with the distribution of products during teriod that would be required to
reopen or replace the facility. These disruptionsald have a material adverse effect on our busjnessilts of operations, and
financial condition.

The voting shares of our Company's stock are concemated in one majority stockholder.

As of March 29, 2014, Mr. Ralph Lauren, or entitestrolled by the Lauren family, held approximgt8il% of the voting
power of the outstanding common stock of our Corgipkfhr. Lauren also serves as our Chairman of thar8and Chief Executive
Officer, David Lauren is a director on our Boarddave employ other members of the Lauren familgnirtime to time, we may
have other business dealings with Mr. Lauren, membéthe Lauren family, or entities affiliated tviMr. Lauren or the Lauren
family. As a result of his stock ownership and gosiin our Company, Mr. Lauren has the abilityetercise significant control over
our business, including, without limitation, (i)etlelection of our Class B common stock directoading separately as a class and
(ii) any action requiring the approval of our stholders, including the adoption of amendments tocautificate of incorporation
and the approval of mergers or sales of all ortsuiiglly all of our assets.

The trading prices of our securities periodically nay rise or fall based on the accuracy of predictias of our earnings or other
financial performance.

Our business planning process is designed to magioiir long-term strength, growth, and profitaijlénd not to achieve an
earnings target in any particular fiscal quartee Mélieve that this longer-term focus is in thet lie®rests of our Company and our
stockholders. At the same time, however, we reaegtiiat, from time to time, it may be helpful t@yide investors with guidance
as to our quarterly and annual forecast of nessahel earnings. While we generally expect to pmvigdates to our guidance when
we report our results each fiscal quarter, we assneresponsibility to update any of our forwarddimg statements at such times
or otherwise. If, and when, we announce actuallteshat differ from those that have been predidtgdus, outside analysts, or
others, the market price of our securities couldabeersely affected. Investors who rely on thesediptions when making
investment decisions with respect to our securdi@so at their own risk. We take no responsibfiityany losses suffered as a result
of such changes in the prices of our securities.

We rely on our licensing partners to preserve thealue of our licenses.

The risks associated with our own products alsdyafgpour licensed products in addition to any nembf possible risks
specific to a licensing partner's business, inclgdisks associated with a particular licensingrgats ability to:

e obtain capital;

e manage its labor relations;

e maintain relationships with its suppliers;

¢ manage its credit and bankruptcy risks effectivahd

e maintain relationships with its customers.

Although a number of our license agreements proloibi licensing partners from entering into licenwgsarrangements with
our competitors, our licensing partners generally @ot precluded from offering, under other non-petitor brands, the types of
products covered by their license agreements wsthAusubstantial portion of sales of our producgsoor domestic licensing
partners are also made to our largest customersleWlke have significant control over our licensipgrtners' products and
advertising, we rely on our licensing partners famong other things, operational and financial mnbver their businesses.
Changes in management, reduced sales of licensetliqgis, poor execution, or financial difficultiestiwrespect to any of our
licensing partners could adversely affect our reresn both directly from reduced licensing revenegeived and indirectly from
reduced sales of our other products. See ltem Busihess— Our Licensing Segmeht.
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Failure to maintain licensing partners could harm ar business.

Although we believe that we could replace our éxisticensing partners in most circumstances, dessary, our inability to
do so for any period of time could adversely affaat revenues, both directly from reduced licenseggenue received and indirectly
from reduced sales of our other products. See ltem"Business— Our Licensing Segmeht.

Risks Relating to the Industry in Which We Compete

The downturn in the global economy may continue taffect consumer purchases of discretionary items ahluxury retail
products, which could adversely affect our businessesults of operations, and financial condition.

The industries in which we operate are cyclicalnMa&conomic factors outside of our control affdw tevel of consumer
spending in the apparel, cosmetic, fragrance, aocggewelry, watch, and home product industiilesluding, among others:

« general business conditions;

e economic downturns;

e employment levels;

¢ downturns in the stock market;

e interest rates;

e the housing market;

e consumer debt levels;

< the availability of consumer credit;
* increases in fuel prices;

e taxation; and

* consumer confidence in future economic conditions.

Consumer purchases of discretionary items and yuxatail products, including our products, tend decline during
recessionary periods and at other times when diggp@sncome is lower. A downturn or an uncertaitiamk in the economies in
which we, or our licensing partners, sell our prddunay materially adversely affect our businessylts of operations, and financial
condition. See Item 7 —Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdition and Results of Operations — Global
Economic Developmeritfor further discussion.

The domestic and international political situatialso affects consumer confidence. The threat, ealror escalation of
terrorism, military conflicts, or other hostilitieuld lead to a decrease in consumer spendingretydmaterially adversely affect
our business, results of operations, and finarciatition.

We face intense competition worldwide in the market in which we operate.

We face intense competition from other domestic faneign fashion-oriented apparel, footwear, acogssnd casual apparel
producers, some of which may be significantly larged more diversified and may have greater firgreid marketing resources
than us. We compete with these companies primanilthe basis of:

e anticipating and responding to changing consureerahds in a timely manner;

e creating and maintaining favorable brand recognitioyalty, and a reputation for quality;

< developing and maintaining innovative, high-quafitoducts in sizes, colors, and styles that apjpeabnsumers;
e appropriately sourcing raw materials at cost-eiecprices;

e appropriately pricing products;
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e anticipating and maintaining proper inventory lisye

< providing strong and effective marketing support;

e retaining and recruiting key employees;

e creating an acceptable value proposition for fretstomers;

e ensuring product availability and optimizing supphain and distribution efficiencies with manufaetrrs and retailers;
e obtaining sufficient retail floor space and effeetpresentation of our products at retail stores;

e maintaining and growing market share; and

e protecting our intellectual property.

We also face increasing competition from compasidBng apparel, accessories, home, and other opmduct categories
through the Internet. Although we sell our produttsough the Internet, increased competition armhmational activity in the
worldwide apparel, accessory, and home productsiniéis from Internet-based competitors could redoge sales, prices, and
margins and adversely affect our business, resfiliperations, and financial condition.

Any increased competition, or our failure to addglyaaddress any of these competitive factors, c¢aabult in reduced
market share or sales, which could adversely affecbusiness, results of operations, and finardadition.

The success of our business depends on our abilityrespond to constantly changing fashion and rethirends and consumer
demands in a timely manner.

The industries in which we operate have historjch#ien subject to rapidly changing fashion tremits@nsumer preferences.
Our success depends in large part on our abilitgriginate and define fashion product and home yebdrends, as well as to
anticipate, gauge, and react to changing consuraeradds in a timely manner. Our products must apeal broad range of
consumers worldwide whose preferences cannot taicped with certainty and are subject to rapid derinfluenced by fashion
trends, current economic conditions, and weatheditions, among other factors. We cannot assurevibawill be able to continue
to develop appealing styles or successfully messtemtly changing consumer demands in the futaraddition, we cannot assure
that any new products or brands that we introduidlebe successfully received by consumers. Anyufalon our part to anticipate,
identify, and respond effectively to changing cansu demands and fashion trends could adverselgtafétail and consumer
acceptance of our products and leave us with aauiied amount of unsold inventory or missed oppaittes. If that occurs, we may
be forced to rely on markdowns or promotional sédedispose of excess, slow-moving inventory, whitdty harm our business and
impair the image of our brands. Conversely, if welerestimate consumer demand for our productsmaifufacturers fail to supply
quality products in a timely manner, we may expeeinventory shortages, which may result in uedilbrders, negatively impact
customer relationships, diminish brand loyalty, aedult in lost revenues. Any of these outcomeddcbave a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations,fewaghcial condition. See Item 1 —BUsiness — Sourcing, Production and Quality.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.
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We lease space for our retail stores, showroomehwases, and offices in various domestic andnat@nal locations. We
do not own any real property except for our disttitin facilities in Greensboro and High Point, No@arolina and a parcel of land
adjacent to the Greensboro facility, as well asifrestores in Southampton and Easthampton, New ,Yarid Nantucket,

Massachusetts.

We believe that our existing facilities are wellintained, in good operating condition, and are adée for our present level

of operations.

The following table sets forth information relatit@our key properties as of March 29, 2014:

Approximate

Current Lease Term

Location Use Sq. Ft. Expiration

Greensboro, NC Wholesale and retail distribution 1,500,000 N/A - Owned
facility

North Pendleton Street, High Point, NC  Retail e-cara call center and 805,000 N/A - Owned
distribution facility

Eagle Hill Drive, High Point, NC Wholesale distribri facility 343,000 December 31, 2022

625 Madison Avenue, NYC Corporate offices and shom® 412,000 December 31, 2019

650 Madison Avenue, NYC Executive and corporateceff 270,000 December 31, 2024
design studio, and showrooms

Lyndhurst, NJ Corporate and retail administrative 178,000 December 31, 2019
offices

550 7th Avenue, NYC Corporate offices, design studia 104,000 December 31, 2018
Women's showrooms

Geneva, Switzerland European corporate offices 107,00 June 22, 2027

Gateway Office, Hong Kong Asia corporate offices 56,0 October 31, 2015

Manhattan Place, Hong Kong Asia corporate and sograifices 46,000 October 31, 2016

London, UK Retail flagship store 40,000 July 4, 2021

711 5th Avenue, NY® Retail flagship store 38,000 June 30, 2029

888 Madison Avenue, NYC Retail flagship store 37,900 ugiést 31, 2027

750 N. Michigan Avenue, Chicago Retail flagship stor 37,500 November 14, 2017

867 Madison Avenue, NYC Retail flagship store 27,700 ec&mber 31, 2023

Paris, France Retail flagship store 25,700 May 318201

Tokyo, Japan Retail flagship store 25,000 Decembe320

Lee Gardens, Hong Kof® Retail flagship store 20,200 August 16, 2022

444 N. Rodeo Drive, Beverly Hills Retail flagshimpst 19,400 September 30, 2033

@ Expected to open in Fall 2014.

As of March 29, 2014, we operated 433 retail staxealing approximately 3 million square feet. Afdicipate that we will be
able to extend our retail store leases, as weaha@se leases for our non-retail facilities, whigipiee in the near future on satisfactory
terms or relocate to desirable alternate locatidfesgenerally lease our freestanding retail stesitial periods ranging from 5 to

15 years, with renewal options.
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Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings.
Wathne Imports Litigation

On August 19, 2005, Wathne Imports, Ltd. ("Wathnelr then domestic licensee for luggage and haygjlided a complaint
in the U.S. District Court in the Southern DistridtNew York against the Company and Mr. Ralph leayour Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, asserting, among other thingslefal trademark law violations, breach of confratach of obligations of good
faith and fair dealing, fraud, and negligent misessgntation. The complaint originally sought, amotiger relief, injunctive relief,
compensatory damages in excess of $250 million, mmitive damages of not less than $750 million. &&ptember 13, 2005,
Wathne withdrew this complaint from the U.S. DistrCourt and filed a complaint in the Supreme Cafithe State of New York,
New York County, making substantially the samegat®ons and claims (excluding the federal traden@akms), and seeking
similar relief. On February 1, 2006, the Court geanour motion to dismiss all of the causes ofaatincluding the cause of action
against Mr. Lauren, except for breach of contratdted claims, and denied Wathne's motion for &npirgary injunction. Following
some discovery, we moved for summary judgment erréimaining claims and Wathne cross-moved for gdastimmary judgment.
In an April 11, 2008 Decision and Order, the Carented our summary judgment motion to dismiss robgte claims against us,
and denied Wathne's cross-motion for summary judgm®athne appealed the dismissal of its claimthéoAppellate Division of
the Supreme Court. Following a hearing on May 1% the Appellate Division issued a Decision armdeD on June 9, 2009
which, in large part, affirmed the lower Court'ding. Since then, Wathne has made various attetopgpand the scope of its claim
and the damages sought by making various motiothparsuing several intermediate appeals.

At this time, Wathne's principle remaining claintligt we required that Wathne discontinue the fiskeoPolo Sport brand on
handbags in violation of its contract. A trial dét&s not been scheduled and we intend to contmeeritest the remaining claims
and dispute any alleged damages in this lawsudreigsly. Management does not expect that the uiémesolution of this matter
will have a material adverse effect on our consaéid financial statements.

Other Matters
From time to time, we are involved in litigationther legal claims, and proceedings involving mattassociated with or
incidental to our business, including, among ottiéngs, matters involving credit card fraud, tradeknand other intellectual
property, licensing, and employee relations. Weéebelthat the resolution of currently pending matigill not individually or in the
aggregate have a material adverse effect on owotidated financial statements. However, our assessof the current litigation or

other legal claims could change in light of thecdigery of facts not presently known or determinatidy judges, juries, or other
finders of fact which are not in accord with marmagat's evaluation of the possible liability or artte of such litigation or claims.

Iltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Skbwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities.

Our Class A common stock is traded on the New Ridck Exchange ("NYSE") under the symbol "RL." Taokowing table
sets forth the high and low sales prices per sbfiour Class A common stock, as reported on the BI'C®mposite Tape, and the
cash dividends per common share declared for eaattegly period in our two most recent fiscal years

Market Price of
Concw:rlnaoss étock Dgic\gzzd;er
High Low Common Share
Fiscal 2014:
First Quarter $ 192.03 $ 165.33 $ 0.40
Second Quarter 189.80 161.98 0.40
Third Quarter 181.07 157.01 0.45
Fourth Quarter 178.59 146.00 0.45
Fiscal 2013:
First Quarter $ 179.00 $ 13448 $ 0.40
Second Quarter 164.28 134.29 0.40
Third Quarter 165.41 144.14 0.40
Fourth Quarter 179.90 146.58 0.40

Since 2003, we have maintained a regular quartash dividend program on our common stock. On Mhy2D12, our
Board of Directors approved an increase to ourtqugrcash dividend on our common stock from $(@20share to $0.40 per share.
On November 5, 2013, our Board of Directors appdoma additional increase to the Company's quarieabh dividend on its
common stock from $0.40 per share to $0.45 perstgproximately $153 million was recorded as aurtitn to retained earnings
during Fiscal 2014 in connection with dividends ldesd.

As of May 9, 2014, there were 819 holders of reafrdur Class A common stock and 6 holders of madrour Class B
common stock. All of our outstanding shares of €lBscommon stock are owned by Mr. Ralph Lauren,ii@ten of the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer, and entit@mtrolled by the Lauren family, and are convéetiat any time into shares of
Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis. Dutiegfourth quarter of Fiscal 2014, Mr. Lauren cemed 3.0 million shares of
Class B common stock into an equal number of shafr€dass A common stock pursuant to the termdefgecurity, which were
subsequently sold in a block trade. During Fisd@l3 the Lauren Family, L.L.C., a limited liabilisompany managed by the
children of Mr. Lauren, converted 950,000 share€lats B common stock into an equal number of shair€lass A common stock
pursuant to the terms of the security, which wetesequently sold on the open market as part oédgbermined, systematic trading

plan.

The following table sets forth repurchases of shafeour Class A common stock during the fiscalrtpraended March 29,
2014:

Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Average Shares Purchased as Value of Shares
Total Number Price Part of Publicly That May Yet be
of Shares Paid per Announced Plans or  Purchased Under the
Purchased Share Programs Plans or Programs?
(millions)
December 29, 2013 to January 25, 2014 — $ — — % 230
January 26, 2014 to February 22, 2014 513,364 155.83 13,364 650
February 23, 2014 to March 29, 2014 437,655 159.76 437,655 580
951,019 951,019

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

M As of March 29, 2014, the remaining availabilityden our Class A common stock repurchase program was

approximately $580 million, reflecting the Februdry2014 approval by our Board of Directors to expthe program by
up to an additional $500 million of Class A comnsinck repurchases. Repurchases of shares of ClassmAon stock

are subject to overall business and market comditio
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The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return (stock price appreciation plugdénds) on our Class A
common stock to the cumulative total return of $#tendard & Poor's 500 Index and a peer group infleompanies that we believe
are closest to ours (the "Peer Group") for theqoefrom March 27, 2009, the last trading day of @009 fiscal year, through
March 29, 2014, the last trading day of our 201stdl year. Our Peer Group consists of Burberry @rBuC, Coach, Inc.,
Compagnie Financiére Richemont SA, The Estée La@benpanies Inc., Hermes International, The Jonesuginc., Kering,
Luxottica Group, LVMH, PVH Corp., Tiffany & Co., Tbs S.p.A., and V.F. Corporation. All calculatidios foreign companies in
our Peer Group are performed using the local foregue of such companies. The returns are cadclilat assuming an investment
in the Class A common stock and each index of $ftO®arch 28, 2009, with all dividends reinvested.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Ralph Lauren Corporation, the S&P 500 Ingad a Peer Group

£500

£400

$300

$200

F100

'iﬁ{] ] | ] | |
(03/28/09 0403710 04/02/11 03/31/12 03/30/13 03/29/14
Ralph Lauren Corporation —#ll— S&P 500

—&— Peer Group

*$100 invested on 3/28/09 in stock or 3/31/09 inradex, including reinvestment of dividends. Indeculated on a month-end
basis.

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

See the Thdex to Consolidated Financial Statements and fupgntary Informatiofi and specifically Selected Financial
Informatior’ appearing at the end of this Annual Report omna0-K. This selected financial data should be r@adonjunction
with Item 7 — 'Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financ@dition and Results of Operatidrend Item 8 — Financial
Statements and Supplementary Dateeluded in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Histal results may not be indicative of future
results.
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Iltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations.

The following management's discussion and analysinancial condition and results of operationMP&A™) should be
read together with our audited consolidated finanstatements and footnotes, which are includedhis Annual Report on
Form 10-K. We utilize a 52-53 week fiscal year eigdion the Saturday closest to March 31. As suckcaFi2014 ended on
March 29, 2014 and was a 52-week period; FiscaB28tded on March 30, 2013 and was a 52-week pexiatifFiscal 2012 ended
on March 31, 2012 and was a 52-week period. F@&b will end on March 28, 2015 and will also be2aweek period.

INTRODUCTION

MD&A is provided as a supplement to the accompapyandited consolidated financial statements andnfiies to help
provide an understanding of our results of openatidinancial condition, and liquidity. MD&A is ocagrized as follows:

e Overview. This section provides a general descriptioowfbusiness, current trends and outlook, and arsugnof
our financial performance for Fiscal 2014. In aiddif this section includes a discussion of receawetbpments and
transactions affecting comparability that we bedieare important in understanding our results ofrajmns and
financial condition, and in anticipating futurenos.

* Results of operations. This section provides an analysis of our resaftoperations for Fiscal 2014 as compared to
Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2013 as compared to Fi€?.2

e Financial condition and liquidity. This section provides a discussion of our foahcondition and liquidity as of
March 29, 2014, which includes (i) an analysis of financial condition compared to the prior fisgalar-end; (ii) an
analysis of changes in our cash flows for Fiscdl2and Fiscal 2013 as compared to the respective figcal year;
(i) an analysis of our liquidity, including commastock repurchases, payments of dividends, owtanding debt and
covenant compliance, and the availability under aredit facilities; and (iv) a summary of our cautual and other
obligations as of March 29, 2014.

* Market risk management. This section discusses how we manage our pigloseires related to foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates, and our investrasriéMarch 29, 2014.

« Critical accounting policies. This section discusses accounting policies idensd to be important to our results of
operations and financial condition, which requiigngicant judgment and estimation in their applioa. In addition,
our significant accounting policies are summarized\ote 3 to the accompanying audited consoliddiedncial
statements.

* Recently issued accounting standardg.his section discusses the potential impaatwrreported results of operations
and financial condition of certain accounting stauis that have been recently issued or proposed.

OVERVIEW
Our Business

Our Company is a global leader in the design, mamgeand distribution of premium lifestyle prodscincluding men's,
women's, and children's apparel, accessories,ainags, and home furnishings. Our long-standingtagipm and distinctive image
have been consistently developed across an exgandimber of products, brands, sales channels, rdechational markets. Our
brand names include Ralph Lauren, Ralph LaureneCidin, Purple Label, Black Label, Polo, Polo Rdlaturen, Blue Label, RRL,
RLX Ralph Lauren, Lauren Ralph Lauren, Ralph Laugdnidrenswear, Denim & Supply Ralph Lauren, Chas] Club Monaco,
among others.

We classify our businesses into three segmentsilé¥hle, Retail, and Licensing. Our Wholesale bissinehich represented
approximately 47% of our Fiscal 2014 net revenaessists of sales made principally to major deparinstores and specialty stores
around the world. Our Retail business, which regmesd approximately 51% of our Fiscal 2014 netmees, consists of sales made
directly to consumers through our integrated rethinnel, which includes our retail stores aroumal world; concession-based
shop-within-shops located in Asia, Australia, anddpe; and our retail e-commerce channel in NomteAca, Europe, and Asia.
Our Licensing business, which represented apprdeimna2% of our Fiscal 2014 net revenues, considtsrayalty-based
arrangements under which we license to unrelatiedi prarties the right to use our various trademanksonnection
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with the manufacture and sale of designated pradiseich as apparel, eyewear, and fragrances, aifisdegeographic areas for
specified periods. Approximately 36% of our Fis2all4 net revenues were earned in internationabnsgoutside of the U.S. See
Note 22 to the accompanying audited consolidatednfiial statements for a summary of net revenuepgrtable segment and
geographic location.

Our business is typically seasonal, with higheelswf wholesale sales in our second and fourthitegsaand higher retail
sales in our second and third quarters. These dreesult primarily from the timing of seasonal wésdle shipments and key
vacation travel, back-to-school, and holiday shoggieriods in our Retail segment.

Current Trends and Outlook

Although the global economy has shown signs of owement, expectations of modest growth reflect asonsd
uncertainty. The global economic environment cargdto negatively impact consumer confidence, wimicturn influences the
level of spending on discretionary items. Additibyyaadverse weather conditions, particularly ire tb.S., have resulted in a
challenging spring selling season for many retsil&s a result of these factors, consumer retaifi¢rremains relatively weak and
inconsistent, which has led to a more promotiomsfirenment due to increased competition and a éesiroffset traffic declines
with increased levels of conversion. Certain of oetail operations have experienced similar dynamiehich vary across the
geographic regions and businesses in which we tgpdfahe global macroeconomic environment remaiolgttile or worsens, the
constrained level of worldwide consumer spending) modified consumption behavior may continue toehawnegative effect on our
sales, inventory levels, and operating margin st&li 2015.

We will continue to monitor these risks and evaduaihd adjust our operating strategies and cost geament opportunities to
mitigate the related impact on our results of opena, while remaining focused on the long-termvgto of our business and
protecting the value of our brand.

For a detailed discussion of significant risk fastthat have the potential to cause our actualtseegudiffer materially from
our expectations, see Part |, Item 1A Risk Factor$ included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Summary of Financial Performance
Results of Operations

In Fiscal 2014, we reported net revenues of $7BIB@N, net income of $776 million, and net incomer diluted share of
$8.43. This compares to net revenues of $6.94bijlhet income of $750 million, and net income diuted share of $8.00 in
Fiscal 2013.

Our operating performance for Fiscal 2014 refleatexeknue growth of 7.3% on a reported basis an®l 708 a constant
currency basis, as increased revenues from ouresald business in the Americas and our retail bases across all of our major
geographies were partially offset by lower reveninem our wholesale businesses in Europe and Asiayell as net unfavorable
foreign currency effects. Our revenue growth fachl 2014 also reflected several changes to oundsss including revenues from
the previously licensed Chaps Menswear BusinessAastialia and New Zealand Business (sRecent Developmetfitfor further
discussion), and incremental revenues from cepagriously licensed businesses in Latin America tere acquired in June 2012.
These increases in revenue were partially offseahbywind-down of our Rugby-branded retail operaidargely during the second
half of Fiscal 2013. Our gross margin declined 138is points basis points to 57.9% during Fiscdl42@rimarily due to the
inclusion of the Chaps Menswear Business and tfeevarable impact of foreign currency. SG&A expenseseased during Fiscal
2014 due to incremental costs associated with newglysitioned operations, including the Chaps Mea@wBusiness and the
Australia and New Zealand Business, and costs ppasti our business growth and continued investmientsur strategic growth
initiatives and infrastructure.

Net income increased by $26 million in Fiscal 2@k4compared to Fiscal 2013, primarily reflecting1® million decline in
our provision for income taxes, a $3 million incgean operating income, and lower other non-opegatharges. The lower income
tax provision for Fiscal 2014 was driven by a deelin our reported effective tax rate of 190 basisits, partially offset by slightly
higher pretax income. The decline in our reportéective tax rate was primarily attributable to amee tax benefits recorded during
Fiscal 2014 in connection with the settlement ¢tdaexamination and legal entity restructuring eftain of our foreign operations.
Net income per diluted share increased during F&e®4, as compared to Fiscal 2013, due to highemeome and lower weighted-
average diluted shares, driven by our share repaashover the last twelve months.

37

58 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

Financial Condition and Liquidity

We ended Fiscal 2014 in a net cash and investnmgsion (cash and cash equivalents plus short-&moh non-current
investments, less total debt) of $987 million, camgal to $1.113 billion as of the end of Fiscal 2003 decline in our net cash and
investments position was primarily due to our ukeash to support $390 million in capital expenditiassociated with our global
retail store expansion, department store renovatiowestments in our facilities, and upgradesuoglobal information technology
systems, as well as to support Class A common gteplrchases of $558 million, and to make cashddivil payments of $149
million. The decline in our net cash and investragmobsition was largely offset by our operating cfletvs and proceeds from
stock-based compensation arrangements.

We generated $907 million of cash from operatiomsng) Fiscal 2014, compared to $1.019 billion dgrkiscal 2013. The
decline in our operating cash flows primarily rekato a net unfavorable change in our working eagitring Fiscal 2014, compared
to the prior fiscal year.

Our equity increased to $4.034 billion as of Ma2&h 2014, compared to $3.785 billion as of MarchZWL3, primarily due
to our net income and the impact of stock-basedoemsation arrangements, partially offset by ounrelpases of common stock and
dividends declared during Fiscal 2014.

Recent Developments
Australia and New Zealand Licensed Operations Agitjan

In July 2013, in connection with the transitiontbé Ralph Lauren-branded apparel and accessorssess in Australia and
New Zealand (the "Australia and New Zealand Bust)ebom a licensed to a wholly-owned operation, asguired certain net
assets from Oroton Group/PRL Australia ("Orotont)d@xchange for an aggregate payment of approxign&eb million (the
"Australia and New Zealand Licensed Operations Agitjon"). Oroton was our licensee for the Austiahnd New Zealand
Business. The operating results of the acquirethbas have been consolidated in our operatingteelsaginning on July 1, 2013.

Chaps Menswear License Acquisition

In April 2013, in connection with the transition thfe North American Chaps-branded men's sportsiuesiness (the "Chaps
Menswear Business") from a licensed to a wholly-esvioperation, we entered into an agreement with \Waenaco Group, Inc.
("Warnaco"), a subsidiary of PVH Corp., to acquigztain net assets in exchange for an aggregatmerayof approximately $18
million (the "Chaps Menswear License AcquisitionWarnaco was our licensee for the Chaps MensweainBss. The operating
results of the Chaps Menswear Business have bemolaated in our operating results beginning omilA®, 2013.

Rugby Closure Plan

In October 2012, we approved a plan to wind-down Rugby brand retail operations (the "Rugby ClosBtan"). This
decision was primarily based on the results of raalysis of the brand concept, as well as an oppitytto reallocate our resources
related to these operations to support other highwt business opportunities and initiatives. Immection with the Rugby Closure
Plan, 13 of our 14 global freestanding Rugby st@med our related domestic e-commerce site locatdRugby.com were closed
during the second half of Fiscal 2013. The one irimg Rugby store was closed during Fiscal 2014 Rugby Closure Plan also
resulted in a reduction in our workforce of approately 160 employees.

Discontinuance of American Living at JCPenney
During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2012, we dedidalong with our wholesale partner J.C. Penney (@2om, Inc.
("JCPenney"), to discontinue the majority of thedurcts sold under the American Living brand credtecand exclusively sold to

JCPenney, effective for the Fall 2012 wholesaléngebeason. The discontinuance of these Amerigaimd. product lines did not
have a material impact on the Company's consolidatesegment results.
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Transactions Affecting Comparability of Results @fperations and Financial Condition

The comparability of our operating results for theee fiscal years presented herein has been edfdnt certain events,
including:

e certain pretax asset impairment and restructusimg) other charges recorded during the periods piegseA summary
of the effect of these items on pretax income fwhefiscal year is summarized below (referencéfNuges" are to the
notes to the accompanying audited consolidateddiaastatements):

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Impairments of assets (see Note 11) $ @ $ 19 $ 2
Restructuring and other charges (see Note 12) (18) 2) (1 (12)

e our acquisitions of previously licensed businesgeduding the Chaps Menswear License Acquisiiioi\pril 2013,
which resulted in a $16 million gain recorded dgrihe first quarter of Fiscal 2014; the Australia &New Zealand
Licensed Operations Acquisition in July 2013; and acquisition of the Ralph Lauren-branded busiriaskatin
America in June 2012;

« discrete income tax benefits of $10 million and $tillion recognized within our provision for inca@rtaxes during
Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013, respectively, in catiop with the settlements of two separate tax érations. During
Fiscal 2013, the tax benefit from the tax examorasettlement was more than offset by a discretenm® tax reserve
of $16 million for an interest assessment on arpré@r withholding tax; and

» the wind-down of our Rugby brand operations dutimg second half of Fiscal 2013 and the discontinaaf products
sold under the American Living brand at JCPennayamily effective for the Fall 2012 selling season.

Our "Results of Operations" discussion that follamsludes the significant changes in operating ltesarising from these
items affecting comparability. However, unusualrigeor transactions may occur in any period. Acewlyi investors and other
financial statement users should consider the tgpesents and transactions that have affectedatipgrtrends.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 2013
The following table summarizes our results of opers and expresses the percentage relationshiptteevenues of certain

financial statement captions. All percentages showtine below table and the discussion that folldhwese been calculated using
unrounded numbers.

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, $ % / bps
2014 2013 Change Change
(millions, except per share data)

Net revenues $ 7450 % 6,945 $ 505 7.3%
Cost of goods sofd (3,140) (2,789) (351) 12.6%
Gross profit 4,310 4,156 154 3.7%

Gross profit as % of net revenues 57.9% 59.8% (190 bps
Selling, general, and administrative expefies (3,142) (2,971) (171) 5.7%

SG&A expenses as % of net revenues 42.2% 42.8% (%0 bps
Amortization of intangible assets (35) (27) (8) 30.7%
Gain on acquisition of Chaps 16 — 16 NM
Impairment of assets Q) (19) 18 (93.1%)
Restructuring and other charges (18) (12) (6) 52.9%
Operating income 1,130 1,127 3 0.3%

Operating income as % of net revenues 15.2% 16.2% hpep
Foreign currency losses (8) (12) 4 (30.1%)
Interest expense (20) (22) 2 (8.7%)
Interest and other income, net 3 6 3) (38.2%)
Equity in losses of equity-method investees 9 (10) 1 (1.0%)
Income before provision for income taxes 1,096 1,089 7 0.6%
Provision for income taxes (320) (339) 19 (5.6%)

Effective tax raté) 29.2% 31.1% (190 bps)
Net income $ 776 $ 750 % 26 3.4%
Net income per common share:

Basic $ 855 $ 821 $ 0.34 4.1%
Diluted $ 843 $ 8.00 $ 0.43 5.4%

@ Includes total depreciation expense of $223 milkow $206 million for Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 20E3pectively.
(0 Effective tax rate is calculated by dividing th@yision for income taxes by income before providimnincome taxes.

NM = Not meaningful.

Net Revenues. Net revenues increased by $505 million, or 7.86$7.450 billion in Fiscal 2014 from $6.945 taiti in
Fiscal 2013. Excluding the effect of foreign cumgmet revenues increased by $552 million, or 7.9%
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Net revenues for our three business segments, lhawva discussion of the changes in each segmeitievenues from the

prior fiscal year, are provided below:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, $ %
2014 2013 Change Change
(millions)
Net Revenues:

Wholesale $ 3,486 $ 3,138 $ 348 11.1%
Retail 3,798 3,625 173 4.8%
Licensing 166 182 (16) (9.0%)

Total net revenues $ 7,450 $ 6,945 $ 505 7.3%

Wholesale net revenues The net increase primarily reflects:

e a $382 million net increase related to our businasthe Americas on a constant currency basigehkardue to $210
million of incremental revenues contributed by poegly licensed businesses, including the Chapssvear Business
acquired in April 2013 and certain businesses itinLamerica acquired in June 2012. The increaseeirrevenues also
reflected higher domestic revenues from our mensweamenswear, and childrenswear product linesywels as
increased revenues from our accessories businémseTincreases were partially offset by lower Hooneduct
revenues primarily due to the rebranding of certdiour home products; and

* a $7 million net increase in revenues due to tke favorable foreign currency effects, primariljlated to the
strengthening of the Euro, partially offset by theakening of the Japanese Yen and the CanadiaarCaghinst the
U.S. Dollar during Fiscal 2014.

This net increase was partially offset by:

e a $16 million net decrease related to our Europeasiness on a constant currency basis, drivenusyptanned
reduction in shipments across our menswear, womegnsvand childrenswear product lines due to thélesiging
European retail environment and softness in theialpg store business; and

* a $23 million net decrease related to our Japabasiess on a constant currency basis, primaeileating lower
sell-throughs and the impact of a business modttltstthe retail concessions-based channel.

Retail net revenues- Our total reported comparable store sales waterf Fiscal 2014 compared to the prior fiscalrydat

increased approximately 1% on a constant curreasisbComparable store sales refer to the growtales in stores that are open
for at least one full fiscal year. Sales for stdiest are closed during a fiscal year are excludat the calculation of comparable
store sales. Sales for stores that are eitheratddcenlarged (as defined by gross square foatagansion of 25% or greater), or
generally closed for 30 or more consecutive dayseoovation are also excluded from the calculatiboomparable store sales until
such stores have been in their new location orhairtnewly renovated state for at least one fudtdi year. Sales from our
e-commerce sites are included within comparable ftales for those geographies that have beercedriay the related e-commerce
site for at least one full fiscal year. Consolidhtsomparable store sales information includes aalptR Lauren stores (including
concession-based shop-within-shops), factory sta@ésh Monaco stores and e-commerce sites, andicest our Ralph Lauren
e-commerce sites. Sales from our Rugby storeseated e-commerce site, Rugby.com, are no longduded in comparable store
sales due to the wind-down of our Rugby brand reip#rations in Fiscal 2013. We use an integratedi-chmmnel strategy to
operate our retail business, in which our e-commeperations are interdependent with our physicaés.

The net increase in Retail net revenues primaeifiects:

e a $29 million, or a 1%, net increase in consokdatomparable store sales on a constant currersiy, imarily
driven by an increase from our Ralph Lauren e-commeperations, partially offset by decreases imgarable store
sales from our concession shops and our domestiorjastores. Comparable store sales related tceaxammerce
operations increased by approximately 14% on artegdoasis and 13% on a constant currency basistogeelated
prior fiscal year, and had a favorable impact on twtial comparable store sales of approximately t2%3% on a
reported basis and approximately 1% to 2% on ataohsurrency basis. Our consolidated comparaliee stales
excluding e-commerce decreased approximately 2%%oon a reported basis and were flat to down bydiP@a
constant currency basis; and
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e a $197 million, or a 40%, net increase in non-caraple store sales on a constant currency bagisaniy driven by
new store openings within the past twelve monthgluding store openings in Asia, new stores anctession shops
assumed in connection with the Australia and Newlai®d Licensed Operations Acquisition, other neabgl store
openings, and the expansion of our e-commerce tipesa which more than offset the impact of stolesiogs,
including those closed in connection with the Ru@ysure Plan.

These increases were partially offset by:

* a $53 million net decrease in revenues due tovanédle foreign currency effects, comprised of unfable effects of
$43 million and $10 million related to our compdeabnd non-comparable store sales, respectively. uftfiavorable
currency effects primarily related to the weakernifghe Japanese Yen, partially offset by the gfteening of the Euro
against the U.S. Dollar during Fiscal 2014 compaodithe prior fiscal year.

Our global average store count increased by 4est@nd concession shops during Fiscal 2014 compatiedhe prior fiscal
year, primarily due to new store and concessiorp stigenings in Asia and Europe, and stores and ssimre shops assumed in
connection with the Australia and New Zealand L&=sh Operations Acquisition, partially offset byrstelosures, including those
associated with the Rugby Closure Plan. The folhgwiable details our retail store and e-commereserce as of the periods

presented:
March 29, March 30,
2014 2013
Stores:

Freestanding stores 433 388
Concession shops 503 494
Total stores 936 882

E-commerce Sites:
North American site® 3 3
European sité% 3 3
Asian site$) 2 1
8 7

Total e-commerce sites

@ Includes www.RalphLauren.com, www.ClubMonaco.comy aww.ClubMonaco.ca, which collectively service ti.S.
and Canada.

® Includes www.RalphLauren.co.uk (servicing the Udit€ingdom), www.RalphLauren.fr (servicing BelgiurRrance,
Italy, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Portugal, apdif§), and www.RalphLauren.de (servicing Germary Austria).

© Includes www.RalphLauren.co.jp, which services #apad, as of March 29, 2014, our new e-commerce aft
www.RalphLauren.co.kr, which services South Korea.

Licensing revenues— The $16 million net decrease in revenues priyparflects the transition of certain licensing
arrangements, including the Chaps Menswear Busimedshe Australia and New Zealand Business, tollydoavned operations
and the discontinuance of certain Home licensingrgyements, partially offset by higher apparel faagrance-related royalties.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased by $154 million, or 3.7%$th310 billion in Fiscal 2014 from $4.156 billiam Fiscal
2013. Gross profit as a percentage of net revedee®ased by 190 basis points to 57.9% in Fisck4 2@m 59.8% in Fiscal 2013.
The gross margin decline was primarily attributaolehe inclusion of the Chaps Menswear Businesistha unfavorable effects of

foreign currency.

Gross profit as a percentage of net revenues israigmt upon a variety of factors, including charigabe relative sales mix
among distribution channels, changes in the miprofucts sold, the timing and level of promotiorativities, foreign currency
exchange rates, and fluctuations in material cdstsse factors, among others, may cause gross psodi percentage of net revenues

to fluctuate from year to year.

Selling, General, and Administrative ExpensesSG&A expenses increased by $171 million, of&g.70 $3.142 billion in
Fiscal 2014 from $2.971 billion in Fiscal 2013. Fmicrease included a net favorable foreign cugr@fiect of approximately
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$29 million, primarily related to the weakening tbe Japanese Yen, partially offset by the stremmtizeof the Euro against the
U.S. Dollar during Fiscal 2014 as compared to thergdiscal year. SG&A expenses as a percentageebfrevenues declined to
42.2% in Fiscal 2014 from 42.8% in Fiscal 2013. Bebasis point improvement was primarily due terafing leverage on higher
net revenues and our operational discipline, whiaire than offset the increase in operating expeagedutable to our recent
acquisitions and new business initiatives, as a&ihcreased investments in our facilities, inftadtire, and information technology.

The $171 million net increase in SG&A expensesuncfional category is as follows:

Fiscal 2014

Compared to

Fiscal 2013

(millions)
SG&A expense category:

Compensation-related expen@es $ 44
Marketing, advertising, and promotional expenses 39
Shipping, warehousing, and distribution expenses 28
Rent and occupancy expenses 27
Depreciation expense 17
Acquisition-related cosfd 7
Other 9
Total change in SG&A expendds $ 171

@ Primarily due to increased salaries and relate@esgs to support business growth.

(®)  Comprised of acquisition-related costs for the Ghilenswear License Acquisition in April 2013 and fiee Australia
and New Zealand Licensed Operations Acquisitioduly 2013 (see Note 5 to the accompanying auditesaidated
financial statements).

© Includes $62 million of incremental expenses asdedi with the aforementioned newly acquired busieesand $13
million of incremental expenses incurred in conigeciwith the implementation of our global operatiagd financial
reporting system.

During Fiscal 2015, we anticipate a certain amadirtperating expense de-leverage due to continuesstment in our
long-term strategic growth initiatives, includintplal retail store expansion, the introductionte# Polo store concept around the
world, department store renovations, and continoeestment in our infrastructure.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization of intangible assets increased$Bymillion, or 30.7%, to $35 million in
Fiscal 2014 from $27 million in Fiscal 2013. Thizwiease was primarily due to the full amortizatafnthe licensed trademark
intangible asset acquired in connection with theafidhMenswear License Acquisition during Fiscal 2@4de Note 5 to the
accompanying audited consolidated financial stateg)e

Gain on Acquisition of Chap®During Fiscal 2014, we recorded a $16 million gaim the Chaps Menswear License
Acquisition, representing the difference betwees dloquisition date fair value of net assets acduared the contractually-defined
purchase price under our license agreement withn&@dar, which granted us the right to early-termirthte license upon PVH's
acquisition of Warnaco in February 2013 (see Ndiethe accompanying audited consolidated finaratetements).

Impairments of Assets.During Fiscal 2014, we recorded non-cash impairircharges of $1 million, to write-off certain
long-lived assets relating to our European opemati®uring Fiscal 2013, we recognized non-cash immmt charges of $19
million, which included charges of $11 million torite-off certain Rugby brand-related long-lived etssin connection with the
Rugby Closure Plan and charges of $8 million taicedthe carrying values of long-lived assets ofademunderperforming European
stores to their fair values, as well as to writetbé fixed assets of certain wholesale locationEurope that were expected to close
(see Note 11 to the accompanying audited consetid@ancial statements).

Restructuring and Other ChargesRestructuring and other charges increased byiién to $18 million in Fiscal 2014 from
$12 million in Fiscal 2013. During Fiscal 2014, veeorded restructuring charges of $8 million, pritgyaelated to severance

43

65 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

and benefit costs associated with our corporateadipes. In addition, during Fiscal 2014, we reeatd10 million of accelerated

stock-based compensation expense associated wiglinceew executive employment agreement provisiBestructuring and other

charges of $12 million recorded during Fiscal 2@iuded $7 million of severance and lease termonatosts associated with the
Rugby Closure Plan and $5 million of other netmestring charges, which primarily related to thespgension of the Company's
operations in Argentina, severance and lease tatinimcosts associated with our European operatams other severance-related
costs primarily within our corporate operationsttigdly offset by reversals of reserves deemedar@ér necessary in connection
with our Fiscal 2012 restructuring plan in the ABiacific region (see Note 12 to the accompanyirgjtad consolidated financial

statements).

Operating Income. Operating income slightly increased by $3 millior 0.3%, to $1.130 billion in Fiscal 2014 fr¢h.127
billion in Fiscal 2013. Operating income as a petage of net revenues declined 100 basis point§5t2% in Fiscal 2014 from
16.2% in Fiscal 2013. The decrease in operatingniecas a percentage of net revenues primarilycteflethe decline in our gross
profit margin, partially offset by an improvemem SG&A and other operating expenses as a percerghget revenues, as
previously discussed.

During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014, we chahtfee manner in which we allocate certain costsrfanagement reporting
due to strategic changes we implemented to glabalartain functions that will position us for futugrowth. These changes
included realigning certain costs between segmemdsretaining other costs at the corporate lewetéotain of our global functions.
We believe that these changes allow for a betfesentation of segment operations and are aligiitbchow segment performance
is assessed. As a result of these changes, waieg¢er that it is more appropriate to retain cergiaviously allocated corporate
expenses within our unallocated corporate expefiggs.expense realignment did not result in a ckaogour reportable segments.
All prior period segment information has been rédasreflect the change in our segment measuremerd comparable basis,
including the operating income analyses that falldhis recast had no impact on our segment nente@gor on our consolidated
financial statements in any fiscal period.

Operating income and margin for each of our thegrtable segments, which have been recast tatefie fourth quarter
change in segment measurement, are provided below:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, 2014 March 30, 2013
Operating Operating  Operating Operating $ Margin
Income Margin Income Margin Change Change
(millions) (millions) (millions)
Segment:
Wholesale $ 963 276% $ 903 28.7%  $ 60 (110 bps)
Retail 572 15.1% 615 17.0% (43) (190 bps)
Licensing 150 90.2% 152 83.6% (2) 660 bps
1,685 1,670 15
Unallocated corporate expenses (553) (531) (22)
Gain on acquisition of Chaps 16 — 16
Unallocated restructuring and other
charges (18) (12) (6)
Total operating income $ 1,130 152% $ 1,127 162% $ 3 (100 bps)

Wholesale operating margideclined by 110 basis points, primarily due to alide in gross profit margin reflecting the
inclusion of the Chaps Menswear Business, a lesgdlle geographic mix, and the net negative effegtated to foreign currency.
The decline in Wholesale operating margin was alytioffset by improved operating leverage of SG&Apenses on higher
wholesale revenues.

Retail operating margirmeclined by 190 basis points, largely due to aelogross profit margin, primarily reflecting elegdt
promotional activity within certain of our retaiubinesses during the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2@id the unfavorable effect of
foreign currency. The decline in Retail operatingrgin was also due to an increase in SG&A expensea percentage of net
revenues, primarily driven by incremental operagégenses associated with the Australia and Newaddd@usiness, and expenses
associated with our global store and e-commerceldpment efforts.
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Licensing operating margiimprovement was primarily due to reduced operaéirgenses reflecting the transition of certain
licensing arrangements to wholly-owned operatipastially offset by lower net revenues.

Unallocated corporate expenséxreased by $22 million, reflecting higher adigéng, marketing, and promotional costs,
acquisition-related costs, and increased globakmation technology-related costs.

Gain on Acquisition of Chapwas $16 million for Fiscal 2014, as previously démd above and in Note 5 to the
accompanying audited consolidated financial statesne

Unallocated restructuring and other chargesreased by $6 million to $18 million in Fisc@1, from $12 million in Fiscal
2013, as previously described above and in Not® 12 accompanying audited consolidated finarstatements.

Foreign Currency Losses. The effect of foreign currency exchange ratetflations resulted in losses of $8 million in Risc
2014, compared to losses of $12 million in Fisddl2 The net decline in foreign currency losses mamarily related to the
revaluation and settlement of foreign currency-aeimated third-party and intercompany receivabled payables, and net gains
related to foreign currency hedge contracts. Fareigrrency gains and losses do not result fromtreslation of the operating
results of our foreign subsidiaries to U.S. dollars

Interest Expense. Interest expense includes the borrowing cadtted to our outstanding debt, including amoridrabf
debt issuance costs, and interest related to quitatdease obligations. Interest expense declime®2 million to $20 million in
Fiscal 2014, from $22 million in Fiscal 2013, prirhyadue to the lower interest rate on the 2.12586acured senior notes due 2018
(the "Senior Notes") issued in September 2013,0aspared to the 4.5% interest rate on the previoostgtanding Euro Debt, as
defined below (see Note 14 to the accompanyingtedidionsolidated financial statements). This decliras partially offset by
additional interest on our increased capital ledsigations.

Interest and Other Income, net.Interest and other income, net decreased hyiidn to $3 million in Fiscal 2014, from $6
million in Fiscal 2013, reflecting lower interesicbme primarily due to changes in our investmentf@ido mix.

Equity in Losses of Equity-Method Investee3he equity in losses of equity-method inves@e$9 million and $10 million
in Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013, respectively, mftaur share of losses from our joint venture, Radph Lauren Watch and Jewelry
Company Sarl (the "RL Watch Company"), which iscaoted for under the equity method of accounting.

Provision for Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes represents fdéoreign, state and local income taxes. The
provision for income taxes decreased by $19 millam5.6%, to $320 million in Fiscal 2014 from $338llion in Fiscal 2013. The
decrease in the provision for income taxes was gnilyndue to a decrease in our reported effectveraite of 190 basis points to
29.2% in Fiscal 2014 from 31.1% in Fiscal 20134y offset by the increase in the overall levebar pretax income. The lower
effective tax rate for Fiscal 2014 was primarilyedio tax reserve reductions associated with thelgsion of a tax examination
during the third quarter of Fiscal 2014, and aroine tax benefit resulting from legal entity restuimg of certain of our foreign
operations during Fiscal 2014. The effective tar far Fiscal 2013 reflected tax reserve reductessociated with the conclusion of
a separate tax examination during the third quartdfiscal 2013, which were offset by the inclusimina reserve for an interest
assessment on a prior year withholding tax. Thecéffe tax rate differs from statutory rates duéhi effect of state and local taxes,
tax rates in foreign jurisdictions, and certain deductible expenses. Our effective tax rate wilrje from period to period based
on various factors including, but not limited tbetgeographic mix of earnings, the timing and amaodiforeign dividends, enacted
tax legislation, state and local taxes, tax auddifgs and settlements, and the interaction abuarglobal tax strategies.

Net Income. Net income increased by $26 million, or 3.486$776 million in Fiscal 2014, from $750 million Fiscal 2013,
due to the $19 million reduction in our provisiaor fincome taxes, lower non-operating charges ofmilon, and a $3 million
increase in operating income, all as previouslgulised.

Net Income per Diluted Share.Net income per diluted share increased by $®#3.4%, to $8.43 per share in Fiscal 2014

from $8.00 per share in Fiscal 2013. The increaa® pvimarily attributable to higher net income paaviously discussed, and lower
weighted-average diluted shares outstanding ddHiscal 2014, driven by our share repurchases treelast twelve months.
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Fiscal 2013 Compared to Fiscal 2012

The following table summarizes our results of opers and expresses the percentage relationshiptteevenues of certain
financial statement captions:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 30, March 31, $ % / bps
2013 2012 Change Change
(millions, except per share data)

Net revenues $ 6,945 % 6,860 $ 85 1.2%
Cost of goods sofd (2,789) (2,862) 73 (2.5%)
Gross profit 4,156 3,998 158 3.9%

Gross profit as % of net revenues 59.8% 58.3% 150 bps
Selling, general, and administrative expefies (2,971) (2,916) (55) 1.9%

SG&A expenses as % of net revenues 42.8% 42.5% 30 bps
Amortization of intangible assets (27) (29) 2 (7.3%)
Impairments of assets (19) 2) a7 NM
Restructuring and other charges (12) (12) — (5.6%)
Operating income 1,127 1,039 88 8.4%

Operating income as % of net revenues 16.2% 15.2% bpeo
Foreign currency losses (12) (2) (10) NM
Interest expense (22) (24) 2 (9.8%)
Interest and other income, net 6 11 5) (48.2%)
Equity in losses of equity-method investees (10) 9) 1) 2.2%
Income before provision for income taxes 1,089 1,015 74 7.3%
Provision for income taxes (339) (334) (5) 1.6%

Effective tax ratéd) 31.1% 32.9% (180 bps)
Net income $ 750 $ 681 $ 69 10.1%
Net income per common share:
Basic $ 821 $ 735  $ 0.86 11.7%
Diluted $ 8.00 $ 713 % 0.87 12.2%

@ Includes total depreciation expense of $206 milkow $196 million for Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 20E3pectively.
(®) Effective tax rate is calculated by dividing th@yision for income taxes by income before providimnincome taxes.

NM = Not meaningful.

Net Revenues. Net revenues increased by $85 million, or 1.8%%6.945 billion in Fiscal 2013 from $6.860 kil in Fiscal
2012. The increase was primarily due to higher mees from our retail businesses, which were pértaffset by lower revenues
from our wholesale businesses and net unfavoraioéegh currency effects. Excluding the effect ofefgn currency, net revenues
increased by $183 million, or 2.7%.
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Fiscal Years Ended

March 30, March 31, $ %
2013 2012 Change Change
(millions)
Net Revenues:

Wholesale $ 3,138 % 3247 % (109) (3.3%)
Retail 3,625 3,432 193 5.6%
Licensing 182 181 1 0.7%

Total net revenues $ 6,945 $ 6,860 $ 85 1.2%

Wholesale net revenues The net decrease primarily reflects:

a $78 million net decrease related to our Eurofmeminesses on a constant currency basis driveeduced shipments
across our core menswear, womenswear, and childeamsproduct lines, reflecting the challenging Epaan retail

environment and softness in the specialty storenbas, particularly in Southern Europe. These @geae were partially
offset by increased sales from our accessoriesuptolines, driven by new product offerings and awcréased
department store presence;

a $15 million net decrease related to our Japahesmesses on a constant currency basis, prindugyto the impact
of our business model shift to the retail concesdiased channel and the softness in the deparst@atbusiness; and

a $50 million net decrease in revenues due touméhvorable foreign currency effects, primarilyateld to the
weakening of the Euro against the U.S. Dollar dyfiscal 2013.

These decreases were partially offset by:

a $33 million net increase related to our busiesss the Americas, reflecting higher menswear aondtenswear
revenues due in part to additional product linefigs, partially offset by declines due to thecdiginuance of the
majority of product categories under the Americavirlg brand sold to JCPenney. The increase in etnues was
also due to incremental Home product revenueseel& our assumption of control over the distribatiof the
previously licensed bedding and bath business op M&011, which was patrtially offset by lower raues from our
childrenswear product line.

Retail net revenues- Our total reported comparable store sales iseapproximately 3% in Fiscal 2013 compared todFis
2012, but increased approximately 4% on a constaméncy basis. The net increase in Retail netmes® primarily reflected:

a $119 million, or a 4%, net increase in conseidacomparable store sales on a constant curressig, primarily

driven by increases from our North American and dpean factory stores and our Ralph Lauren e-comenerc

operations, partially offset by decreases in comiplar store sales from certain of our Ralph Lautenes and our
concession shops in Asia. Comparable store salatedeto our e-commerce operations increased byoappately

18% on both a reported and constant currency bases Fiscal 2012, and had a favorable impact on total

comparable store sales of 1% to 2% on both a regp@md constant currency basis. Our consolidatetpbamable store
sales excluding e-commerce increased between 192%ndn a reported basis and between 2% and 3%consant
currency basis; and

a $120 million, or a 22%, net increase in non-caraple store sales on a constant currency basigndoy new store
openings over the past twelve months and the grefitbur e-commerce operations through our recelatiynched
Ralph Lauren e-commerce sites in Germany and JapdnClub Monaco e-commerce sites in North Ameridze

effect of these new openings and launches moredfiset the impact of store closings in the Asi@if@region due to
our network repositioning initiative.
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These increases were partially offset by:

* a $46 million net decrease in revenues due tovanédle foreign currency effects, comprised of unfable effects of
$36 million and $10 million related to our compdeahnd non-comparable store sales, respectiveiyapity related to
the weakening of the Euro and the Yen against ti$ Dollar during Fiscal 2013.

Our global average store count declined by threeestand concession shops during Fiscal 2013 pes cbsures associated
with the Asia-Pacific Restructuring Plan at the efidriscal 2012 and the Rugby Closure Plan in Fi26a3 were largely offset by
new store openings, primarily in Asia and Europbke Tollowing table details our retail store andogrenerce presence as of the
periods presented:

March 30, March 31,
2013 2012
Stores:
Freestanding stores 388 379
Concession shops 494 474
Total stores 882 853
E-commerce Sites:
North American sité? 3 3
European sité% 3 3
Asian sité®) 1 —
Total e-commerce sites 7 6

@ Our North American e-commerce sites as of March281,3 include www.RalphLauren.com, www.ClubMonaome
and www.ClubMonaco.ca, which collectively servibe tJ.S. and Canada. As of March 31, 2012, our NArtterican
e-commerce sites included www.RalphLauren.com, v@wbMonaco.com, and www.Rugby.com.

® Includes www.RalphLauren.co.uk (servicing the Udit€ingdom), www.RalphLauren.fr (servicing Belgiurirance,
Italy, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Portugal, apdi§), and www.RalphLauren.de (servicing Germary Austria).

© Includes www.RalphLauren.co.jp servicing Japancivhiias launched in Fiscal 2013.

Licensing revenues- The $1 million net increase in licensing revesiteflects an approximate $5 million increase idpict
licensing royalties, primarily driven by higher appl and fragrance-related royalties, largely affse an approximate $4 million
decline in Home licensing revenues due to the diicoance of certain licensing arrangements.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased by $158 million, or 3.9%$th156 billion in Fiscal 2013 from $3.998 billiom Fiscal
2012. Gross profit as a percentage of net reveimgesased by 150 basis points to 59.8% in FiscaBZom 58.3% in Fiscal 2012,
primarily reflecting lower sourcing costs compatedhigher cost benchmarks in the prior year pedotbss most of our global
businesses, favorable product mix across most ofwholesale businesses, and the growth of ourl fetisinesses, which generally
carry higher gross margins. The improvement ingross profit margin was partially offset by a Iésgorable geographic mix and
elevated promotional activity across certain of North American retail businesses.

Selling, General, and Administrative ExpensesSG&A expenses increased by $55 million, or 1.980$2.971 billion in
Fiscal 2013 from $2.916 billion in Fiscal 2012. Jlmcrease included a net favorable foreign cugraffect of approximately $43
million, primarily related to the weakening of tB®iro and the Japanese Yen against the U.S. DallimgliFiscal 2013. Excluding
the effect of foreign currency, SG&A expenses iasel by $98 million, or 3.4%. SG&A expenses asragutage of net revenues
increased to 42.8% in Fiscal 2013 from 42.5% irc&i2012. The 30 basis point increase was primatilg to an increase in
operating expenses attributable to the growth inretail businesses (which typically carry high@emating expense margins), our
new business initiatives, and our repositioningresf in the Asia-Pacific region, partially offset bur operating leverage on higher
net revenues.
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The $55 million net increase in SG&A expenses cfional category is as follows:

Fiscal 2013
Compared to
Fiscal 2012

(millions)
SG&A expense category:

Compensation-related expen@es $ 26
Selling expenses
Depreciation expense
Shipping, warehousing, and distribution expenses
Rent and occupancy-related expenses
Marketing, advertising, and promotional expenses

A OO NN

Total change in SG&A expenses $ 55

@ Primarily related to increased salaries to suppail growth and higher stock-based compensatipemses.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization of intangible assets decreaseds®ymillion, or 7.3%, to $27 million in
Fiscal 2013 from $29 million in Fiscal 2012. Thiscdease reflects the absence of expense in Fi8talr2lated to certain customer
relationship intangible assets that were fully amed as of the end of Fiscal 2012.

Impairments of AssetsAsset impairment charges increased by $17 mil@$19 million in Fiscal 2013 from $2 million in
Fiscal 2012. The non-cash impairment charges ofrillibn recognized in Fiscal 2013 included chargé$11 million to write-off
certain Rugby brand-related long-lived assets imnection with the Rugby Closure Plan and charge$8omillion to reduce the
carrying values of long-lived assets of certainameérforming European stores to their fair valasswell as to write-off the fixed
assets of certain wholesale locations in Europewlesie expected to close. During Fiscal 2012, ve®nded non-cash impairment
charges of $2 million, primarily to reduce the garg value of the long-lived assets of certain updeforming European retail stores
to their estimated fair values. See Note 11 taattmompanying audited consolidated financial statesiier further discussion.

Restructuring and Other ChargesRestructuring and other charges were $12 miiliveach of Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012.
Net restructuring charges of $12 million recordedFiscal 2013 included $7 million of severance ds@ke termination costs
associated with the Rugby Closure Plan and $5aniltif other net restructuring charges, which primaelated to the suspension of
the Company's operations in Argentina, severancelease termination costs associated with our Eaawopperations, and other
severance-related costs primarily within our coapeoperations, partially offset by reversals gerges deemed no longer necessary
in connection with our Fiscal 2012 restructuringrpin the Asia-Pacific region. Net restructuringugfes of $12 million recorded
during Fiscal 2012 primarily related to employesri@ation costs and costs associated with the odosticertain retail stores and
concession shops in connection with our restruoguglan in the Asia-Pacific region, as well as semee related to the planned
discontinuance of the majority of the products aolder the American Living brand at JCPenney. Sete N2 to the accompanying
audited consolidated financial statements for fmrttiscussion.

Operating Income. Operating income increased by $88 million, @28, to $1.127 billion in Fiscal 2013 from $1.038idn
in Fiscal 2012. Operating income as a percentagebfevenues increased 100 basis points, to 1;hi2iscal 2013 from 15.2% in
Fiscal 2012. The increase in operating income peraentage of net revenues primarily reflects thprovement in gross profit
margin, partially offset by higher SG&A expenses éampairment charges as a percentage of revenyeeeiwusly discussed.
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Operating income and margin for our three busisegsnents, which have been recast to reflect thhfouarter Fiscal 2014
change in segment measurement, are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 30, 2013 March 31, 2012
Operating Operating Operating Operating $ Margin
Income Margin Income Margin Change Change
(millions) (millions) (millions)
Segment:
Wholesale $ 903 28.7% $ 835 257% $ 68 300 bps
Retail 615 17.0% 553 16.1% 62 90 bps
Licensing 152 83.6% 149 82.6% 3 100 bps
1,670 1,537 133
Unallocated corporate
expenses (531) (486) (45)
Unallocated restructuring and
other charges, net ¢ ) . ¢ ) =
Total operating income ~ $ 1,127 16.2% $ 1,039 15.2% $ 88 100 bps

Wholesale operating margimcreased by 300 basis points, primarily due tydased global gross margins, reflecting lower
sourcing costs compared to higher cost benchmarkisei prior year period and a favorable product atross most of our global
wholesale businesses.

Retail operating margirincreased by 90 basis points, including an unfabier impact of 20 basis points related to asset
impairment charges associated with the Rugby Céo®lan. The increase in the Retail operating mavgas primarily due to
improved operating leverage of SG&A expenses, hialy rent and occupancy and compensation-relatsts,con higher retail
revenues. This increase was partially offset bylaler gross profit margin, primarily reflectingeshted promotional activity across
certain of our North American retail businesses.

Licensing operating marginncreased by 100 basis points, primarily due tduced operating expenses reflecting the
discontinuance of certain licensing arrangemestsyell as slightly higher licensing revenues.

Unallocated corporate expensewreased by $45 million, primarily due to incredscompensation-related costs, including
stock-based compensation, higher advertising, niackeand promotional costs, and higher rent araipancy related expenses.

Unallocated restructuring and other chargesre $12 million in each of Fiscal 2013 and Fi@12. See Notes 12 and 22 to
the accompanying audited consolidated financiaéstants for further discussion of the related caarg

Foreign Currency Losses. The effect of foreign currency exchange ratetfiations resulted in losses of $12 million incils
2013, compared to losses of $2 million in Fiscal20The higher foreign currency losses were prilpaattributable to the
weakening of the Euro during Fiscal 2013, and wemmarily related to the settlement of foreign emty-denominated third-party
and intercompany receivables and payables.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased by $2 million, 8%9to $22 million in Fiscal 2013 from $24 milliam Fiscal
2012. The decrease in interest expense was printré to favorable foreign currency effects relatethe weakening of the Euro
during Fiscal 2013, which reduced interest expeak#ed to our Euro Debt (as defined below). Thelide in interest expense was
also attributable to the absence of interest irclan Fiscal 2012 borrowings under our Global Gredcility (as defined in Note 14
to the accompanying audited consolidated finarat@tements).

Interest and Other Income, net.Interest and other income, net decreased byiiton, or 48.2%, to $6 million in Fiscal
2013 from $11 million in Fiscal 2012. The declinasaprincipally due to lower rates of interest amdédr investment balances within
our European investment portfolio, as well as theeace of pretax income of approximately $1 millienorded in Fiscal 2012 in
connection with the change in fiscal year of oyraleese subsidiary to conform to our consolidatsthfiyear basis.

Equity in Losses of Equity-Method Investee3he equity in losses of equity-method invesiaes10 million and $9 million
in Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012, respectively, liategl to our share of losses from the RL Watch Camgip
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Provision for Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes increased byrfion, or 1.6%, to $339 million in Fiscal 2013
from $334 million in Fiscal 2012. The increase ur provision for income taxes was primarily duetoincrease in the overall level
of our pretax income, largely offset by a decraassur effective tax rate of 180 basis points, 10136 in Fiscal 2013 from 32.9% in
Fiscal 2012. Our lower effective tax rate was prityadue to a greater proportion of earnings geteetan lower-taxed jurisdictions,
as well as tax reserve reductions associated Wihconclusion of a tax examination and other nebrigble discrete tax items,
partially offset by the inclusion of a reserve &orinterest assessment on a prior year withholiding

Net Income. Net income increased by $69 million, or 10.1% 3750 million in Fiscal 2013 from $681 million Fiscal
2012. The higher net income was primarily driventhey $88 million increase in operating income, ipdyt offset by higher foreign
currency losses of $10 million and the increaseunprovision for income taxes of $5 million, agyously discussed. Fiscal 2013
results were negatively impacted by $19 milliorpoétax charges related to asset impairments atidiceging in connection with
the Rugby Closure Plan, which had an after-taxcefié reducing net income by $12 million.

Net Income per Diluted Share.Net income per diluted share increased by $&B12.2%, to $8.00 per share in Fiscal 2013
from $7.13 per share in Fiscal 2012. The increaas due to the higher level of net income, as prshodiscussed, and lower
weighted-average diluted shares outstanding dufisgal 2013, primarily driven by our share repusgsover the last twelve
months. Fiscal 2013 results were negatively imphbte$19 million of pretax charges related to asaghirments and restructurings
in connection with the Rugby Closure Plan, whict ha after-tax effect of reducing net income péartdd share by $0.13.
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

Financial Condition

The following table presents our financial conditas of March 29, 2014 and March 30, 2013.

March 29, March 30, $
2014 2013 Change
(millions)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 797 3% 974 % a77)
Short-term investments 488 325 163
Non-current investments 2 81 (79)
Current portion of long-term det — (267) 267
Long-term debt (300) — (300)

Net cash and investmefis $ 987 $ 1,113 $ (126)
Equity $ 4,034 $ 3,785 $ 249

@ Represents our Euro Debt, which was repaid uponnihabn October 4, 2013.

®) "Net cash and investments" is defined as cash asidl equivalents, plus short-term and non-currerg@siments, less total
debt.

The decline in our net cash and investments posétaviarch 29, 2014 as compared to March 30, 2048 primarily due to
our use of cash to support our Class A common stelrchases of $558 million, to invest in our bess through $390 million in
capital expenditures, and to make cash dividendngays of $149 million during Fiscal 2014, partiatiffset by our operating cash
flows of $907 million and proceeds from stock-basethpensation arrangements of $86 million.

The increase in equity was primarily attributatdeotir net income and the impact of stock-based emsetion arrangements,
largely offset by our share repurchase activity dividlends declared during Fiscal 2014.
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Cash Flows

Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 2013

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, $
2014 2013 Change
(millions)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 907 $ 1,010 (112)
Net cash used in investing activities (488) (113) 1375
Net cash used in financing activities (599) (595) 4)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents 3 9) 12
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent ~ $ (177) $ 302 $ (479)

Net Cash Provided by Operating ActivitiesNet cash provided by operating activities daseel to $907 million during Fiscal
2014, from $1.019 billion during Fiscal 2013. Thet decrease in cash provided by operating actvitias primarily due to the net
unfavorable change related to our working capitaluding:

e anincrease associated with the changes in omuats receivable balance, resulting from higheeneres at the end of
Fiscal 2014 and the timing of cash collections; and

e an increase in prepaid expenses and other cuawsdts, primarily attributable to an increase im-imcome tax
receivables related to our foreign operations &ediming of related payments.

These declines in cash from operating activitiesevpartially offset by:

e increases related to accounts payable and actialslities and income taxes, primarily due to timing of the related
payments.

Net Cash Used in Investing ActivitiedNet cash used in investing activities was $488iomlHuring Fiscal 2014, as compared
to $113 million during Fiscal 2013. The $375 mifiiaet increase in cash used in investing activitias primarily driven by:

* a $238 million increase in cash used to purchagestments, less proceeds from sales and matuwkigsestments.
During Fiscal 2014, we made net investment purcha$e$56 million, as compared to net investmenesalf $182
million during Fiscal 2013;

e a $114 million increase in cash used for capitqdemditures. During Fiscal 2014, we spent $390ionillon capital
expenditures, as compared to $276 million durirgedli 2013. Our capital expenditures were primasigociated with
global retail store expansion, department storevations, the purchase and expansion of a distoibdicility in High
Point, North Carolina, and enhancements to our ajlabformation technology systems, including thentooued
implementation of our new global operating and fiicial reporting information technology system, SAf.Fiscal
2015, we expect to spend between $400 million g@D$million in capital expenditures, primarily topport our
global retail store expansion, including the opgroh our first Polo flagship store in New York Githe introduction of
the Polo store concept around the world, new sipemings in Asia, including the opening of ourtfitagship store in
Hong Kong, and the expansion of the Chaps brand.c@pital expenditures will also be focused on depant store
renovations, the continued implementation of SAR ather systems, and further development of ouasgtfucture,
including investment in a new global e-commercéfpten; and

e an $18 million increase in cash used to fund @guaitions and ventures. During Fiscal 2014, wedu840 million of
cash to fund our acquisitions and ventures, incgd18 million to fund the Chaps Menswear Licensguisition, $15
million to fund the Australia and New Zealand Lised Operations Acquisition, as well as amountsufgpert the
continued funding of our joint venture, the RL Wat€ompany. During Fiscal 2013, we used $22 milladncash,
primarily in connection with our acquisition of th@eviously licensed business in Latin America, andund the
operations of the RL Watch Company.
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Net Cash Used in Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing activities was $888ion during Fiscal 2014, as
compared to $595 million during Fiscal 2013. Theinerease in cash used in financing activities p@warily driven by:

e a $21 million increase in cash used to pay divitderDuring Fiscal 2014, we used $149 million to piyidends, as
compared to $128 million during Fiscal 2013, priityadue to the increase in the quarterly cash dimitl from $0.40
per share to $0.45 per share, effective in Nover2b&B; and

* an $11 million increase in cash used to repurcishsees of our Class A common stock. During Fig2€d4, we used
$498 million to repurchase shares of Class A comstook pursuant to our common stock repurchaseranogand an
additional $60 million in shares of Class A comnstock were surrendered or withheld in satisfactbmvithholding
taxes in connection with the vesting of awards amde 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, as aradr(the "1997
Incentive Plan™) and our 2010 Long-Term Stock Irniven Plan, as amended (the "2010 Incentive Pla@). a
comparative basis, during Fiscal 2013, we used $4iildn to repurchase shares of Class A commookspursuant to
our common stock repurchase program, and an additi$47 million in shares of Class A common stoc&rav
surrendered or withheld for taxes. In addition,inigiFiscal 2013, we made a $50 million paymentanrection with
our prepaid share repurchase program.

These increases in cash used in financing actwtiere partially offset by:
e $31 million in proceeds from the issuance of laegn debt, net of repayments. During Fiscal 2014 received $300
million in proceeds from our issuance of 2.125%aaused Senior Notes in September 2013. A porticdhede proceeds

was used to repay the $269 million principal amoaatstanding of the 4.5% Euro-denominated notesnupeir
maturity on October 4, 2013.

Fiscal 2013 Compared to Fiscal 2012

Fiscal Years Ended

March 30, March 31, $
2013 2012 Change
(millions)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,019 $ 8%b 134
Net cash used in investing activities (113) (249) 136
Net cash used in financing activities (595) (408) (187
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents 9) 9 —
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 302 $ 219 $ 83

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities.Net cash provided by operating activities iased to $1.019 billion during
Fiscal 2013, as compared to $885 million during&i2012. This net increase in cash provided byaijiey activities was primarily
driven by:

e an increase in net income before depreciation @andrtization, stock-based compensation, impairncbarges, and
other non-cash items; and

e anet improvement in our working capital, primanieflecting a smaller increase in inventories tirathe prior fiscal
year, as increased inventory levels to suppornew product offerings, store openings, and newramgerce sites were
partially offset by the timing of inventory recedpinventory management initiatives, and lower simgr costs in Fiscal
2013. In addition, accounts receivable declined wulwer wholesale revenues and higher cash dmlesin Fiscal
2013, resulting in an improvement in days salestantling of approximately three days. These ineeas cash were
largely offset by declines related to income taaed accounts payable and accrued expenses, pyimadted to the
timing of payments.
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Net Cash Used in Investing ActivitiesNet cash used in investing activities decrease®lli@ million during Fiscal 2013, as
compared to $249 million during Fiscal 2012. Thedecrease in cash used in investing activities pvasarily driven by:

e anincrease in proceeds from sales and matudfies/estments, less cash used to purchase invagmauring Fiscal
2013, we received net proceeds of $182 million aniovestments, as compared to net proceeds ofniBibn in
Fiscal 2012.

The above increase in cash was partially offset by:

e a $10 million increase in net cash used to fundamguisitions and ventures. In Fiscal 2013, wed&22 million of
cash to fund the acquisitions of certain previouggnsed businesses and to provide continued fignth our joint
venture, the RL Watch Company. In Fiscal 2012, wedu$12 million, primarily to fund the RL Watch Cpamy's
operations; and

e an increase in cash used for capital expenditureEiscal 2013, we spent $276 million for capixipenditures, as
compared to $272 million in Fiscal 2012. Our cdpé&gpenditures were primarily associated with glotedail store
expansion and construction, our renovation of depamt store shop-within-shops, investments in aailifies, and
enhancements to our global information technolggyesns.

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities. Net cash used in financing activities was $88@i8ion during Fiscal 2013, as
compared to $408 million during Fiscal 2012. Theinerease in cash used in financing activities p@sarily driven by:

e an increase in cash used in connection with ré@mses of our Class A common stock. During Fiscdl32Qve
repurchased 3.0 million shares of Class A commogksat a cost of $450 million pursuant to our comnstock
repurchase program, and 0.4 million shares of CAags®mmon stock at a cost of $47 million were sndered or
withheld in satisfaction of withholding taxes inncection with the vesting of awards under our 18%#&ntive Plan
and our 2010 Incentive Plan. In addition, duringcgi 2013, we made a $50 million payment in conaeawith our
prepaid share repurchase program. On a compatasie, during Fiscal 2012, 3.2 million shares aiSSIA common
stock at a cost of $395 million were repurchasedymnt to our common stock repurchase program0ahanillion
shares of Class A common stock at a cost of $24iomiwere withheld in satisfaction of withholdingxes in
connection with the vesting of awards under our71@@entive Plan and our 2010 Incentive Plan;

e anincrease in cash used to pay dividends. DuFiagal 2013, we used $128 million to pay dividerais compared to
$74 million during Fiscal 2012; and

e a decrease in cash received from stock optionceses. In Fiscal 2013, we received $49 million frtme exercise of
employee stock options, as compared to $61 millidriscal 2012.

Liquidity

Our primary sources of liquidity are the cash flogenerated from our operations, $500 million ofiladlity under our
Global Credit Facility (as defined below), the d&hility under our Pan-Asia Credit Facilities (a=fided below), our available cash
and cash equivalents and short-term investments, cam other available financing options. Most ofr @ash and short-term
investments are held outside the U.S. in jurisdittiwhere we intend to permanently reinvest anystniltlited earnings to support
our continued growth. However, we are not dependarforeign cash to fund our domestic operatiomsdmnot expect to repatriate
these balances to meet our domestic cash needsoOrges of liquidity are used to fund our ongaiagh requirements, including
working capital requirements, global retail stomd ae-commerce development and expansion, congtruethd renovation of
shop-within-shops, investment in infrastructuregliing technology, acquisitions, joint venturegyment of dividends, debt
repayments, common stock repurchases, settlemeragmingent liabilities (including uncertain taxgiions), and other corporate
activities. We believe that our existing sourcexasdh, as well as our ability to access capitakatar will be sufficient to support
our operating, capital, and debt service requireméar the foreseeable future, the ongoing devekagnof our businesses, and our
plans for further business expansion.

As discussed in theDebt and Covenant Compliaricesection below, we had no revolving credit fagiliborrowings
outstanding under our Global Credit Facility or ®an-Asia Credit Facilities as of March 29, 2014 kvay elect to draw on our
credit facilities or other potential sources ofdfirting for, among other things, a material acqoisitsettlement of a material
contingency (including uncertain tax positions),aomaterial adverse business or macroeconomic @@welnt, as well as for other
general corporate business purposes.
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We believe that our Global Credit Facility is adatply diversified with no undue concentration inyamne financial
institution. In particular, as of March 29, 201Hette were ten financial institutions participatinghe Global Credit Facility, with no
one participant maintaining a maximum commitmemntestage in excess of 16%. We have no reason igvbehat the participating
institutions will be unable to fulfill their obligens to provide financing in accordance with teeris of the Global Credit Facility
and the Pan-Asia Credit Facilities in the everwf election to draw funds in the foreseeable itur

Common Stock Repurchase Program
A summary of our repurchases of Class A commorkstoder our common stock repurchase program igpted below:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Cost of shares repurchased $ 548 @ $ 450 $ 395
Number of shares repurchased 32 @ 3.0 3.2

@ Includes a $50 million prepayment made in March 2@hder our share repurchase program with a thartspfinancial
institution, in exchange for the right to receiveres of our Class A common stock at the conclusfahe 93-day repurchase
term. The $50 million prepayment was recorded esdaction to additional paid-in capital in our colidated balance sheet as
of March 30, 2013. The related 0.3 million sharezravdelivered to us during Fiscal 2014, based envitiume-weighted
average market price of our Class A common stoek the 93-day repurchase term, less a discount.

As of March 29, 2014, the remaining availabilityden our Class A common stock repurchase programappsoximately
$580 million, reflecting the February 4, 2014 apm@idy our Board of Directors to expand the progtamup to an additional $500
million of Class A common stock repurchases. Repases of shares of Class A common stock are subjesterall business and
market conditions.

In addition, during Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013, anslc&l 2012, 0.4 million, 0.4 million, and 0.2 milii shares of Class A
common stock, respectively, at a cost of $60 nmillis47 million, and $24 million, respectively, wesarrendered or withheld in
satisfaction of withholding taxes in connectionhwiilhe vesting of awards under our 1997 Incentia® Rihd our 2010 Incentive Plan.

Repurchased and surrendered shares are accountitfeasury stock at cost and held in treasurfutare use.
Dividends

Since 2003, we have maintained a regular quartash dividend program on our common stock. On Mhy2®12, our
Board of Directors approved an increase in thetgugrcash dividend on our common stock from $(&0share to $0.40 per share.
On November 5, 2013, our Board of Directors appdozdurther increase to the quarterly cash dividemeéur common stock from
$0.40 to $0.45 per share. Dividends paid amourde®lLl#s9 million, $128 million, and $74 million in d&ial 2014, Fiscal 2013, and
Fiscal 2012, respectively.

We intend to continue to pay regular quarterly ditvids on our outstanding common stock. Howeverdaision to declare
and pay dividends in the future will be made atdiseretion of our Board of Directors and will depeon, among other things, our
results of operations, cash requirements, finamciatition, and other factors that the Board ofbiors may deem relevant.

Debt and Covenant Compliance
Senior Notes
In September 2013, we completed a registered pulelit offering and issued $300 million aggregategipal amount of
Senior Notes due September 26, 2018 at a pricd 85088.896% of their principal amount. The Serimtes bear interest at a fixed
rate of 2.125%, payable semi-annually. The procdema this offering were used for general corporpteposes, including the

repayment of our €209 million principal amount d¢atsling of 4.5% Euro-denominated notes (the "Euebtl), which matured on
October 4, 2013.
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The Indenture governing the Senior Notes (the 'iwle") contains certain covenants that restriat ahbility, subject to
specified exceptions, to incur certain liens; eiméy sale and leaseback transactions; consolatatgerge with another party; or sell,
lease, or convey all or substantially all of oupperty or assets to another party. However, thertde does not contain any
financial covenants.

Revolving Credit Facilities
Global Credit Facility

We have a credit facility that provides for a $30ilion senior unsecured revolving line of creditaugh March 2016, which
may also be used to support the issuance of ladfersedit and the initiation and maintenance @banmercial paper program (the
"Global Credit Facility"). Borrowings under the ®kal Credit Facility may be denominated in U.S. Bl and other currencies,
including Euros, Hong Kong Dollars, and Japanese Veée have the ability to expand our borrowing kaklity under the Global
Credit Facility to $750 million, subject to the agment of one or more new or existing lenders uttterfacility to increase their
commitments. There are no mandatory reductionsoimolving ability throughout the term of the Glob@tedit Facility. As of
March 29, 2014, there were no borrowings outstapdinder the Global Credit Facility and we were gagently liable for $8
million of outstanding letters of credit.

The Global Credit Facility contains a number of @ants that, among other things, restrict our tgpsiubject to specified
exceptions, to incur additional debt; incur liessll or dispose of assets; merge with or acquiteratompanies; liquidate or dissolve
itself; engage in businesses that are not in dackline of business; make loans, advances, omagtegs; engage in transactions with
affiliates; and make certain investments. The Gl@radit Facility also requires us to maintain aximaum ratio of Adjusted Debt to
Consolidated EBITDAR (the "leverage ratio") of neegter than 3.75 as of the date of measurementhérfour most recent
consecutive fiscal quarters. Adjusted Debt is defigenerally as consolidated debt outstanding gilgist times consolidated rent
expense for the last four consecutive fiscal qusrt€onsolidated EBITDAR is defined generally assmidated net income plus
(i) income tax expense, (ii) net interest expefiigdepreciation and amortization expense, an)l ¢onsolidated rent expense. As of
March 29, 2014, no Event of Default (as such tesndéfined pursuant to the Global Credit Facilitgshoccurred under the
Company's Global Credit Facility.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under@fobal Credit Facility, the lenders may ceaseintploans, terminate
the Global Credit Facility, and declare all amouatgstanding to be immediately due and payable. Glabal Credit Facility
specifies a number of events of default (many oictvlare subject to applicable grace periods), tliolg, among others, the failure
to make timely principal, interest, and fee payraemt to satisfy the covenants, including the finaihcovenant described above.
Additionally, the Global Credit Facility providebat an Event of Default will occur if Mr. Ralph Li@m, our Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer, and entities contrdlley the Lauren family fail to maintain a specifiednimum percentage of the
voting power of our common stock.

Pan-Asia Credit Facilities

Certain of our subsidiaries in Asia have uncommditteedit facilities with regional branches of JPigfam Chase (the "Banks")
in China, Malaysia, South Korea, and Taiwan (thenAsia Credit Facilities"). These credit facilgiare subject to annual renewal
and may be used to fund general working capital @rdorate needs of our operations in the respecégions. Our subsidiaries'
borrowings under the Pan-Asia Credit Facilities guaranteed by the parent company. The Pan-AsiditGracilities do not contain
any financial covenants. As of March 29, 2014, Bamn-Asia Credit Facilities provided for revolvirigds of credit of up to $33
million, granted at the sole discretion of the Bankubject to availability of the Banks' funds aadisfaction of certain regulatory
requirements. As of March 29, 2014, there weregrodwings outstanding under any of the Pan-Asiatfeacilities.

See Note 14 to the accompanying audited consotid@encial statements for additional informaticlating to our credit
facilities.
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Contractual and Other Obligations
Firm Commitments

The following table summarizes certain of our aggte contractual obligations as of March 29, 2d#] the estimated
timing and effect that such obligations are expgttehave on our liquidity and cash flows in futperiods. We expect to fund these
firm commitments with operating cash flows geneddtethe normal course of business and, if necgsaough availability under
our credit facilities or other accessible sourdefinancing.

Fiscal
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal 2020 and
2015 2016-2017 2018-2019 Thereafter Total
(millions)
Senior Notes $ — $ — $ 300 $ — $ 300
Interest payments on Senior Notes 6 13 10 — 29
Capital leases 24 48 46 98 216
Operating leases 336 605 518 927 2,386
Inventory purchase commitments 1,106 — — — 1,106
Other commitments 81 58 43 55 237
Total $ 1553 $ 724 $ 917 $ 1,080 $ 4,274

The following is a description of our material nfily committed obligations as of March 29, 2014:

e Senior Notesepresents the principal amount of our outstandingecured senior notes due September 26, 2018.
Amount does not include any fair value adjustmetcd,premiums, or interest payments (see below);

* Interest payments on Senior Notepresent the semi-annual contractual interesinpays due on our Senior Notes,
which bear interest at a fixed annual rate of 204625

* Lease obligationsepresent the minimum lease rental payments dderumoncancelable leases for our real estate and

operating equipment in various locations aroundwviioeld. In addition to such amounts, we are nornnediquired to

pay taxes, insurance, and occupancy costs relairyr leased real estate properties, which ardnoitided in the
table above. Approximately 70% of these lease alibgs relate to our retail operations. Informatioas been
presented separately for operating and capitabteds Fiscal 2014, we entered into a build-to-Réte agreement for

a new Polo flagship store on Fifth Avenue in Newkv@ity. The total commitment related to this le&s&235 million,
comprised of a $74 million operating lease obligatielated to the land portion of the lease (inetlich the operating
lease obligations above) and a $161 million oblayatelated to the building portion of the leaseluded in the capital
lease obligations above);

e Inventory purchase commitmemtpresent our legally-binding agreements to puseHed or minimum quantities of
goods at determinable prices; and

e Other commitmentsprimarily represent our legally-binding obligatiorunder sponsorship, licensing, and other
marketing and advertising agreements; distributedated agreements; information technology-relatstvice
agreements; and pension-related obligations.

Excluded from the above contractual obligationsetadbthe non-current liability for unrecognizea taenefits of $132 million
as of March 29, 2014, as we cannot make a reliestienate of the period in which the liability wike settled, if ever. The above
table also excludes the following: (i) amounts reled in current liabilities in our consolidated &ate sheet as of March 29, 2014,
which will be paid within one year; and (ii) nonfoent liabilities that have no cash outflows asated with them (e.g., deferred
revenue), or the cash outflows associated with theenuncertain or do not represent a "purchasgatin” as the term is used
herein (e.g., deferred taxes and other miscellay@ems).

We also have certain contractual arrangementsvibatd require us to make payments if certain evemtsircumstances

occur. See Note 17 to the accompanying auditedotidased financial statements for a descriptioroof contingent commitments
not included in the above table.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In addition to the commitments included in the abaable, our other off-balance sheet firm committeamlating to our
outstanding letters of credit amounted to approxéfyeb9 million as of March 29, 2014. We do not miain any other off-balance
sheet arrangements, transactions, obligationsthmr gelationships with unconsolidated entitiest thvauld be expected to have a
material current or future effect on our consokdgfinancial statements.

MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT

As discussed in Note 16 to the accompanying auditedsolidated financial statements, we are exptsedvariety of risks,
including changes in foreign currency exchangesratating to certain anticipated cash flows froun imternational operations and
possible declines in the value of reported nettassfecertain of our foreign operations, as wellchanges in the fair value of our
fixed-rate debt relating to changes in interestgaConsequently, at times, in the normal courdeusiness, we employ established
policies and procedures, including the use of @re financial instruments, to manage such riS¥s.do not enter into derivative
transactions for speculative or trading purposes.

As a result of the use of derivative instruments,are exposed to the risk that counterparties taletivative contracts will
fail to meet their contractual obligations. To mitie such counterparty credit risk, we have a palfconly entering into contracts
with carefully selected financial institutions besgon evaluation of their credit ratings and offireincial factors. Our established
policies and procedures for mitigating credit riskm derivative transactions include ongoing reviemwd assessment of the
creditworthiness of our counterparties. We als@imto master netting arrangements with countéigsawhen possible to mitigate
credit risk associated with our derivative instrumse As a result of the above considerations, waaldelieve that we are exposed
to any undue concentration of counterparty riskwéspect to our derivative contracts as of Margh2014. However, we do have
in aggregate approximately $7 million of derivatimstruments in net asset positions with two credithy financial institutions.

Foreign Currency Risk Management

We manage our exposure to changes in foreign aryrexchange rates through the use of forward fareigrency exchange
contracts. Refer to Note 16 to the accompanyingtedidonsolidated financial statements for a sungroéthe notional amounts and
fair values of our forward foreign currency exchamgntracts outstanding as of March 29, 2014.

Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

We enter into forward foreign currency exchangevagive contracts as hedges to reduce our riska@léo exchange rate
fluctuations on inventory purchases, intercompamyalty payments made by certain of our internafiaperations, intercompany
contributions made to fund certain marketing effoof our international operations, and other fare@irrency-denominated
operational cash flows. As part of our overall &gy to manage the level of exposure to the ristordign currency exchange rate
fluctuations, primarily to changes in the valuetted Euro, the Japanese Yen, the Hong Kong DolarSouth Korean Won, and the
Australian Dollar, we generally hedge a portioroof foreign currency exposures anticipated ovevaaytear period. In doing so, we
use forward foreign currency exchange contracts ghaerally have maturities of three months to fwears to provide continuing
coverage throughout the hedging period.

Our foreign exchange risk management activitiesganeerned by our Company's established policiespgadedures. These
policies and procedures provide a framework tHatred for the management of currency exposures vamniring the activities are
conducted within our established guidelines. Odics include guidelines for the organizationalsture of our risk management
function and for internal controls over foreign bange risk management activities, including, batlinuted to, authorization levels,
transaction limits, and credit quality controls, wsll as various measurements for monitoring coamagée. We monitor foreign
exchange risk using different techniques, includingeriodic review of market values and sensitigitalyses.

We record our forward foreign currency exchangetremts at fair value in our consolidated balanceeth To the extent
forward foreign currency exchange contracts desgghas cash flow hedges at hedge inception ardyhajfective in offsetting
changes in the value of the hedged item, the ablgééns or losses are initially deferred in eqaisya component of accumulated
other comprehensive income ("AOCI") and are subsety recognized in our consolidated statementaadme as follows:

« Forecasted Inventory Purchases Recognized as part of the cost of the invent@iyndp hedged within cost of goods
sold when the related inventory is sold to a tipiadity.
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< Intercompany Royalty Payments and Marketing Coutiiimns — Recognized within foreign currency gains (lo3ses
the period in which the related royalties or marigetontributions being hedged are received or.paid

We recognized net gains on forward foreign curreexghange contracts in earnings of approximately i88lion and $32
million during Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013, respety, and net losses of approximately $4 millianidg Fiscal 2012.

Sensitivity

We perform a sensitivity analysis to determine éffects that market risk exposures may have onfalvevalues of our
forward foreign currency exchange contracts. Tdguer the sensitivity analysis, we assess the riskoss in fair values from the
effect of hypothetical changes in foreign curreegghange rates. This analysis assumes a like matdapehe foreign currencies in
our hedge portfolio against the U.S. Dollar. AsMdrch 29, 2014, a 10% appreciation or depreciatiothe U.S. Dollar against the
exchange rates for foreign currencies under contvaald result in a net increase or decrease, otispdy, in the fair value of our
derivative portfolio of approximately $52 millioAs our outstanding forward foreign currency exchamgntracts are primarily
designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted trimss, this hypothetical net change in fair valumuild be largely offset by the net
change in the fair values of the underlying hedtgds.

Interest Rate Risk Management
Sensitivity

As of March 29, 2014, we had no variable-rate drltstanding. As such, our exposure to changestémeist rates primarily
relates to a change in the fair value of our fixatd Senior Notes. As of March 29, 2014, both #meying value and the fair value of
our Senior Notes was $300 million. A 25 basis patrease or decrease in the level of interessratguld decrease or increase,
respectively, the fair value of our Senior Notesapproximately $3 million. Such potential increaseslecreases in the fair value of
our debt would only be relevant if we were to eetall or a portion of the debt prior to its matyriand are based on certain
simplifying assumptions, including an immediateassrthe-board increase or decrease in the leviitefest rates with no other
subsequent changes for the remainder of the period.

Investment Risk Management

As of March 29, 2014, we had cash and cash equitsalen-hand of $797 million, primarily on depositinterest bearing
accounts and invested in money market funds and teposits with original maturities of 90 days @sd. Our other significant
investments included $488 million of short-terméstments, primarily in time deposits with origimaturities greater than 90 days,
and $46 million of restricted cash placed in escvath certain banks as collateral, primarily towecguarantees in connection with
certain international tax matters.

We actively monitor our exposure to changes in ftie value of our global investment portfolio incaedance with our
established policies and procedures, which inchadeitoring both general and issuer-specific ecomoronditions. Our investment
objectives include capital preservation, maintagnadequate liquidity, diversification to minimiziguidity and credit risk, and
achievement of maximum returns within the guidediset forth in our investment policy. See Note d&he accompanying audited
consolidated financial statements for further detbihe composition of our investment portfolio@sMarch 29, 2014.

We evaluate investments held in unrealized losstipos for other-than-temporary impairment on a rtery basis. This
evaluation involves a variety of considerationgluding assessments of risks and uncertaintiesceed with general economic
conditions and distinct conditions affecting spiediésuers. We consider the following factorstiig length of time and the extent to
which the fair value has been below cost, (ii)fihancial condition, credit worthiness, and neartg@rospects of the issuer, (iii) the
length of time to maturity, (iv) future economicnzhitions and market forecasts, (v) our intent abititg to retain our investment for
a period of time sufficient to allow for recoverjymarket value, and (vi) an assessment of whettisrmore likely than not that we
will be required to sell our investment before nemy of market value. No significant realized omealized gains or losses on
available-for-sale investments or other-than-terapoimpairment charges were recorded in any ofitfeal years presented.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

An accounting policy is considered to be critidaitiis important to our results of operations,dimial condition, and cash
flows, and requires significant judgment and est@aan the part of management in its applicatiamr. €timates are often based on
complex judgments, assessments of probability,assdmptions that management believes to be redspbabthat are
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inherently uncertain and unpredictable. It is giessible that other professionals, applying redsien@mdgment to the same set of
facts and circumstances, could develop and sugpoange of alternative estimated amounts. We tesltbat the following list
represents our critical accounting policies. Fodiscussion of all of our significant accounting ip@s, see Note 3 to the
accompanying audited consolidated financial statesne

Sales Reserves and Uncollectible Accounts

A significant area of judgment affecting reportedenue and net income involves estimating salesves, which represent
the portion of gross revenues not expected to bézesl. In particular, wholesale revenue is redubgdestimates of returns,
discounts, end-of-season markdowns, and operatit@atebacks. Retail revenue, including e-commsaites, is also reduced by an
estimate of returns.

In determining estimates of returns, discounts-@&rseason markdowns, and operational chargebacksnalyze historical
trends, seasonal results, current economic andeneokditions, and retailer performance. We revaent refine these estimates on a
quarterly basis. Our historical estimates of thassis have not differed materially from actual hsswA hypothetical 1% increase in
our reserves for returns, discounts, end-of-seasarkdowns, and operational chargebacks as of Mag&;h2014 would have
decreased our Fiscal 2014 net revenues by appredin®8 million.

Similarly, we evaluate accounts receivable to deitee if they will ultimately be collected. Signifiat judgments and
estimates are involved in this evaluation, inclgdan analysis of specific risks on a customer-bst@mer basis for larger accounts
and customers, and a receivables aging analydigétermines the percentage of receivables thahisamrically been uncollected by
aged category. Based on this information, we p@wdeserve for the estimated amounts believe@ tanbollectible. Although we
believe that we have adequately provided for thisses as part of our bad debt reserve, a severgaohged adverse impact on our
major customers' business operations could haeerasponding material adverse effect on our netssaiash flows, and/or financial
condition.

See "Accounts Receivable" in Note 3 to the accomipgnaudited consolidated financial statementsaioranalysis of the
activity in our sales reserves and allowance fartdil accounts for each of the three fiscal ygmesented.

Inventories

We hold inventory that is sold through wholesalgtrithution channels to major department storesspettialty retail stores,
including our own retail stores. We also hold detaventory that is sold in our own stores and einwerce sites directly to
consumers. Wholesale and retail inventories arnedstat the lower of cost or estimated net realzalallue, with cost primarily
determined on a weighted-average basis.

We continuously evaluate the composition of oureimeries, assessing slow-turning product and fasproduct. Estimated
net realizable value of inventory is determinededasn an analysis of historical sales trends ofindividual product lines, the
impact of market trends and economic conditiond, aforecast of future demand, giving consideratiothe value of current orders
in-house relating to future sales of inventorynadl as plans to sell inventory through our factetgres. Estimates may differ from
actual results due to the quantity, quality, an® afiproducts in inventory, consumer and retailef@rences, and market conditions.
Reserves for inventory shrinkage, representingigtkeof physical loss of inventory, are estimateddd on historical experience and
are adjusted based upon physical inventory coudis. historical estimates of these costs and theigioms have not differed
materially from actual results.

A hypothetical 1% increase in the level of our iniggy reserves as of March 29, 2014 would haveedsad our Fiscal 2014
gross profit by approximately $1 million.

Business Combinations

In connection with our business combinations, veeraguired to record all of the assets and liabdliof the acquired business
at their acquisition date fair value; recognize toayent consideration at fair value on the acquisitdate; and, for certain
arrangements, recognize changes in fair value rimiregs until settlement. These fair value determiames require our judgment and
may involve the use of significant estimates arsliagptions, including assumptions with respect tarkicash inflows and outflows,
discount rates, asset lives, and market multiglemng other items. We may utilize independent vadodirms to assist in making
these fair value determinations.

In addition, in connection with our business actjjioiss, we evaluate the terms of any pre-existielgtionships to determine
whether a gain or loss on settlement of the pretieg relationship exists. These pre-existing refethips primarily relate to
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licensing agreements. If the terms of the pre-egstelationships were determined to not be reiffectf market, a settlement gain or
loss would be recognized in earnings, measuredhbyamount by which the contract is favorable orauafable to us when
compared with pricing for current market transawsidor the same or similar items. We allocate tggregate consideration
exchanged in these transactions between the vdltleeobusiness acquired and the value of the swthé of any pre-existing
relationships in proportion to estimates of thespective fair values. Accordingly, significant gident is required to determine the
respective fair values of the business acquired thedvalue of the settlement of the pre-existinigtienship. We may utilize
independent valuation firms to assist in the deiteaion of fair value.

See Note 5 to the accompanying audited consolidatedcial statements for detailed disclosuresteelao our acquisitions.
Fair Value Measurements

We use judgment when evaluating the inputs usede@msure the fair value of a particular asset ailifg, notably the extent
to which the inputs are market-based (observahiéjternally-derived (unobservable). See Note 1%h® accompanying audited
consolidated financial statements for further déséon of our fair value measurements.

The fair values of derivative assets and liabgitae determined using a pricing model, which imarily based on market
observable external inputs, including forward apdtscurrency exchange rates, and considers thecingbaur own credit risk, if
any. Changes in counterparty credit risk are atswidered in the valuation of derivative finandfetruments. Refer taViarket Risk
Managemeritfor a discussion of the sensitivity of our detiva financial instruments' fair values to changegoreign currency
exchange rates.

Our Senior Notes are recorded at carrying valumiinconsolidated balance sheets, adjusted for aagnartized discount, and
may differ from its fair value. The fair value ofioSenior Notes is estimated based on externaingridata, including available
guoted market prices of the Senior Notes and ofparable debt instruments with similar interest sateedit ratings, and trading
frequency, among other factors. Refer Matket Risk Managemeéhfor a discussion of the sensitivity of our Seniwotes' fair value
to changes in interest rates.

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and certain other intangible assets deetoedave indefinite useful lives, are not amortizRather, goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets are assessedhipairment at least annually. Finite-lived intdvigi assets are amortized over their
respective estimated useful lives and, along witteolong-lived assets, are evaluated for impaitnpeniodically whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that theiyitay amounts may not be fully recoverable.

We perform our annual goodwill impairment assesgmeimng a qualitative approach to determine whethir more likely
than not that the fair value of a reporting unitdéss than its carrying value. Performance of thalitative assessment requires
judgment in identifying and considering the sigrafice of relevant key factors, events, and circamtgts that affect the fair values
of our reporting units. This requires consideratiom assessment of external factors such as macrmdic, industry, and market
conditions, as well as entity-specific factors,lsas our actual and planned financial performaWealso give consideration to the
difference between each reporting unit's fair vadunel carrying value as of the most recent dateiravédue measurement was
performed. If the results of the qualitative asses® conclude that it is not more likely than r@ttthe fair value of a reporting unit
exceeds its carrying value, additional quantitatimpairment testing is performed.

The quantitative goodwill impairment test, if nesay, is a two-step process. The first step isdamtify the existence of
potential impairment by comparing the fair valueagkporting unit with its net book value (or cémg/value), including goodwill. If
the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its yiag value, the reporting unit's goodwill is coresidd not to be impaired and
performance of the second step of the quantitajimedwill impairment test is unnecessary. Howevethé carrying value of a
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the secdeg sf the quantitative goodwill impairment tesperformed to measure the amount
of impairment loss to be recorded, if any. The secstep of the quantitative goodwill impairment testnpares the implied fair
value of the reporting unit's goodwill with the oang value of that goodwill. If the carrying valud the reporting unit's goodwill
exceeds its implied fair value, an impairment lizsecognized in an amount equal to that excess.ifplied fair value of goodwill
is determined using the salapproach as employed when determining the amougadwill that would be recognized in a business
combination. That is, the fair value of the repugtiunit is allocated to all of its assets and liibs (including any unrecognized
intangible assets) as if the reporting unit hachbesguired in a business combination and the fdireswas the purchase price paid
to acquire the reporting unit.

Determining the fair value of a reporting unit untlee first step of the quantitative goodwill impaént test and determining
the fair values of individual assets and liabifit®f a reporting unit (including any unrecognizethngible assets) under the second
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step of the quantitative goodwill impairment tesfjuires judgment and often involves the use of iigmt estimates and
assumptions. Similarly, estimates and assumptioesused when determining the fair values of otinelefinite-lived intangible
assets. These estimates and assumptions couldahsigaificant impact on whether or not an impairtngmarge is recognized and
the magnitude of any such charge. To assist marexgeim the process of determining any potentialdyal impairment, we may
review and consider appraisals from independentat@n firms. Estimates of fair value are primaugtermined using discounted
cash flows, market comparisons, and recent traiosactThese approaches use significant estimatésaasumptions, including
projected future cash flows (including timing), absint rates reflecting the risks inherent in futcash flows, perpetual growth rates,
and determination of appropriate market comparables

We performed our annual goodwill impairment assesgnaduring the second quarter of Fiscal 2014 usivg qualitative
approach discussed above, and giving consider&ti@ur most recent quantitative goodwill impairmégst (the results of which
indicated that the fair values of its reportingtarsignificantly exceeded their respective carrywagues). Based on the results of the
qualitative impairment assessment performed aglgfl] 2013, we concluded that it is more likelpnhnot that the fair values of our
reporting units significantly exceeded their respeccarrying values and there were no reportingsuat risk of impairment.
Additionally, no goodwill impairment charges haweh recorded during any of the three fiscal yesrsgnted.

In evaluating finite-lived intangible assets focogerability, we use our best estimate of futurehctiows expected to result
from the use of the asset and its eventual digpasithere probable. To the extent that estimatédgréuundiscounted net cash flows
attributable to the asset are less than its cayryalue, an impairment loss is recognized equéteadifference between the carrying
value of such asset and its fair value.

In Fiscal 2013, we recorded aggregate impairmeatges of $2 million related to the write-off of t@n finite-lived and
indefinite-lived intangible assets in connectiothithe Rugby Closure Plan. There were no othengitde asset impairment charges
recorded during any of the three fiscal years prese

Impairment of Other Long-Lived Assets

Property and equipment, along with other long-livas$ets, are evaluated for impairment periodicalienever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their rélatarying amounts may not be recoverable. In extidg long-lived assets for
recoverability, we use our best estimate of futash flows expected to result from the use of #setaand its eventual disposition,
where applicable. To the extent that estimatedréutindiscounted net cash flows attributable toabset are less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognized equaheo difference between the carrying value of suctetaand its fair value,
considering external market participant assumptiéssets to be disposed of and for which theredsramitted plan of disposal are
reported at the lower of carrying value or fairualless costs to sell.

In determining future cash flows, we take varioastdrs into account, including changes in merchsingistrategy, the
emphasis on retail store cost controls, the effe€tmacroeconomic trends such as consumer spenditjthe impacts of more
experienced retail store managers and increasatiddeertising. Since the determination of futuastcflows is an estimate of future
performance, future impairments may arise in thenethat future cash flows do not meet expectations

During Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012, recorded non-cash impairment charges of $1 mjli&19 million
(including the $2 million of previously discusseldacges related to the write-off of certain intahgibssets in connection with the
Rugby Closure Plan), and $2 million, respectividyreduce the net carrying value of certain longdi assets, primarily in our Retail
segment, to their estimated fair values. See Ndatdolthe accompanying audited consolidated findrat@ements for further
discussion.

Income Taxes

In determining our income tax provision for finagcieporting purposes, we establish a reserverfoentiain tax positions. If
we consider that a tax position is "more likelyrth#ot" of being sustained upon audit, based salalghe technical merits of the
position, we recognize the tax benefit. We meathedax benefit by determining the largest amohat is greater than 50% likely of
being realized upon settlement, presuming thatt#xeposition is examined by the appropriate taxaghority that has full
knowledge of all relevant information. These assesds can be complex and require significant judgmand we often obtain
assistance from external advisors. To the extaitdhr estimates change or the final tax outcomhede matters is different from
the amounts recorded, such differences will implaetincome tax provision in the period in whichsaeterminations are made. If
the initial assessment fails to result in the rextign of a tax benefit, we regularly monitor oursition and subsequently recognize
the tax benefit if (i) there are changes in tax lamanalogous case law that sufficiently raise ltkelihood of prevailing on the
technical merits of the position to more likely thaot; (i) the statute of limitations expires; (@r) there is a completion of an audit
resulting in a settlement of that tax year with dipgropriate agency.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the tax effect otaiarnet operating loss, capital loss, generalriass credit carryforwards,
and the net tax effects of temporary differencesveen the carrying amount of assets and liabilif@sfinancial statement and
income tax purposes, as determined under enackethws and rates. Valuation allowances are estaisvhen management
determines that it is "more likely than not" thatre portion or all of a deferred tax asset will bet realized. Tax valuation
allowances are analyzed periodically by assesgiegatiequacy of future expected taxable income, lwhjpically involves the
significant use of estimates. Such allowances ditested as events occur, or circumstances chamgiewarrant adjustments to those
balances.

See Note 13 to the accompanying audited consotldatancial statements for further discussion abime taxes.
Contingencies

We are periodically exposed to various contingendiethe ordinary course of conducting our businé@sduding certain
litigation, alleged information system security dch matters, contractual disputes, employee relatiatters, various tax or other
governmental audits, and trademark and intelleqgit@gberty matters and disputes. We record a ligifitir such contingencies to the
extent that we conclude their occurrence is prababld the related losses are estimable. In addifiitris reasonably possible that
an unfavorable settlement of a contingency coultked the established liability, we disclose thévested impact on our liquidity,
financial condition, and results of operationgriéicticable. Management considers many factorsakimg these assessments. As the
ultimate resolution of contingencies is inherenthpredictable, these assessments can involve es s#rcomplex judgments about
future events including, but not limited to, courlings, negotiations between affected parties, gmdrnmental actions. As a result,
the accounting for loss contingencies relies hganil management's judgment in developing the rlaséimates and assumptions.

Stock-Based Compensation

We expense all stock-based compensation awardedpioyees and non-employee directors based orréime date fair value
of the awards over the requisite service perioflisteld for estimated forfeitures.

Stock Options

Stock options are granted to employees and nonegmeldirectors with exercise prices equal to tlrenfarket value of our
common stock on the date of grant. We use the Blatloles option-pricing model to estimate the gdate fair value of stock
options, which requires the use of subjective aggioms. Certain key assumptions involve estimafirtgre uncertain events. The
key factors influencing the estimation processtdel the expected term of the option, expected iligtadf our stock price, our
expected dividend yield, and the risk-free interagt, among others. Generally, once stock optaues are determined, accounting
practices do not permit them to be changed, evéireiéstimates used are different from actual tesul

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units ("RpUs"

We grant restricted shares of Class A common sttt service-based RSUs to certain of our seniocutxes and
non-employee directors. In addition, we grant panfince-based RSUs to such senior executives, & &dy executives, and to
certain of our other employees. The fair valuesestricted stock shares and RSUs are based omitheafue of our unrestricted
Class A common stock, adjusted to reflect the ateserfi dividends for those restricted securities Hra not entitled to dividend
equivalents. Compensation expense for performaaseebRSUs is recognized over the employees' régsisivice period when
attainment of the performance goals is deemed ptephich involves judgment as to achievementesfain performance metrics.

Our performance-based RSU awards with a marketitondn the form of a total shareholder return $R") modifier are
valued based on the expected attainment of perfcenat the end of a three-year performance penddTi&R achieved relative to
the S&P 500 index over the performance period. falrevalue of these awards is estimated using atM@arlo simulation valuation
model prepared by an independent third party. Wodel utilizes multiple input variables that deterenthe probability of satisfying
each market condition stipulated in the terms efdlvard to estimate the fair value of these awadsipensation expense, net of
forfeitures, is updated for the expected net incperormance level against the related goal aettteof each reporting period.

Sensitivity

The assumptions used in calculating the grant feitevalues of stock-based compensation awardsesept our best
estimates. In addition, judgment is required imnesting the number of stock-based awards thatgeated to be forfeited. If
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actual results differ significantly from our estites and assumptions, if we change the assumptiet to estimate the grant date
fair value for future stock-based award grantsf tinere are changes in market conditions, stodetlacompensation expense and,
therefore, our results of operations could be netgrimpacted. A hypothetical 10% change in ouncktbased compensation
expense would have affected our Fiscal 2014 nenirecby approximately $6 million.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

See Note 4 to the accompanying audited consolidéacial statements for a description of certegoently issued or
proposed accounting standards which may impactaosolidated financial statements in future repgrperiods.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk.

For a discussion of our exposure to market risg,"8éarket Risk Management" in Item 7 included elseve in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

See the "Index to Consolidated Financial Statemieqtsearing at the end of this Annual Report ormi-t0-K.

Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure.

Not applicable.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure

Disclosure controls and procedures are the conamudsother procedures of an issuer that are designprovide reasonable
assurance that information required to be discldsethe issuer in the reports that it files or sitbrander the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized, rapdrted within the time period specified in thec&ities and Exchange
Commission's rules and forms. Disclosure contrald procedures include, without limitation, contralsd procedures designed to
ensure that material information required to becldised by an issuer in the reports that it filessobmits under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and commurdcatehe issuer's management, including its pradogxecutive and principal
financial officers, or persons performing similan€tions, as appropriate to allow timely decisigegarding required disclosure.

We have evaluated, under the supervision and Wélparticipation of management, including our CRirécutive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of ousalbsure controls and procedures, as defined leR1Ba-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as of the @nthe fiscal year covered by this annual repods&l on that evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offickave concluded that the Company's disclosure @lsnémd procedures were
effective at the reasonable assurance level, Hedfscal year-end covered by this Annual ReporForm 10-K.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control Over Fhancial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financigdaging, as defined in
Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Internahtoml over financial reporting is designed to paeireasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting drpreparation of financial statements for extempatposes in accordance with
U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. ing& control over financial reporting includes mtaining records that in
reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect transactions; providing reasonable assurancetthasactions are recorded as
necessary for preparation of our financial statdsjgaroviding reasonable assurance that receipt®apenditures of the Company's
assets are made in accordance with managementiaathom; and providing reasonable assurance thatithorized acquisition, use
or disposition of the Company's assets that coaleta material effect on our financial statemerdald/be prevented or detected on
a timely basis. Because of its inherent limitatioimlternal control over financial reporting is niotended to provide absolute
assurance that a misstatement of our financiastants would be prevented or detected. Furthegwhkiation of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting was deaas of a specific date, and continued effectisgiie future periods is subject to
the risks that controls may become inadequate Isecafuchanges in conditions or that the degre@wiptiance with the policies and
procedures may decline.

Under the supervision and with the participatiommanagement, including our Chief Executive Offiead Chief Financial
Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemti@ss of our internal control over financial repgrtas of the end of the fiscal year
covered by this report based on the framework tsyethe Committee of Sponsoring Organizationheffreadway Commission in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework (1992 FramegoBased on this evaluation, management conclutatithe Company's
internal controls over financial reporting wereeetive at the reasonable assurance level as disited year-end covered by this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Ernst & Young LLP, the Company's independent regést public accounting firm, has issued an attestaeport on the
Company's internal control over financial reportagjincluded elsewhere herein.

(c) Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reprting

Except as discussed below, there has been no cirangeinternal control over financial reportingréhg the fourth quarter of
Fiscal 2014 that has materially affected, or issosably likely to materially affect, the Companiigernal control over financial
reporting.

Global Operating and Financial Reporting System lenpentation

We are in the process of implementing a new glopakating and financial reporting information tecluyy system, SAP, as
part of a multi-year plan to integrate and upgradesystems and processes, which we began in FA6@4l The implementation of
this global system is scheduled to occur in phases the next several years. During the fourth guasf Fiscal 2014, we continued
to migrate certain areas of our business to SA®udng global merchandise procurement and custam@ger management and
record-to-report for our North American wholesafgemtions, which is scheduled to be completed std#i2015. During Fiscal
2015, we will also begin planning the migrationoofr European operations to SAP, which will be catgal in stages over the next
several years.

88 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

65

89 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

As the phased implementation of this new systenurscave are experiencing certain changes to owrggses and procedures
which, in turn, result in changes to our internahtrol over financial reporting. While we expect BAo strengthen our internal
financial controls by automating manual processed standardizing business processes and reportirgssaour organization,
management will continue to evaluate and monitarioternal controls as processes and proceduresch of the affected areas
evolve. For a discussion of risks related to thpl@mentation of new systems, see Iltem 1ARisk Factors— Risks Related to Our
Business — Implementation of management informatistems may negatively impact our busifiess.

Chaps Menswear License Acquisition

In April 2013, we acquired control of the North Arian Chaps-branded men's sportswear business TienWarnaco
Group, Inc., a subsidiary of PVH Corp., which wastierly conducted under a licensed arrangement'@Ghaps Menswear License
Acquisition," as discussed in Note 5 to the accamgpey audited consolidated financial statements)riiy Fiscal 2014, we fully
integrated this business into our operations, whidmot result in any material changes to ourtegsinternal controls.

Australia and New Zealand Licensed Operations Agitjon
In July 2013, we acquired control of the Ralph leabranded apparel and accessories business iradaisind New Zealand
from Oroton Group/PRL Australia, which was formedgnducted under a licensed arrangement (the "&lisstand New Zealand
Licensed Operations Acquisition,” as discussed ateNb to the accompanying audited consolidatechéiizd statements). During

Fiscal 2014, we fully integrated this business o operations, which did not result in any matlechanges to our existing internal
controls.

Item 9B. Other Information.

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govene.

Information relating to our directors and corporgteernance will be set forth in the Company's prstatement for its 2014
annual meeting of stockholders to be filed with20ldays after March 29, 2014 (the "Proxy Statemesmitl is incorporated by
reference herein. Information relating to our exeeuofficers is set forth in Item 1 of this Annuakport on Form 10-K under the
caption 'Executive Officer$

The Company has a Code of Ethics for Principal Htiee Officers and Senior Financial Officers thapkes to our principal
executive officer, our principal operating officenyr principal financial officer, our principal amenting officer, and our controller.
You can find our Code of Ethics for Principal Exgee Officers and Senior Financial Officers on olmternet site,
http://investor.ralphlauren.com. We will post anypendments to the Code of Ethics for Principal ExgeuOfficers and Senior
Financial Officers and any waivers that are requicebe disclosed by the rules of either the Séesrand Exchange Commission or
the NYSE on our Internet site.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Information relating to executive and director cangation will be set forth in the Proxy Statemertt sauch information is
incorporated by reference herein.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aianagement and Related Stockholder Matters.
Equity Compensation Plan Information as of March 29 2014

The following table sets forth information as of idia 29, 2014 regarding compensation plans undectwtiie Company's
equity securities are authorized for issuance:

() (b) (©)

Numbers of Number of Securities
Securities to be Remaining Available for
Issued upon Future Issuance Under
Exercise of Equity Compensation
Outstanding Weighted-Average Plans (Excluding
Options, Warrants Exercise Price of Securities Reflected in
Plan Category and Rights Outstanding Options ($) Column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders 4,515,460 $ 116.66 @ 3,843,8430)
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders — — —
Total 4,515,469 $ 116.66 3,843,843

@ Consists of 3,026,335 options to purchase sharesio€lass A common stock and 1,489,134 restristedk units that
are payable solely in shares of Class A commorkstiocluding 539,284 service-based restricted stagis that have
fully vested but for which the underlying sharevéaot yet been delivered as of March 29, 2014)e<wot include
5,185 outstanding restricted shares that are sutojdorfeiture.

@  Represents the weighted average exercise pricatstamding stock options.

®  All of the securities remaining available for futlissuance set forth in column (c) may be in thenfof options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricteatls units, performance awards, or other stock-dbasgards under the
Company's 1997 Stock Incentive Plan and 2010 Stocéntive Plan (the "Plans"). An additional 5,185%tstanding
shares of restricted stock granted under the Coyp&tans that remain subject to forfeiture arerefiected in column

(c).

Other information relating to security ownershipoefrtain beneficial owners and management will détefarth in the Proxy
Statement and such information is incorporatedeigrence herein.
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Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, a@bitector Independence.

The information required to be included by Item d3Form 10-K will be included in the Proxy Staterheand such
information is incorporated by reference herein.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required to be included by Item d#4Form 10-K will be included in the Proxy Staterheand such
information is incorporated by reference herein.

68

93 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

PART IV

ltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(@) 1., 2. Financial Statements and Financiae®tent Schedules. See index on Page F-1.

3.  Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorponadiothe Company (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Comps.
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 33333} (the "S-1"))
3.2 Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and &edtCertificate of Incorporation of the Comparile(f as
Exhibit 3.1 to the Form 8-K filed August 16, 2011)
3.3 Third Amended and Restated By-laws of the Comgfiled as Exhibit 3.1 to the Form 8-K dated Febmu4,
2014)
4.1 Indenture, dated as of September 26, 2013, thpatween the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, Ndtiona
Association (including the form of Note) (filed Bghibit 4.1 to the Form 8-K dated September 233201
4.2 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Sepe@6, 2013, by and between the Company and \Wettyo
Bank, National Association (filed as Exhibit 4.2the Form 8-K dated September 23, 2013)
10.1 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of 3ud®97 by and among Ralph Lauren, GS Capital Begth.P.,

GS Capital Partner PRL Holding I, L.P., GS Cagtattners PRL Holding I, L.P., Stone Street Funé4,9..P.,
Stone Street 1994 Subsidiary Corp., Bridge StreadF.994, L.P., and the Company (filed as ExhiBiB%o the

S-1)

10.2 Form of Indemnification Agreement between tlenpany and its Directors and Executive Officeredfias
Exhibit 10.26 to the S-1)

10.3 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, eféetdive as of June 26, 2012, between the Compady
Ralph Lauren (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8Hkd July 2, 2012)t

10.4 Amended and Restated Employment Agreementtifeas of November 1, 2013, between the Compady a
Roger N. Farah (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Forid 8ated September 18, 2013)t

10.5 Amended and Restated Employment Agreementtifeas of November 1, 2013, between the Compady a
Jackwyn Nemerov (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the F@i{ dated September 18, 2013)*

10.6* Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restatepl&ment Agreement, made effective as of March28.4,
between the Company and Jackwyn Nemerovt

10.7 Amended and Restated Employment Agreementtizeas of November 1, 2013, between the Compady a
Christopher H. Peterson (filed as Exhibit 10.3h® Form 8-K dated September 18, 2013)t

10.8* Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restatepl&ment Agreement, made effective as of March28.4,
between the Company and Christopher Petersont

10.9 Amended and Restated Employment Agreementtieffeas of March 1, 2014, between the Company and
Mitchell A. Kosh (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Fo®aK dated February 11, 2014)t

10.10 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, datedfalune 8, 2004, between the Company and Ralphebg(iled

as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company's Annual Reporform 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 2, 20@5e(
"Fiscal 2005 10-K"))t

10.11 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, datedfalune 8, 2004, between the Company and Ralprehdfiled
as Exhibit 10.15 to the Fiscal 2005 10-K)t

10.12 Executive Officer Annual Incentive Plan, asaded as of August 9, 2012 (filed as Appendix BhtoCompany's
Definitive Proxy Statement dated July 2, 2012)t

10.13 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, datedfaluly 1, 2004, between the Company and Rogé&akah
(filed as Exhibit 10.18 to the Fiscal 2005 10-K)t

10.14 Amendment No. 1, dated as of December 23,,200Be Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement lestwthe
Company and Roger N. Farah (filed as Exhibit 16.the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended Drdwer 27,
2008)t

10.15 Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated dsilyf23, 2002, between the Company and Roger MhHgited as
Exhibit 10.19 to the Fiscal 2005 10-K)*

10.16 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, datedfatuly 23, 2002, between the Company and Rogérakah

(filed as Exhibit 10.20 to the Fiscal 2005 10-K)t

94 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

69

95 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

Exhibit

Number Description

10.17 Deferred Compensation Agreement, dated asmtgber 19, 2002, between the Company and Rodeardh
(filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the Fiscal 2005 10-K) ¥

10.18 1997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, as Amdratel Restated as of August 12, 2004 (filed astix®9.1 to
the Form 8-K dated August 12, 2004)*

10.19 Amendment, as of June 30, 2006, to the 199ig{I@rm Stock Incentive Plan, as Amended and Rebsts of
August 12, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Fd&@rQ for the quarterly period ended July 1, 2006)t

10.20 Amendment No. 2, dated as of May 21, 200hadl997 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, as Ameratet
Restated as of August 12, 2004 (filed as Exhibi2&@o the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfar
fiscal year ended March 28, 2009)t

10.21 Amended and Restated 2010 Long-Term IncePRiime, amended as of August 8, 2013 (filed as Exfiil to
the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended Juhe2013)t

10.22 Cliff Restricted Performance Share Unit An@nerview containing the standard terms of restuigterformance
share awards under the 1997 Long-Term Stock Inceitian (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q tfue
quarterly period ended July 1, 2006)t

10.23 Pro-Rata Restricted Performance Share Unitd@&erview containing the standard terms of retsd
performance share awards under the 1997 Long-Tésok $1centive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July Q&0

10.24 Stock Option Award Overview - U.S. containthg standard terms of stock option awards undet 99¢
Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit2@ the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period endely 1,
2006)t

10.25* Cliff Restricted Performance Share Unit Aw&rderview containing the standard terms of cliffitricted
performance share unit awards under the AmendedRasthted 2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plant

10.26* Pro-Rata Restricted Performance Share UnérévDverview containing the standard terms of icistt
performance share unit awards under the AmendedRasthted 2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plant

10.27* Stock Option Award Overview containing thargtard terms of stock option awards under the Areerehd
Restated 2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plant

10.28* Cliff Restricted Performance Share Unit witBR Modifier Award Overview containing the stand&dms of
cliff restricted performance share unit awards uride Amended and Restated 2010 Long-Term Stoakntne
Plant

10.29 Credit Agreement, dated March 10, 2011, antbegompany, Polo JP Acqui C.V., Polo Ralph Lauren
Kabushiki Kaisha and Polo Ralph Lauren Asia Padifinited, as the borrowers, the lenders party tioer@nd
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative a(jied as Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q for the gady
period ended October 1, 2011)

10.30 Amended and Restated Polo Ralph Lauren SupplairExecutive Retirement Plan (filed as Exhil@itl1to the
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period enBedember 31, 2005)t

12.1* Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Gjesr

14.1 Code of Ethics for Principal Executive Officarsd Senior Financial Officers (filed as Exhibit14o the

Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the figezdr ended March 29, 2003)

21.1* List of Significant Subsidiaries of the Compan

23.1* Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

31.1* Certification of Ralph Lauren required by 1FRC240.13a-14(a)

31.2* Certification of Christopher H. Peterson reqdiby 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)

32.1% Certification of Ralph Lauren Pursuant to 18IC. Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to Sefiénf the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2* Certification of Christopher H. Peterson Parsto 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted purdag®ection 906

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit
Number Description
101* Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 40Refyulation S-T: (i) the Consolidated Balance Shatbdarch 29,

2014 and March 30, 2013, (ii) the Consolidatedesteints of Income for the fiscal years ended Magh 2
2014, March 30, 2013, and March 31, 2012, (iii) @@nsolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomihéo
fiscal years ended March 29, 2014, March 30, 28hd8,March 31, 2012, (iv) the Consolidated Statemeht
Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended March 2942March 30, 2013, and March 31, 2012, (v) the ©bdated
Statements of Equity for the fiscal years endeddd&9, 2014, March 30, 2013, and March 31, 2012,(ai)
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 shall not be deemed "filled'purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exglafct of 1934, or otherwise
subject to the liability of that Section. Such éits shall not be deemed incorporated by refer@mtoeany filing under the Securities
Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

* Filed herewith.

t  Management contract or compensatory plan or agraegt.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causedréport to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly auzkdr

Date: May 15, 2014

RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION

By: /s CHRISTOPHER H. PETERSON

Christopher H. Peterson

Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative ¢affi
and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bdigwhe following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the ad#ps and on the dates indicated:

Signature

/s’ RALPH LAUREN

Ralph Lauren

/s ROGER N. FARAH

Roger N. Farah

Iss  JACKWYN L. NEMEROV

Jackwyn L. Nemerov

/s/ CHRISTOPHER H. PETERSON

Christopher H. Peterson

/s’ JOHN R. ALCHIN

John R. Alchin

/s ARNOLD H. ARONSON

Arnold H. Aronson

/s FRANK A. BENNACK, JR.

Frank A. Bennack, Jr.

/sl DR.JOYCE F. BROWN

Dr. Joyce F. Brown

/s JOEL L. FLEISHMAN

Joel L. Fleishman

/s HUBERT JOLY

Hubert Joly
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Chairman of the Board, Chief Ex&ge Officer and

Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Vice Chairman and Dior

President & Chief Operati@fficer and Director

Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative O
and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Date

May 15, 2014

May 15, 2014

May 15, 2014

May 15, 2014

May 15, 2014

May 15, 2014

May 15, 2014

May 15, 2014

May 15, 2014

May 15, 2014
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Signature Title Date
/s/  DAVID LAUREN Director May 15, 2014

David Lauren

/s JUDITH A. MCHALE Director May 15, 2014
Judith A. McHale

/s STEVEN P. MURPHY Director May 15, 2014
Steven P. Murphy

/s ROBERT C. WRIGHT Director May 15, 2014
Robert C. Wright
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RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 29, March 30,
2014 2013
(millions)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 797 % 974
Short-term investments 488 325
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $270iamiland $245 million 588 458
Inventories 1,020 896
Income tax receivable 62 29
Deferred tax assets 150 120
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 224 161
Total current assets 3,329 2,963
Non-current investments 2 81
Property and equipment, net 1,322 932
Deferred tax assets 39 22
Goodwill 964 968
Intangible assets, net 299 328
Other non-current assets 135 124
Total assets $ 6,090 $ 5,418
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ — 3 267
Accounts payable 203 147
Income tax payable 77 43
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 690 664
Total current liabilities 970 1,121
Long-term debt 300 —
Non-current liability for unrecognized tax benefits 132 150
Other non-current liabilities 654 362
Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
Total liabilities 2,056 1,633
Equity:
Class A common stock, par value $.01 per shar€; 198lion and 93.6 million shares
issued; 61.8 million and 61.0 million shares outdtag 1 1
Class B common stock, par value $.01 per shar;raélion and 29.9 million shares
issued and outstanding — —
Additional paid-in-capital 1,979 1,752
Retained earnings 5,257 4,647
Treasury stock, Class A, at cost (36.2 million 82d5 million shares) (3,317) (2,709)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 114 94
Total equity 4,034 3,785
Total liabilities and equity $ 6,000 $ 5,418

See accompanying notes.
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RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions, except per share data)
Net sales $ 7,284 $ 6,763 $ 6,679
Licensing revenue 166 182 181
Net revenues 7,450 6,945 6,860
Cost of goods sofd) (3,140) (2,789) (2,862)
Gross profit 4,310 4,156 3,998
Other costs and expenses:
Selling, general, and administrative expefies (3,142) (2,971) (2,916)
Amortization of intangible assets (35) (27) (29)
Gain on acquisition of Chaps 16 — —
Impairments of assets 1) (29) 2)
Restructuring and other charges (18) (12) 12)
Total other costs and expenses, net (3,180) (3,029) (2,959)

Operating income 1,130 1,127 1,039
Foreign currency losses (8) (12) 2)
Interest expense (20) (22) (24)
Interest and other income, net 3 6 11
Equity in losses of equity-method investees 9) (20) 9)
Income before provision for income taxes 1,096 1,089 1,015
Provision for income taxes (320) (339) (334)
Net income $ 776 $ 750 $ 681
Net income per common share:

Basic $ 855 % 821 % 7.35

Diluted $ 843 $ 8.00 $ 7.13
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 90.7 91.3 92.7

Diluted 92.0 93.7 95.5
Dividends declared per share $ 170 $ 160 $ 0.80
@ Includes total depreciation expense of: $ (223) $ (206) $ (196)

See accompanying notes.
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RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)

Net income $ 776 $ 750 $ 681
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 52 (93) (50)
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on dtvies (27) (13) 32
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) onaailfor-sale investments 5) 4 1
Net realized and unrealized losses on defined belahs — 1) (2)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 20 (103) (29)
Total comprehensive income $ 796 $ 647 $ 662

See accompanying notes.
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RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigenl by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)

Equity in losses of equity-method investees
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense
Gain on acquisition of Chaps

Non-cash impairment of assets

Other non-cash charges, net

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensatiangements

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income tax receivables and payables
Deferred income
Other balance sheet changes, net
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments

Acquisitions and ventures, net of cash acquired
Change in restricted cash deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Repayment of debt
Payments of capital lease obligations
Payments of dividends

Repurchases of common stock, including sharesrsiered for tax withholdings

Prepayments of common stock repurchases
Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensatiangements

Payment on interest rate swap termination
Other financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casha&nts
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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Fiscal Years Ended
March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
776 $ 750 $ 681
258 233 225
1 14 (15)
9 10 9
93 88 78
(16) — —
1 19 2
6 3 3
(34) (41) (40)
(104) 82 (114)
(77) (68) (148)
(56) 4 (39)
43 (57) 33
59 (13) 122
(18) (30) (19)
(34) 25 107
907 1,019 885
(390) (276) (272)
(1,067) (876) (1,360)
1,011 1,058 1,394
(40) (22) 12)
(2) 3 1
(488) (113) (249)
300 — 108
(269) — (108)
©) ©) 8
(149) (128) (74)
(558) (497) (419)
— (50) —
52 49 61
34 41 40
— — @®
— (1) —
(599) (595) (408)
3 ) )
(277) 302 219
974 672 453
797 $ 974 $ 672

See accompanying notes.
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RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

Additional Treasury Stock
Common Stocka) Paid-in Retained at Cost Total
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Shares Amount  AOC(b) Equity
(millions)
Balance at April 2, 2011 1203 $ 1 $ 1,445 $ 3,436 258 $(1,793) $ 216 $ 3,305
Comprehensive income:
Net income 681
Other comprehensive loss (29)

Total comprehensive income 662
Cash dividends declared (74) (74)
Repurchases of common stock 3.4 (419) (419)
Stock-based compensation 78 78
Shares issued and tax benefits recognized

pursuant to stock-based compensation fflans 1.6 — 101 101
Balance at March 31, 2012 1219 $ 1 $ 1624 $ 4,043 292 $(2212) $ 197 $ 3,653
Comprehensive income:

Net income 750

Other comprehensive loss (103)

Total comprehensive income 647
Cash dividends declared (146) (146)
Repurchases of common stock (50) © 3.4 (497) (547)
Stock-based compensation 88 88
Shares issued and tax benefits recognized

pursuant to stock-based compensation fflans 1.6 — 90 90
Balance at March 30, 2013 1235 $ 1 $ 1,752 $ 4,647 326 $(2,709) $ 94 $ 3,785
Comprehensive income:

Net income 776

Other comprehensive income 20

Total comprehensive income 796
Cash dividends declared (153) (153)
Repurchases of common stock 50 © 3.6 (608) (558)
Stock-based compensation 93 93
Shares issued and tax benefits recognized

pursuant to stock-based compensation fflans 1.4 — 86 86
Conversion of stock-based compensation awWards 2) (13) (15)
Balance at March 29, 2014 1249 $ 1 $ 1,979 $ 5,257 362 $(3,317) $ 114 $ 4,034

@ Includes Class A and Class B common stock. In Fi20a4 and Fiscal 2013, 3.0 million and 1.0 millishares, respectively, of
Class B common stock were converted into an equaber of shares of Class A common stock pursuatttetéerms of the Class B
common stock (see Note 18).

(b) Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

© Relates to a $50 million payment made in March 20d8er a prepaid share repurchase repurchase progfsch resulted in the
delivery of the related shares at the conclusiahefrepurchase term in Fiscal 2014 (see Note 18).

(d) Includes excess tax benefits relating to stock-thasenpensation arrangements of approximately $3#bmi$41 million, and $40
million in Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2Pfespectively.

(e) Includes the conversion of certain fully-vested argensed stock-based compensation awards to acasfibution into a deferred
compensation account (see Note 18).

See accompanying notes.
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RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Business

Ralph Lauren Corporation ("RLC") is a global leadethe design, marketing, and distribution of piem lifestyle products,
including men's, women's, and children's appacelessories, fragrances, and home furnishings. Rb@¢sstanding reputation and
distinctive brands have been consistently developess an expanding number of products, brandses szhannels, and
international markets. RLC's brand names includipiRaauren, Ralph Lauren Collection, Purple Lalidhck Label, Polo, Polo
Ralph Lauren, Blue Label, RRL, RLX Ralph Laurenuten Ralph Lauren, Ralph Lauren Childrenswear, DefiSupply Ralph
Lauren, Chaps, and Club Monaco, among others. Riddta subsidiaries are collectively referred toelreas the "Company,” "we,"
"us," "our," and "ourselves," unless the contegidates otherwise.

The Company classifies its businesses into thrgmeets: Wholesale, Retail, and Licensing. The Cawpgawvholesale sales
are made principally to major department storessratialty stores around the world. The Company sddls directly to consumers
through its integrated retail channel, which inésdetail stores around the world; concession-bakeg-within-shops located in
Asia, Australia, New Zealand, and Europe; and retaommerce operations in North America, Europel, Asia. The Company also
licenses to unrelated third parties for specifiedqgals the right to operate retail stores and ®itssvarious trademarks in connection
with the manufacture and sale of designated pradsath as apparel, eyewear, and fragrances.

2. Basis of Presentation
Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements are prdparaccordance with accounting principles gengraticepted in the U.S.
("U.S. GAAP") and present the consolidated finahpiasition, income, comprehensive income, and dashs of the Company,
including all entities in which the Company hasaatecolling financial interest and is determinedb® the primary beneficiary. All
significant intercompany balances and transacti@mve been eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year

The Company utilizes a 52-53 week fiscal year emdin the Saturday closest to March 31. As suclcaFi®014 ended on
March 29, 2014 and was a 52-week period; FiscaB28tded on March 30, 2013 and was a 52-week pexiatifFiscal 2012 ended
on March 31, 2012 and was also a 52-week period.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymvith U.S. GAAP requires management to make extts and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported iffitiamcial statements and footnotes thereto. Actesililts could differ materially
from those estimates.

Significant estimates inherent in the preparatidnth® consolidated financial statements includeemess for bad debt,
customer returns, discounts, end-of-season marksloamd operational chargebacks; the realizabilftyneentory; reserves for
litigation and other contingencies; useful liveslampairments of long-lived tangible and intangilkesets; accounting for income
taxes and related uncertain tax positions; theatan of stock-based compensation and related éxgéorfeiture rates; reserves for
restructuring; and accounting for business comimnat among others.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to tha periods' financial information in order to confoto the current period's

presentation, including a change in the mannerthichvthe Company allocates certain costs to itentaple segments, as further
described in Note 22.
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RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized across all segments of thi@dss when there is persuasive evidence of angemeent, delivery has
occurred, the price has been fixed or is deterniénamnd collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue within the Company's Wholesale segmentdegnized at the time title passes and risk of lessansferred to
customers. Wholesale revenue is recorded net ohasts of returns, discounts, end-of-season markdmserves, operational
chargebacks, and certain cooperative advertisiltgvahces. Returns and allowances require pre-appfoem management and
discounts are based on trade terms. Estimatesnfroeseason markdown reserves are based on hkatdrends, actual and
forecasted seasonal results, an evaluation of museonomic and market conditions, retailer peréomoe, and, in certain cases,
contractual terms. Estimates for operational cHzagks are based on actual notifications of ordé#illfieent discrepancies and
historical trends. The Company reviews and refthese estimates on at least a quarterly basisCbingpany's historical estimates
of these costs have not differed materially fronuakresults.

Retail store and concession-based shop-within-seepnue is recognized net of estimated returndettime of sale to
consumers. E-commerce revenue from sales of predudered through the Company's retail e-commaetes s recognized upon
delivery of the shipment to its customers. Suclenere is also reduced by an estimate of returns.

Gift cards issued by the Company are recordedliabiity until they are redeemed, at which poiavenue is recognized. The
Company recognizes income for unredeemed gift catds the likelihood of redemption by a customeeimote and the Company
determines that it does not have a legal obligatmemit the value of the unredeemed gift cardhi® relevant jurisdiction as
unclaimed or abandoned property.

Revenue from licensing arrangements is recogniZeehvearned in accordance with the terms of therlyidg agreements,
generally based upon the higher of (i) contracjugllaranteed minimum royalty levels or (ii) actsales and royalty data, or initial
estimates thereof, received from the Company'sdiees.

The Company accounts for sales taxes and othéedeiaxes on a net basis, excluding such taxes feesnue.
Cost of Goods Sold and Selling Expenses

Cost of goods sold includes the expenses incumedctiuire and produce inventory for sale, includprgduct costs,
freight-in, and import costs, as well as changezgerves for shrinkage and inventory realizabiBgins and losses associated with
forward foreign currency exchange contracts that dgsignated as cash flow hedges of inventory pseshare also recognized
within cost of goods sold when the hedged invenisrgold. The costs of selling merchandise, inclgdihose associated with
preparing the merchandise for sale, such as piclgagking, warehousing, and order charges ("hagdimsts"), are included in
selling, general, and administrative ("SG&A") expes in the consolidated statements of income.

Shipping and Handling Costs

The costs associated with shipping goods to custrme reflected as a component of SG&A expenséseirconsolidated
statements of income. Shipping costs were apprdei;n&37 million in each of Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 30&nd Fiscal 2012. Handling
costs (described above), also included within SG&fienses, were approximately $179 million, $150ioni) and $144 million in
Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012, respalgtiShipping and handling costs billed to custmreee included in revenue.

Advertising, Marketing, and Promotional Costs

Advertising costs, including the costs to produckestising, are expensed when the advertisemeriirss exhibited.
Out-of-store advertising costs paid to wholesalst@mers under cooperative advertising programsapensed as an advertising
cost within SG&A expenses if both the identifiedvedising benefit is sufficiently separable fronetpurchase of the Company's
products by customers and the fair value of suctefiteis measurable. Otherwise, such costs areatefll as a reduction of revenue.
Costs of in-store advertising paid to wholesalet@ugrs under cooperative advertising programs atentluded in advertising
costs, but are reflected as a reduction of reveinee the benefits are not sufficiently separatdenfthe purchases of the Company's
products by customers. Costs associated with thé&etiiag and promotion of the Company's productsiactuded within SG&A
expenses.
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RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Advertising, marketing, and promotional expenseswamed to approximately $256 million, $217 milliemd $213 million in
Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012, respelgti Deferred advertising, marketing, and prommaiocosts, which principally
relate to advertisements that have not yet beeibiéadh or services that have not yet been receiwede approximately $9 million
and $8 million at the end of Fiscal 2014 and Fi&tH3, respectively, and were recorded within picepapenses and other current
assets in the Company's consolidated balance sheets

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

The financial position and operating results ofefgn operations are primarily consolidated usingirtliespective local
currency as the functional currency. Local curreasgets and liabilities are translated to U.S. @slht the rates of exchange in
effect on the balance sheet date, and local cwrenenues and expenses are translated to U.SarBall average rates of exchange
in effect during the period. The resulting translatgains or losses are included in the consolitlatatements of comprehensive
income as a component of other comprehensive incfioss) ("OCI") and in the consolidated statemeotsequity within
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ("BJOGains and losses on the translation of intampany loans made to foreign
subsidiaries that are of a long-term investmentneadlso are included within this component of gqui

The Company also recognizes gains and losses nsatrons that are denominated in a currency dtiar the respective
entity's functional currency. Foreign currency gaction gains and losses also include amountzegatin the settlement of certain
intercompany loans with foreign subsidiaries. Fgmeiurrency transaction gains and losses are rézgjyin earnings and separately
disclosed in the consolidated statements of income.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss), which is reportechim ¢onsolidated statements of comprehensive inameconsolidated
statements of equity, consists of net income ahdrajains and losses affecting equity that, und&r GAAP, are excluded from net
income. The components of OCI for the Company prilsnaonsist of foreign currency translation gaifissses); net realized and
unrealized gains (losses) on designated hedgingiments, such as forward foreign currency exchamggracts; net realized and
unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-salestwments; and net realized and unrealized gaissd#) related to the Company's
defined benefit plans.

Net Income per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is computed Wigidg net income applicable to common shares ley wieighted-
average number of common shares outstanding dtiengeriod. Weighted-average common shares indhdees of the Company's
Class A and Class B common stock. Diluted net ire@er common share adjusts basic net income pemoonshare for the effects
of outstanding stock options, restricted stockiriged stock units ("RSUs"), and any other pothtidilutive instruments, only in
the periods in which such effects are dilutive urttie treasury stock method.

The weighted-average number of common shares adista used to calculate basic net income per comstare is
reconciled to shares used to calculate dilutednoeime per common share as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended
March 29, March 30, March 31,

2014 2013 2012
Basic shares 90.7 91.3 92.7
Dilutive effect of stock options, restricted stoekd RSUs 1.3 2.4 2.8
Diluted shares 92.0 93.7 95.5

All earnings per share amounts have been calculbée®d on unrounded numbers. Options to purchaseesstof the
Company's common stock at an exercise price gréd@earthe average market price of the common sdoacig the reporting period
are anti-dilutive and therefore not included in tloenputation of diluted net income per common sharaddition, the Company has
outstanding RSUs that are issuable only upon theeaement of certain service and/or performancésg®erformance-based RSUs
are included in the computation of diluted shanely ¢o the extent that the underlying performanoaditions (and any applicable
market condition modifiers) (i) are satisfied adlw end of the reporting period or (ii) would mnsidered satisfied if the end of the
reporting period were the end of the related cgatirty period and the result would be dilutive

112 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

113 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

under the treasury stock method. As of the endisdaF 2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012, theresvegproximately 1.2 million,
0.5 million, and 0.4 million, respectively, addit@ shares issuable upon exercise of anti-dilutpgons and contingent vesting of
performance-based RSUs, which were excluded frendiflated share calculations.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes expense for all stock-besegensation awards granted to employees and nplogee directors
based on the grant date fair value of the awar@s the requisite service period, adjusted for et forfeitures. The Company
uses the Black-Scholes valuation model to estinteyrant date fair value of its stock option avgafebr performance-based RSUs
awards that include a market condition in the fafa total shareholder return ("TSR") modifier, iempany uses a Monte Carlo
simulation valuation model to estimate the grariedair value. The fair values of restricted staeskards, service-based RSUs, and
performance-based RSUs that are not subject toRam&difier are determined based on the fair valuthe Company's Class A
common stock on the date of grant, adjusted t@cethe absence of dividends for those awardsatenot entitled to dividend
equivalents. Compensation expense for all perfoo@drased RSUs is recognized over the requisitécseperiod when attainment
of performance goals is deemed probable, net afmattd forfeitures. The Company recognizes comgemsa&xpense on an
accelerated basis for all awards with graded vgs8mms, including stock options, restricted staukg RSUs. For RSU awards with
cliff vesting terms, compensation expense is reaghon a straight-line basis. See Note 20 foh&rtiscussion of the Company's
stock-based compensation plans.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly ligindestments with original maturities of 90 days less, including
investments in debt securities. Investments in deburities are diversified among high-credit gyadiecurities in accordance with
the Company's risk-management policies, and priynisaélude money market funds.

Restricted Cash

From time to time, the Company is required to plaash in escrow with various banks as collaterainarily to secure
guarantees of corresponding amounts made by theshiarinternational tax authorities on behalf ¢ thompany, such as to secure
refunds of value-added tax payments in certairrmat@gonal tax jurisdictions or in the case of certaternational tax audits. Such
cash has been classified as restricted cash andedps a component of either prepaid expenseoted current assets or other
non-current assets in the Company's consolidatégh@® sheets. The cash inflows and outflows relatedestricted cash are
classified as investing activities in the Comparcgssolidated statements of cash flows.

Investments

The Company's investment objectives include capitaservation, maintaining adequate liquidity, dsification to minimize
liquidity and credit risk, and achievement of madimreturns within the guidelines set forth in tren@pany's investment policy.

Short-term investments consist of investments wtiehCompany expects to convert into cash withia year, including time
deposits, which have original maturities greateantt®0 days. Non-current investments consist ofehosestments which the
Company does not expect to convert into cash withimyear.

The Company classifies all of its investments iousities at the time of purchase as available-&de-sThese investments are
recorded at fair value with unrealized gains oséssclassified as a component of AOCI in the cadst@d balance sheets, and
related realized gains or losses classified asrgpoaent of interest and other income, net, in thesolidated statements of income.
Cash inflows and outflows related to the sale anthmse of investments are classified as invesoiiyities in the Company's
consolidated statements of cash flows.

Equity-method Investments

Investments in companies in which the Company lgsfeant influence, but less than a controllirigaincial interest, are
accounted for using the equity method. Signifidafiience is generally presumed to exist when then@any owns between 20%
and 50% of the investee. However, if the Compary dgreater than 50% ownership interest in an teeeand the noncontrolling
shareholders held certain rights that allowed theparticipate in the day-to-day operations ofltheiness, the Company would also
generally use the equity method of accounting.
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RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Under the equity method of accounting, the follagviamounts are recorded in the Company's consalidétencial
statements: the Company's investment in and amalugtgo and from the investee are included in tresalidated balance sheets;
the Company's share of the investee's earningsepss included in the consolidated statementscafme; and dividends, cash
distributions, loans, or other cash received frbmihvestee and additional cash investments, lepayments, or other cash paid to
the investee are included in the consolidated rstatés of cash flows.

The Company's investments include a joint ventamed the Ralph Lauren Watch and Jewelry Company,(®& "RL
Watch Company"), formed with Compagnie FinancieighBmont SA ("Richemont"), the Swiss luxury goodsup, in March 2007.
This joint venture is a Swiss corporation whoseppge is to design, develop, manufacture, sell,dstlibute luxury watches and
fine jewelry through Ralph Lauren stores, as wslttough fine independent jewelry and luxury watetailers around the world.
The Company accounts for its 50% interest in the/Ritch Company under the equity method of accognfRoyalty payments due
to the Company under the related license agreefoensse of certain of its trademarks are refleaedicensing revenue within the
consolidated statements of income.

Impairment Assessment

The Company evaluates investments held in unrehliass positions for other-than-temporary impairmen a quarterly
basis. Such evaluation involves a variety of coarsitions, including assessments of the risks amertainties associated with
general economic conditions and distinct conditiaffecting specific issuers. Factors consideredhey Company include (i) the
length of time and the extent to which the fairueahas been below cost; (ii) the financial conditicredit worthiness, and near-term
prospects of the issuer; (iii) the length of tinobematurity; (iv) future economic conditions and kedrforecasts; (v) the Company's
intent and ability to retain its investment for exripd of time sufficient to allow for recovery ofamket value; and (vi) an assessment
of whether it is more likely than not that the Canp will be required to sell its investment befoeeovery of market value. See
Note 16 for further information relating to the Cpamy's investments.

Accounts Receivable

In the normal course of business, the Company dstemedit to wholesale customers that satisfy @efinredit criteria.
Accounts receivable, net is recorded at carryirlgejavhich approximates fair value, and is presirieche Company's consolidated
balance sheets net of certain reserves and all@sarihese reserves and allowances consist ofs@rves for returns, discounts,
end-of-season markdowns, operational chargebackscertain cooperative advertising allowances @eeenue Recognitiofor
further discussion of related accounting polices)l (ii) allowances for doubtful accounts.

A rollforward of the activity in the Company's reges for returns, discounts, end-of-season markdpvaperational
chargebacks, and certain cooperative advertisiogvahces is presented below:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)

Beginning reserve balance $ 230 $ 247  $ 213
Amount charged against revenue to increase reserve 83 7 707 650
Amount credited against customer accounts to deeresserve (764) (718) (611)
Foreign currency translation 5 (6) (5)

Ending reserve balance $ 254 % 230 $ 247

An allowance for doubtful accounts is determinetigh analysis of periodic aging of accounts resfgliy, assessments of
collectability based on an evaluation of historiaatl anticipated trends, the financial conditiorinef Company's customers, and an
evaluation of the impact of economic conditionspamother factors.
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A rollforward of the activity in the Company's allance for doubtful accounts is presented below:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)

Beginning reserve balance $ 15 % 16 $ 18

Amount recorded to expense to increase re&erve 3 3 2
Amount written-off against customer accounts tordase

reserve 3) 3) 3)

Foreign currency translation 1 1) 1)

Ending reserve balance $ 16 $ 15  $ 16

@  Amounts recorded to bad debt expense are incluitbinvEG&A expenses in the consolidated statemefiiscome.
Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company sells its wholesale merchandise priynéoi major department and specialty stores arotedworld, and
extends credit based on an evaluation of each mest® financial capacity and condition, usuallyhweitt requiring collateral. In the
Company's wholesale business, concentration ofitcristf is relatively limited due to the large nuerbof customers and their
dispersion across many geographic areas. HowéweiCompany has three key wholesale customers émarate significant sales
volume. During Fiscal 2014, the Company's salestdolargest wholesale customer, Macy's, Inc. ("Msldy accounted for
approximately 12% of its total net revenues, arel @mpany's sales to its three largest wholesatmers (including Macy's)
represented approximately 25% of total net revenédssof March 29, 2014, these three key wholesalstatners represented
approximately 35% of gross accounts receivable.

Inventories

The Company holds inventory that is sold througtolebale distribution channels to major departmémtes and specialty
retail stores, including the Company's own retaites. The Company also holds retail inventory thegold in its own stores and
e-commerce sites directly to consumers. Wholesaderetail inventories are stated at the lower aft @ estimated realizable value,
with cost primarily determined on a weighted-averagst basis.

The Company continuously evaluates the compositibiits inventories, assessing slow-turning prodact all fashion
product. Estimated realizable value of inventorydéermined based on an analysis of historicalssands of the Company's
individual product lines, the impact of market tlerand economic conditions, and a forecast of éduti@mand, giving consideration
to the value of current in-house orders for futsaes of inventory, as well as plans to sell inegnthrough the Company's factory
stores. Estimates may differ from actual results tuthe quantity, quality, and mix of productsnmentory, consumer and retailer
preferences, and market conditions. Reserves fogntory shrinkage, representing the risk of physloas of inventory, are
estimated based on historical experience and gustad based upon physical inventory counts. Thea@@my's historical estimates
of these costs and its related provisions haveliffered materially from actual results.

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net is stated at costdessmulated depreciation. Depreciation is calcdlatging the straight-line
method based upon the estimated useful lives ofedegble assets, which range from three to sevamsyir furniture, fixtures,
machinery and equipment, and computer software eauipment; and from ten to forty years for buildingnd improvements.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over theeshaf the estimated useful lives of the respectssets or the term of the
related lease.

Property and equipment, along with other long-livaess$ets, are evaluated for impairment periodicalhenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their rélaggrying values may not be fully recoverableeWaluating long-lived assets for
recoverability, including finite-lived intangibless described below, the Company uses its bestagstiofi future cash flows expected
to result from the use of the asset and its evémtisposition. To the extent that estimated futureliscounted net cash flows
attributable to the asset are less than the cagrmatue, an impairment loss is recognized equ#iedlifference between
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the carrying value of such asset and its fair vatoasidering external market participant assumgtié\ssets to be disposed of and
for which there is a committed plan for dispos& eeported at the lower of carrying value or falue less costs to sell.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

At acquisition, the Company estimates and recdndsfair value of purchased intangible assets, whjgically consist of
reacquired license agreements, customer relatipsisinion-compete agreements, and/or order backlbg.fair values of these
intangible assets are estimated based on manaderaesé¢ssment, considering independent third-pgpyaisals when necessary.
The excess of the purchase consideration overainevélue of net assets acquired, both tangible iatahgible, is recorded as
goodwill. Goodwill, including any goodwill includeith the carrying value of investments accounteduising the equity method of
accounting, and certain other intangible assetsnddeto have indefinite useful lives, are not anzedi Rather, goodwill and such
indefinite-lived intangible assets are assessednfipairment, at least annually, initially using aatjtative approach to determine
whether it is more likely than not that the faitueof the assets is less than their respectiwyiogrvalue. If, based on the results of
the qualitative assessment, it is concluded thatribt more likely than not that the fair valuetioé intangible asset is greater than its
carrying value, a quantitative test is performeddét the quantitative test, if the carrying valfi¢he asset exceeds its fair value, an
impairment loss is recognized in the amount ofekeess. Finite-lived intangible assets are amatt@eer their respective estimated
useful lives and, along with other long-lived assa$ noted above, are evaluated for impairmenogieglly whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their reélaterying values may not be fully recoverable. 8mseussion of the Company's
accounting policy for long-lived asset impairmestpaeviously described under the captiBnoperty and Equipment, Nét.

Officers' Life Insurance Policies

The Company maintains certain split-dollar lifeurence policies for select senior executives. Tipedieies are recorded at
the lesser of their cash-surrender value or agtgggamiums paid to date in the consolidated balaheets. As of the end of Fiscal
2014 and Fiscal 2013, approximately $4 million &28 million, respectively, were classified withither non-current assets in the
consolidated balance sheets, primarily relatingficers' split-dollar life insurance policies hddg the Company, a portion of which
were redeemed during Fiscal 2014.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided using the asset andityabiethod. Under this method, income taxes (deferred tax assets and
liabilities, current taxes payable/refunds receigaland tax expense) are recorded based on ammfatdable or payable in the
current year and include the results of any difieeebetween U.S. GAAP and tax reporting. Defernetbine taxes reflect the tax
effect of certain net operating loss, capital lcessgd general business credit carryforwards andntftetax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assetdiabilities for financial statement and incorag purposes, as determined under
enacted tax laws and rates. The Company accourtsefdinancial effect of changes in tax laws desan the period of enactment.

In addition, valuation allowances are establishéémmanagement determines that it is more likedy thot that some portion
or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realiZ&aix valuation allowances are analyzed periodicafid adjusted as events occur or
circumstances change that warrant adjustments.

In determining the income tax provision for finaalaieporting purposes, the Company establisheseve for uncertain tax
positions. If the Company considers that a taxtysiis more likely than not of being sustained mipwudit, based solely on the
technical merits of the position, it recognizes the benefit. The Company measures the tax behgfiletermining the largest
amount that is greater than 50% likely of beinglized upon settlement, presuming that the tax jmwsits examined by the
appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledy all relevant information. These assessmentdeacomplex and the Company
often obtains assistance from external advisorsgh&cextent that the Company's estimates changeedinal tax outcome of these
matters is different than the amounts recordedh sli¢erences will impact the income tax provisionthe period in which such
determinations are made. If the initial assessiaistto result in the recognition of a tax benetfie Company regularly monitors its
position and subsequently recognizes the tax kenéili there are changes in tax law or analogcase law that sufficiently raise the
likelihood of prevailing on the technical merits thfe position to "more likely than not"; (ii) théatute of limitations expires; or
(iii) there is a completion of an audit resultimgd settlement of that tax year with the approprégency. Uncertain tax positions are
classified as current only when the Company expicigy cash within the next twelve months. Inteegsl penalties, if any, are
recorded within the provision for income taxes lire tCompany's consolidated statements of incomeaaadclassified on the
consolidated balance sheets together with theaclability for unrecognized tax benefits.

F-13

118 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

See Note 13 for further discussion of the Compangsme taxes.
Leases

The Company leases certain facilities and equipmecdiuding the vast majority of its retail stor&ertain of the Company's
lease agreements contain renewal options, renlagiscaclauses, and/or landlord incentives. Renderahs generally reflect market
rates at the time of renewal. Rent expense for auredable operating leases with scheduled rereasers and/or landlord incentives
is recognized on a straight-line basis over thesdeterm, including any applicable rent holidaysgiteing with the lease
commencement date, or the date the Company takeotof the leased space, whichever is sooner.ekoess of straight-line rent
expense over the scheduled payment amounts anidddridcentives is recorded as a deferred rentliigbAs of the end of Fiscal
2014 and Fiscal 2013, deferred rent obligationsambroximately $252 million and $208 million, respeely, were classified
primarily within other non-current liabilities ithé Company's consolidated balance sheets.

In certain lease arrangements, the Company is vedolvith the construction of the building or leaslehimprovements
(generally on land owned by the landlord). If thenpany concludes that it has substantively allhef risks of ownership during
construction of a leased property and therefodemmed the owner of the project for accounting @sep, it records an asset and
related financing obligation for the amount of tb&l project costs related to construction-in-pesg and the pre-existing building.
Once construction is complete, the Company consites requirements for sale-leaseback treatmeritidimg the transfer back of
all risks of ownership and whether the Companydmascontinuing involvement in the leased propdftthe arrangement does not
qualify for sale-leaseback treatment, the Compamyicues to amortize the financing obligation aegrciate the building over the
lease term.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company records all derivative financial instamts on its consolidated balance sheets at fdirevdor derivative
instruments that qualify for hedge accounting,effective portion of changes in the fair value leége instruments is either (i) offset
against the changes in fair value of the hedgedtsiss liabilities through earnings or (ii) recargl in equity as a component of
AOCI until the hedged item is recognized in earsindepending on whether the derivative is beingl usehedge changes in fair
value or cash flows, respectively.

Each derivative instrument entered into by the Camypthat qualifies for hedge accounting is expettelde highly effective
at reducing the risk associated with the exposeiagohedged. For each derivative instrument thateisignated as a hedge, the
Company formally documents the related risk managgrabjective and strategy, including identificatiof the hedging instrument,
the hedged item, and the risk exposure, as wélbashedge effectiveness will be assessed prospéctwnd retrospectively over the
term of the instrument. To assess the effectiveiésderivative instruments that are designated edges, the Company uses
regression analysis, a statistical method, to coenfge change in the fair value of the derivativ&@rument to the change in the fair
value or cash flows of the related hedged item. &ttent to which a hedging instrument has beeniseapected to remain highly
effective in achieving offsetting changes in faalwe or cash flows is assessed and documentedebZdmpany on at least a
guarterly basis.

To the extent that a derivative instrument desigehats a cash flow hedge is not considered to leetafé, any change in its
fair value relating to such ineffectiveness is indiagely recognized in earnings within foreign cag gains (losses). If it is
determined that a derivative instrument has nohbgghly effective, and will continue not to be hig effective in hedging the
designated exposure, hedge accounting is discattiand further gains (losses) are recognized inirggs within foreign currency
gains (losses). Upon discontinuance of hedge aticyrthe cumulative change in fair value of theiwiive instrument previously
recorded in AOCI is recognized in earnings when rilated hedged item affects earnings, consistetht the original hedging
strategy, unless the forecasted transaction i®ngelr probable of occurring, in which case the aedated amount is immediately
recognized in earnings within foreign currency gailosses).

As a result of the use of derivative instrumertte, Company is exposed to the risk that the couattes to such contracts
will fail to meet their contractual obligations. Taitigate this counterparty credit risk, the Compaas a policy of only entering into
contracts with carefully selected financial indiitas based upon an evaluation of their credingstiand certain other factors,
adhering to established limits for credit exposditee Company's established policies and procedarasitigating credit risk from
derivative transactions include ongoing review asdessment of the creditworthiness of countergariibe Company also enters
into master netting arrangements with counterpgrtidien possible, to mitigate credit risk assodiatéh its derivative instruments.
In the event of default or termination (as suchmierare defined within the respective master netngngement), these
arrangements allow the Company to net-settle ansqaayable and receivable related to multiple dékigaransactions
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with the same counterparty. The master nettinghgeraents specify a number of events of defaulttardination, including, among
others, the failure to make timely payments.

The fair values of the Company's derivative insiuais are recorded on its consolidated balance sbeed gross basis. For
cash flow reporting purposes, the Company classifieoceeds received or amounts paid upon the reettlie of a derivative
instrument in the same manner as the related i@ngthedged, primarily within cash from operating\aties.

Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

The Company primarily enters into forward foreigarrency exchange contracts as hedges to reduciskss related to
exchange rate fluctuations on inventory purchasg¢srcompany royalty payments made by certain ©friternational operations,
intercompany contributions made to fund certain keting efforts of its international operations, aather foreign currency-
denominated operational cash flows. To the extenwdrd foreign currency exchange contracts deséghas cash flow hedges are
highly effective in offsetting changes in the vahfethe hedged items, the related gains (losses)nitially deferred in equity as a
component of AOCI and subsequently recognizederctinsolidated statements of income as follows:

- Forecasted Inventory Purchases Recognized as part of the cost of the invenmmchases being hedged within cost
of goods sold when the related inventory is sold third party.

< Intercompany Royalty Payments and Marketing Coutitims — Recognized within foreign currency gains (losses)
generally in the period in which the related paytaem contributions being hedged are received . pa

Undesignated Hedges

All of the Company's undesignated hedges are ehterte to hedge specific economic risks, such asido currency
exchange rate risk. Changes in the fair value diegignated derivative instruments are immediatetpgnized in earnings within
foreign currency gains (losses).

See Note 16 for further discussion of the Compaaigtavative financial instruments.

4, Recently Issued Accounting Standards
Disclosure of Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Stansl@®dard ("FASB") issued new, expanded disclosugairements for
financial instruments surrounding an entity's rigbf offset and related counterparty arrangementcaounting Standards Update
("ASU") No. 2011-11, "Disclosures about OffsettiAgsets and Liabilities" ("ASU 2011-11"). ASU 2011-fequires disclosure of
both "gross" and "net" information for recognizédahcial instruments (including derivatives) tha¢ &) eligible for offset and
presented "net" in the balance sheet or (ii) sultifeenforceable master netting agreements, irotisgeof whether an entity actually
offsets and "net presents" such instruments irbttiance sheet. ASU 2011-11 also requires disclasiuaay collateral received or
posted in connection with master netting agreementmilar arrangements. In January 2013, the FAsSBed ASU No. 2013-01,
"Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about OffsegtiAssets and Liabilities," which limited the scafeASU 2011-11 to derivatives
accounted for in accordance with Accounting Stadsl&odification ("ASC") topic 815, "Derivatives akteédging,” and securities
borrowing and lending transactions. The Companyptatbthe provisions of ASU 2011-11 as of the beigimmf the first quarter of
Fiscal 2014, which resulted in expanded financiatriiment disclosures (see Note 16), but did net lzen impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

Reporting of Amounts Reclassified out of Accumuldt®ther Comprehensive Income

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013:BZporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of AccumathtOther
Comprehensive Income" ("ASU 2013-02"). ASU 2013+6guires disclosure of significant amounts recfassiout of AOCI by
component. If the amounts are required to be reifled from AOCI to net income in their entirety tine same reporting period, the
effect of such reclassifications on the relevam items of net income must be presented eithéheface of the financial statements
or in the notes. For amounts that are not requvdzk reclassified to net income in their entirietyhe same reporting period, cross-
references to other disclosures that provide amfuitidetails about such reclassifications are requiASU 2013-02 did not change
the requirements for determining or reporting nebme or OCI. The Company adopted the provisionsSif
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2013-02 as of the beginning of the first quarteFistal 2014, which resulted in expanded OCI-relatisclosures (see Note 19), but
did not have an impact on the Company's consolidftencial statements.

Proposed Amendments to Current Accounting Standards

The FASB is currently working on amendments to tixjsaccounting standards governing a number adsamecluding, but
not limited to, accounting for leases. In May 20t FASB issued an exposure draft, "Leases" @xpdsure Draft"), which would
replace the existing guidance in ASC topic 840,a4as." Under the Exposure Draft, among other clgaigeractice, a lessee's
rights and obligations under most leases, includirigting and new arrangements, would be recogrézedssets and liabilities,
respectively, on the balance sheet. The commemcgéor the Exposure Draft ended in September 20t® FASB is currently
considering feedback received and is redeliberatlhgignificant issues to determine next stepanid when effective, this proposed
standard will likely have a significant impact dretCompany's consolidated financial statements.édew as the standard-setting
process is still ongoing, the Company is unablgiattime to determine the impact this proposechgkan accounting would have
on its consolidated financial statements.

5. Acquisitions
Australia and New Zealand Licensed Operations Acsjtiobn

On July 1, 2013, in connection with the transit@ithe Ralph Lauren-branded apparel and accesdmugsess in Australia
and New Zealand (the "Australia and New Zealandirass") from a licensed to a wholly-owned operatibie Company acquired
certain net assets from Oroton Group/PRL Austr@{roton") in exchange for an aggregate paymergpgroximately $15 million
(the "Australia and New Zealand Licensed Operatidoguisition"). Oroton was the Company's licenseethe Australia and New
Zealand Business. The Company funded the Austealih New Zealand Licensed Operations Acquisitiorhvétailable cash
on-hand.

The Company accounted for the Australia and NewladehLicensed Operations Acquisition as a busiressbination
during the second quarter of Fiscal 2014, withdperating results of the Australia and New ZealBndiness consolidated into the
Company's operating results beginning on July 1320ransaction costs associated with the Austealih New Zealand Licensed
Operations Acquisition were not material. The asijjigin cost of $15 million was preliminarily alloeal to the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on an assessment ofrdsgiective fair values, as follows (in millions):

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Inventory $ 9
Fixed assets 4
Customer relationship intangible asset 3
Other assets 2
Other liabilities 3)
Fair value of net assets acquired $ 15

The customer relationship intangible asset wasedhlusing the excess earnings method, which dissotinat estimated
after-tax cash flows associated with the existingebof customers as of the acquisition date, fiagidn expected attrition of the
existing customer base. The customer relationshgngible asset is being amortized over an estionageful life of nine years.

Chaps Menswear License Acquisition

On April 10, 2013, in connection with the transitiof the North American Chaps-branded men's spedsWusiness ("Chaps
Menswear Business") from a licensed to a wholly-edvioperation, the Company entered into an agreemimtThe Warnaco
Group, Inc. ("Warnaco"), a subsidiary of PVH CoffRVH"), to acquire certain net assets in exchalogan aggregate payment of
approximately $18 million (the "Chaps Menswear hige Acquisition"). Warnaco was the Company's lieenfor the Chaps
Menswear Business. The Company funded the Chapswam License Acquisition during the first quartérFiscal 2014 with
available cash on-hand.

F-16

123 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

The Company accounted for the Chaps Menswear LécAgguisition as a business combination duringfits¢ quarter of
Fiscal 2014. The acquisition cost was allocatedh® assets acquired and liabilities assumed basednoassessment of their
respective fair values, as follows (in millions):

Assets acquired:

Inventory $ 30
Accounts receivable 19
Licensed trademark intangible asset 9
Total assets acquired 58
Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable (22)
Other net liabilities (2)
Total net liabilities assumed (24)
Fair value of net assets acquired 34
Consideration paid 18
Gain on acquisitior(® $ 16

@ Represents the difference between the acquisitada thir value of net assets acquired and the actially-defined
purchase price under the Company's license agreéemitnWarnaco, which granted the Company the righearly-
terminate the license upon PVH's acquisition of vdao in February 2013.

The licensed trademark intangible asset was valsed) the excess earnings method, discountingstimated after-tax cash
flows associated with the Chaps-branded men's spear licensed trademark as of the acquisition, dafetoring in market
participant-based operating and cash flow assumgtidhe reacquired licensed trademark intangibéetasas amortized over a
nine-month period through December 31, 2013, rgmtézy the remaining term of the prior license agrent that was terminated in
connection with this acquisition.

The operating results of the Chaps Menswear Busihage been consolidated into the Company's opgregsults beginning
on April 10, 2013. Transaction costs of $3 millimrere expensed as incurred and classified within 8G&%penses in the
consolidated statement of income for Fiscal 2014.

6. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

March 29, March 30,
2014 2013
(millions)
Raw materials $ 3 % 5
Work-in-process 2 1
Finished goods 1,015 890
Total inventories $ 1,020 $ 896
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7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, net consists of the folhawi

March 29, March 30,
2014 2013
(millions)

Land and improvements $ 17 % 10
Buildings and improvements 183 130
Furniture and fixtures 661 601
Machinery and equipment 245 189
Capitalized software 366 252
Leasehold improvements 1,064 934
Construction in progress 312 137
2,848 2,253
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,526) (1,321)
Property and equipment, net $ 1,322 % 932

8. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill

The following table details the changes in good¥dl each of the Company's reportable segmentsigiscal 2014 and

Fiscal 2013:
Wholesale Retail Licensing Total
(millions)
Balance at March 31, 2012 $ 635 $ 223 $ 146 $ 1,004
Foreign currency translation (22) 9) (6) (36)
Balance at March 30, 2013 614 214 140 968
Foreign currency translation 3 (4) (3) (4)
Balance at March 29, 2014 $ 617 $ 210 $ 137 $ 964

Based on the results of the Company's annual gdloaigpairment testing in Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2048d Fiscal 2012, no
impairment charges were recorded.
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Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets consist of the following:

March 29, 2014 March 30, 2013
Gross Gross
Carrying Accum. Carrying Accum.
Amount Amort. Net Amount Amort. Net
(millions)
Intangible assets subject to amortization:
Re-acquired licensed trademarks $ 234 $ (109) $ 125 $ 228 $) 6 134
Customer relationships 261 (112) 149 265 (99) 166
Other 29 (11) 18 30 9) 21@®
Total intangible assets subject to
amortization 524 (232) 292 523 (202) 321
Intangible assets not subject to
amortization:
Trademarks and brands 7 N/A 7 7 N/A 7 @
Total intangible assets $ 531 $ (232) $ 299 $ 530 $ (202) $ 328

@ Includes $2 million of impairment charges relatedtiie write-off of certain intangible assets in wection with the
Rugby Closure Plan (see Notes 11 and 12).

Amortization

Based on the balance of the Company's intangidetsissubject to amortization as of March 29, 204, expected
amortization for each of the next five fiscal yearsl thereafter is as follows:

Amortization Expense

(millions)

Fiscal 2015 $ 26
Fiscal 2016 26
Fiscal 2017 25
Fiscal 2018 25
Fiscal 2019 24
Fiscal 2020 and thereafter 166

Total $ 292

The expected future amortization expense aboveatsfiveighted-average estimated useful lives & §&ars for re-acquired
licensed trademarks, 10.8 years for customer oelsttiips, and 13.0 years for the Company's finitediintangible assets in total.
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Other Current and Non-Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets coh#ist following:

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

March 29,
2014
(millions)
Other taxes receivable $ 77 9% 31
Prepaid rent expense 31 28
Tenant allowances receivable 22 17
Fixed asset advance 19 —
Prepaid samples 13 14
Derivative financial instruments 3 15
Other prepaid expenses and current assets 59 56
Total prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 224 $ 161
Other non-current assets consist of the following:
March 29,
2014
(millions)
Restricted cash $ 42 % 40
Security deposits 27 23
Assets held under deferred compensation arrangement 20 3
Officers' life insurance policies 4 23
Other non-current assets 42 35
Total other non-current assets $ 135 % 124
Other Current and Non-Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities i the following:
March 29,
2014
(millions)
Accrued payroll and benefits $ 190 $ 199
Accrued operating expenses 183 169
Accrued inventory 84 93
Other taxes payable 76 51
Accrued capital expenditures 45 53
Deferred income 41 40
Dividends payable 40 36
Capital lease obligations 16 4
Other accrued expenses and current liabilities 15 19
Total accrued expenses and other current liakslitie $ 690 $ 664
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Other non-current liabilities consist of the folliog:

March 29, March 30,
2014 2013
(millions)
Capital lease obligations $ 255 % 38
Deferred rent obligations 224 189
Deferred income 39 58
Deferred tax liabilities 81 30
Deferred compensation 29 12
Other non-current liabilities 26 35
Total other non-current liabilities $ 654 $ 362

11. Impairments of Assets

During Fiscal 2014, the Company recorded non-cagtairment charges of $1 million, primarily to writéf certain fixed
assets related to its European operations.

During Fiscal 2013, the Company recorded non-cagairment charges of $19 million, which includedL $hillion of
impairment charges to reduce the carrying valuesedfin long-lived assets related to its 14 gldegstanding retail Rugby stores
to their estimated fair values in connection witkeit closure in Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2014. Initimtid during Fiscal 2013, the
Company recorded non-cash impairment charges ofmion to reduce the carrying values of long-livedsets of certain
underperforming European stores to their fair vel@es well as to write-off the fixed assets of aertvholesale locations in Europe
that were expected to close.

During Fiscal 2012, the Company recorded non-caairment charges of $2 million, primarily to reéube carrying values
of long-lived assets of certain underperformingdpaan retail stores to their estimated fair values.

12. Restructuring and Other Charges
A description of significant restructuring and atletivities and related costs is included below.

Fiscal 2014

Restructuring charges recorded during Fiscal 20arevapproximately $8 million, and were primarilfated to severance and
benefit costs associated with restructuring of Grmenpany's corporate operations. As of March 2942@e aggregate remaining
restructuring liability was approximately $6 miltipwhich is expected to be paid by the end of Fi20a5.

In addition, in connection with the formation ofetimew Office of the Chairman, the Company enteréd employment
agreements with certain of its executive officavhjch became effective in November 2013. As a tesithe new employment
agreement provisions, the Company recorded $1@milif accelerated stock-based compensation expkngey Fiscal 2014.

Fiscal 2013
Rugby Closure Plan

On October 30, 2012, the Company approved a plamirid-down its Rugby brand retail operations (tfugby Closure
Plan"). This decision was primarily based on thsults of an analysis of the brand concept, as a®lan opportunity for the
Company to reallocate its resources related teetbpgrations to support other high-growth busimggrtunities and initiatives. In
connection with the Rugby Closure Plan, all of @empany's 14 global freestanding Rugby stores gicedf which have been
converted to other Ralph Lauren brand concepts)tanélated domestic e-commerce site located gbRRaom have been closed as
of June 2013. The Rugby Closure Plan resultedr@daction in workforce of approximately 160 emplege
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In connection with the Rugby Closure Plan, the Canyprecorded $7 million in restructuring chargesiry Fiscal 2013,
including $2 million of severance and benefits sp$# million of lease termination costs, and $lliom of other costs, of which $4
million remained payable as of March 30, 2013. €heere no additional restructuring charges recaghizy the Company in
connection with the Rugby Closure Plan during Hi2€4.4. As of March 29, 2014, the remaining redtting liability related to this
plan was not material.

Other Restructuring Charges

In addition to the restructuring charges incurmre@¢annection with the Rugby Closure Plan, the Comipacorded $5 million
of other net restructuring charges during Fiscdl®0ncluding $3 million of severance and leasenteation costs associated with
the suspension of the Company's operations in Airggen$3 million of severance and lease terminatiosts associated with the
Company's European operations, and $2 million wéce costs primarily associated with the Comisacgrporate operations,
partially offset by $3 million of reversals of reges deemed no longer necessary in connection tWdhCompany's Fiscal 2012
Asia-Pacific Restructuring Plan, as defined beléw.of March 30, 2013, the aggregate remaining litgbielated to these actions
was $4 million. As of March 29, 2014, the remainiegtructuring liability related to this plan wagt material.

Fiscal 2012

During Fiscal 2012, the Company initiated a plan raposition and upgrade its existing distributioatwork and
merchandising operations in the Asia-Pacific regiaich includes mainland China, Macau, Hong Kofigiwan, Malaysia,
Singapore, Japan, and South Korea (the "Asia-RaR#istructuring Plan"). The Asia-Pacific RestruictgiPlan included a reduction
in workforce of approximately 280 employees anddlosure of approximately 95 stores and concesshaps that did not support
the new merchandising strategy. In connection wlith Asia-Pacific Restructuring Plan, the Compangorded $5 million in
restructuring charges during Fiscal 2012, whichensattled during Fiscal 2013.

In addition to the restructuring charges incurredcbnnection with the Asia-Pacific Restructuringarbl the Company
recognized $7 million of other restructuring chargduring Fiscal 2012, including $3 million of coséssociated with the

discontinuance of the majority of the products sgider the American Living brand at J.C. Penney gamy, Inc., primarily related
to severance, which were settled during Fiscal 2013

13. Income Taxes

Taxes on Income

Domestic and foreign pretax income are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Domestic $ 710 $ 672 $ 618
Foreign 386 417 397
Total income before provision for income taxes $ 1,096 $ 1,089 $ 1,015
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Provisions (benefits) for current and deferred inedaxes are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Current:
Federdp) $ 211 $ 189 $ 203
State and locé 51 42 51
Foreign 57 94 95
319 325 349
Deferred:
Federal (4) 9 4
State and local 1 5 (2)
Foreign 4 — a7
1 14 (15)
$ 320 $ 339 % 334

Total provision for income taxes

@ Excludes federal, state, and local tax benefitapgfroximately $34 million, $41 million, and $40 fgh in Fiscal 2014,
Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012, respectively, rasgilfrom stock-based compensation arrangements. &uclunts were

recorded within equity.
Tax Rate Reconciliation

The differences between income taxes expectecdi 8. federal statutory income tax rate of 35%iandme taxes provided
are as set forth below:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Provision for income taxes at the U.S. federalustay rate $ 384 $ 381 $ 355
Increase (decrease) due to:
State and local income taxes, net of federal benefi 29 28 28
Foreign income taxed at different rates, net of. tb&ign tax
credits (89) (75) (56)
Unrecognized tax benefits and settlements of taxnéxations (5) 6 12
Other 1 (1) (5)
Total provision for income taxes $ 320 3 339 % 334
Effective tax rat® 29.2% 31.1% 32.9%

@ Effective tax rate is calculated by dividing theyision for income taxes by income before providimnincome taxes.

The Company's effective tax rate is lower thansfa¢utory rate principally as a result of the pmdjpn of earnings generated
in lower taxed foreign jurisdictions versus the Ursaddition, during Fiscal 2014, the effective tate was favorably impacted by
tax reserve reductions associated with the corausf a tax examination and an income tax benefititing from the legal entity
restructuring of certain of the Company's foreigrem@tions during Fiscal 2014. The Company's effectax rate for Fiscal 2013
reflected tax reserve reductions associated wibrelusion of a tax examination, offset by the usabn of a reserve for an interest

assessment on a prior year withholding tax.
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Deferred Taxes

Significant components of the Company's net defieta® assets (liabilities) are as follows:

March 29, March 30,
2014 2013
(millions)
Current deferred tax assets:
Receivable allowances and reserves $ 70 % 69
Deferred compensation 31 21
Inventory basis difference 30 19
Other 20 11
Valuation allowance 1) Q
Net current deferred tax asgets 150 119
Non-current deferred tax assets (liabilities):

Goodwill and other intangible assets (219) (211)
Property and equipment (90) 27
Cumulative translation adjustment and hedges (8) 4)
Lease obligations 92 —
Deferred compensation 79 68
Unrecognized tax benefits 46 35
Deferred rent 19 20
Deferred income 18 33
Net operating loss carryforwards 17 16
Transfer pricing 16 20
Other (1) —
Valuation allowance (11) (12)
Net non-current deferred tax liabiliti®)s (42) (8)
Net deferred tax assets $ 108 $ 111

@ The net current deferred tax balance as of Mar¢2803 included current deferred tax liabilities$df million recorded
within accrued expenses and other current liabdlith the consolidated balance sheets.

® The net non-current deferred tax balances as otivia®, 2014 and March 30, 2013 were comprised ofquorent
deferred tax assets of $39 million and $22 millioespectively, recorded within deferred tax assats] non-current
deferred tax liabilities of $81 million and $30 ftiwh, respectively, recorded within other non-cutréabilities in the

consolidated balance sheets.

The Company has available state and foreign netatipg loss carryforwards of $4 million and $30 Iioih, respectively, for
tax purposes to offset future taxable income. Téteoperating loss carryforwards expire beginningistal 2015.

Also, the Company has available state and foreigh aperating loss carryforwards of $10 million a$fil million,
respectively, for which no net deferred tax asset been recognized. A full valuation allowance basn recorded against these
carryforwards since management does not beliewghitbaCompany will more likely than not be ablautdize these carryforwards to
offset future taxable income. Subsequent recognibiothese deferred tax assets would result imaonme tax benefit in the year of
such recognition. The valuation allowance relatmgtate net operating loss carryforwards decred&edillion primarily due to the
Company's ability to utilize certain state net @pieig loss carryforwards. The valuation allowanelating to foreign net operating
loss carryforwards decreased $2 million as a regutie Company's ability to utilize certain foreiget operating loss carryforwards.

Provision has not been made for U.S. or additidoetign taxes on $2.176 billion of undistributedrréags of foreign
subsidiaries. Those historical earnings have bedrage expected to continue to be permanently ested. These earnings could
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become subject to tax if they were remitted asd@inds, if foreign earnings were lent to RLC, a &libgy or a U.S. affiliate of RLC,

or if the stock of the subsidiaries were sold. Dreteation of the amount of unrecognized deferredligbility with respect to such

earnings is not practical. Management believes tiiiatamount of the additional taxes that might bgaple on the earnings of
foreign subsidiaries, if remitted, would be pabjiaffset by U.S. foreign tax credits.

In September 2013, the Internal Revenue Servieeased final tangible property regulations thatifitett and expanded
Sections 162(a) and 263(a) of the Internal Revé@nme which relate to the deduction and capitatiratif expenditures associated
with tangible property as well as dispositions arfigible property. The regulations will be effectfoe the Company’s fiscal year
ending March 28, 2015. The Company is currentlylieating the expected impact of these new regulatiemd believes that they
will not have a material impact on the Company’ssaidated financial statements.

Uncertain Income Tax Benefits

Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012 Activity

Reconciliations of the beginning and ending amouwifitsnrecognized tax benefits, excluding interest penalties, for Fiscal
2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012 are presentiesvbe

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)

Unrecognized tax benefits beginning balance $ 100 $ 12% 125
Additions related to current period tax positions 6 4 4
Additions related to prior period tax positions 12 12 8
Reductions related to prior period tax positions ) (@8 (32) ® (4)
Reductions related to expiration of statutes ofthitions (2) Q (2)
Reductions related to settlements with taxing aities (23)@ (10) ® —
Additions (reductions) related to foreign currency

translation 3 (2) (2)

Unrecognized tax benefits ending balance $ 83 $ 100 $ 129

@ Includes a $29 million decline in unrecognized baxefits as a result of the Company's tax settl¢mgreement reached
in Fiscal 2014 for the taxable years ended Apr()4 and April 2, 2005.

® Includes a $34 million decline in unrecognized baxefits as a result of the Company's tax settl¢mgreement reached
in Fiscal 2013 in connection with a tax examinafionthe taxable years ended March 29, 2008 thrzmfi 3, 2010.

The Company classifies interest and penaltiese@léd unrecognized tax benefits as part of its igiom for income taxes.
Reconciliations of the beginning and ending amowisccrued interest and penalties related to wgrEized tax benefits for Fiscal
2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012 are presentiesvbe

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)

Accrued interest and penalties beginning balance $ 506 39 $ 31
Net additions charged to expense 6 22 @ 8
Reductions related to prior period tax positions 4) (10) —
Reductions related to settlements with taxing atilbe (5) @ —
Additions related to foreign currency translation 2 — —

Accrued interest and penalties ending balance $ 49 $ 50 $ 39
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@ Includes a reserve of $17 million for an interestéessment on a prior year withholding tax. No ugiey tax exposure
exists. The interest assessed was not materiaét@dmpany's consolidated financial statementsyrpariod.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits,uditlg interest and penalties, was $132 million &80 million as of
March 29, 2014 and March 30, 2013, respectivelgiarincluded within the non-current liability fanrecognized tax benefits in the
consolidated balance sheets. The total amount réfcognized tax benefits that, if recognized, waafféct the Company's effective
tax rate was $86 million and $115 million as of ktaR9, 2014 and March 30, 2013, respectively.

Future Changes in Unrecognized Tax Benefits

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits irdato the Company's tax positions is subject tangfe based on future
events including, but not limited to, the settletsesf ongoing tax audits and assessments and gietan of applicable statutes of
limitations. Although the outcomes and timing o€kievents are highly uncertain, the Company doeamticipate that the balance
of gross unrecognized tax benefits, excluding ggerand penalties, will change significantly durithge next twelve months.
However, changes in the occurrence, expected owsoand timing of such events could cause the Coygpaurrent estimate to
change materially in the future.

The Company files tax returns in the U.S. federal wmarious state, local, and foreign jurisdictionéth few exceptions for
those tax returns, the Company is no longer subjegxaminations by the relevant tax authoritiesyars prior to fiscal year 2006.

14. Debt

Debt consists of the following:

March 29, March 30,
2014 2013
(millions)
2.125% Senior Notes due September 26, 2018 $ 300 $ —
4.5% Euro-denominated notes due October 4, 8013 — 267
Total debt 300 267
Less: current portion of long-term debt — 267
Long-term debt $ 300 $ —

@ Principal amount was repaid upon maturity.
Senior Notes

In September 2013, the Company completed a regateublic debt offering and issued $300 million ggte principal
amount of unsecured senior notes due Septemb@028, (the "Senior Notes") at a price equal to 9898df their principal amount.
The Senior Notes bear interest at a fixed rate. 25, payable semi-annually. The proceeds from differing were used for
general corporate purposes, including the repaynantthe Company's €209 million principal amount stabding of
4.5% Euro-denominated notes (the "Euro Debt"), Wwiniatured on October 4, 2013.

The Company has the option to redeem the Seniad\ot whole or in part, at any time at a pricea¢do accrued interest on
the redemption date, plus the greater of (i) 100% @ principal amount of Senior Notes to be redegior (ii) the sum of the present
value of Remaining Scheduled Payments, as defimete indenture governing the Senior Notes (theléiture™). The Indenture
contains certain covenants that restrict the Coryipability, subject to specified exceptions, toun certain liens; enter into sale and
leaseback transactions; consolidate or merge witlthar party; or sell, lease, or convey all or sagally all of the Company's
property or assets to another party. However, riderture does not contain any financial covenants.
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Revolving Credit Facilities

Global Credit Facility

The Company has a credit facility that provides &$500 million senior unsecured revolving lineceédit through March
2016, which may also be used to support the issuahéetters of credit and the initiation and mairgnce of a commercial paper
program (the "Global Credit Facility"). Borrowingsder the Global Credit Facility may be denomindtetl.S. Dollars and other
currencies, including Euros, Hong Kong Dollars, daganese Yen. The Company has the ability to ekjgtorrowing availability
under the Global Credit Facility to $750 milliomybgect to the agreement of one or more new oriegisénders under the facility to
increase their commitments. There are no mandatxiyctions in borrowing ability throughout the tewh the Global Credit
Facility. As of March 29, 2014, there were no bairgs outstanding under the Global Credit Facilityd the Company was
contingently liable for $8 million of outstandingtters of credit.

U.S. Dollar-denominated borrowings under the Glabeddit Facility bear interest, at the Company'soop either at (a) a
base rate, by reference to the greatest of: (iathmial prime commercial lending rate of JPMorgaage Bank, N.A. in effect from
time to time, (ii) the weighted-average overniglkderal funds rate plus 50 basis points, or (ii§@ @me-month London Interbank
Offered Rate ("LIBOR") plus 100 basis points; o) (HBOR, adjusted for the Federal Reserve Boardiso&urrency liabilities
maximum reserve percentage, plus a spread of 8% Ipoints, subject to adjustment based on thep@owys credit ratings
("Adjusted LIBOR"). Foreign currency-denominatediowings bear interest at Adjusted LIBOR.

In addition to paying interest on any outstandingawings under the Global Credit Facility, the Guany is required to pay a
commitment fee to the lenders under the Global iICFetility with respect to the unutilized commitnts. The commitment fee rate
of 12.5 basis points under the terms of the Gl@abit Facility is subject to adjustment basedf@@ompany's credit ratings.

The Global Credit Facility contains a number of @oants that, among other things, restrict the Coylpability, subject to
specified exceptions, to incur additional debtuinkens; sell or dispose of assets; merge withaguire other companies; liquidate
or dissolve itself; engage in businesses that ateéma related line of business; make loans, adesnor guarantees; engage in
transactions with affiliates; and make certain stagents. The Global Credit Facility also requiree Company to maintain a
maximum ratio of Adjusted Debt to Consolidated EBAR (the "leverage ratio") of no greater than 3&% of the date of
measurement for the four most recent consecutbealfiquarters. Adjusted Debt is defined generallgansolidated debt outstanding
plus eight times consolidated rent expense foldkefour consecutive fiscal quarters. Consolid&BITDAR is defined generally
as consolidated net income plus (i) income tax BgEge(ii) net interest expense, (iii) depreciatéod amortization expense, and
(iv) consolidated rent expense. As of March 29,2010 Event of Default (as such term is definedspant to the Global Credit
Facility) has occurred under the Company's Glolvab@ Facility.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under@fobal Credit Facility, the lenders may ceaseintploans, terminate
the Global Credit Facility, and declare all amouatgstanding to be immediately due and payable. Glabal Credit Facility
specifies a number of events of default (many oictvlare subject to applicable grace periods), tlioly, among others, the failure
to make timely principal, interest, and fee payremt to satisfy the covenants, including the finaihcovenant described above.
Additionally, the Global Credit Facility provideldt an Event of Default will occur if Mr. Ralph Lz, the Company's Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer, and entitieatrolled by the Lauren family fail to maintairspecified minimum percentage
of the voting power of the Company's common stock.

Pan-Asia Credit Facilities

Certain of the Company's subsidiaries in Asia haweommitted credit facilities with regional branshef JPMorgan Chase
(the "Banks") in China, Malaysia, South Korea, dlailvan (the "Pan-Asia Credit Facilities"). Thesedit facilities are subject to
annual renewal and may be used to fund generalimgpdapital and corporate needs of the Companyésatipns in the respective
regions. Borrowings under the Pan-Asia Credit f#sl are guaranteed by the parent company andgrarged at the sole discretion
of the Banks, subject to availability of the Banfsids and satisfaction of certain regulatory rezmients. The Pan-Asia Credit
Facilities do not contain any financial covenaiitse Company's Pan-Asia Credit Facilities by couatey as follows:

« China Credit Facility - provides Ralph Lauren Tragl{Shanghai) Co., Ltd. with a revolving line oédit of up to 100
million Chinese Renminbi (approximately $16 milljothrough April 8, 2015, and may also be used fgpsut
bank guarantees.
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e Malaysia Credit Facility - provides Ralph Laurendlslysia) Sdn Bhd with a revolving line of creditugd to 16 million
Malaysian Ringgit (approximately $5 million) thrau@eptember 17, 2014.

e South Korea Credit Facility - provides Ralph Lauf&worea) Ltd. with a revolving line of credit of up 11 billion
South Korean Won (approximately $10 million) thrbu@ctober 31, 2014.

e Taiwan Credit Facility - provides Ralph Lauren (Hdfgng) Retail Company Limited, Taiwan Branch withexolving
line of credit of up to 59 million New Taiwan Dotka(approximately $2 million) through October 15]12.

As of March 29, 2014, there were no borrowings tamding under any of the Pan-Asia Credit Facilities

15. Fair Value Measurements

U.S. GAAP establishes a three-level valuation @ma for disclosure of fair value measurements. d@ibtermination of the
applicable level within the hierarchy of a partenubsset or liability depends on the inputs useatsimaluation as of the measurement
date, notably the extent to which the inputs aregketebased (observable) or internally-derived (wsmobeable). A financial
instrument's categorization within the valuatiorrhichy is based upon the lowest level of input haignificant to the fair value

measurement. The three levels are defined as fellow

* Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology basadjuoted prices (unadjusted) for identical asset&bilities in
active markets.

« Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology basedjuoted prices for similar assets and liabgitie active markets
for substantially the full term of the financialstnument; quoted prices for identical or similastmmments in markets
that are not active for substantially the full teofithe financial instrument; and model-derivedueions whose inputs

or significant value drivers are observable.

» Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology bagedinobservable prices or valuation techniquesatesignificant
to the fair value measurement.

The following table summarizes the Company's fimaressets and liabilities that are measured acworded at fair value on a
recurring basis:

March 29, March 30,
2014 2013

(millions)
Financial assets recorded at fair valéde
Government bonds — U.S. $ 1 3 29

Government bonds — non-U.S. — 92
Corporate bonds — non-U.S. — 82
Variable rate municipal securities — U.S. — 17
Auction rate securities 2 2
Derivative financial instruments 8 15

Total $ 1 % 237

Financial liabilities recorded at fair valu®:

Derivative financial instruments $ 7% 5

Total $ 7 $ 5

@ Based on Level 1 measurements, except for auctiensecurities and derivative financial instrumewnisich are based
on Level 2 measurements.
(®) Based on Level 2 measurements.
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To the extent the Company invests in governmentdbomrorporate bonds, or variable rate municipausges, such
investments are classified as available-for-sateiriies and are recorded at fair value in its otidated balance sheets based upon
guoted prices in active markets.

The Company's auction rate securities are cladsHi® available-for-sale securities and are recoatefhir value in the
Company's consolidated balance sheets. Third-gaiting institutions may value auction rate sedesitat par, which may not
necessarily reflect prices that would be obtairieslid in the current market. When quoted marketgsrare unobservable, fair value
is estimated based on a number of known factorseatetnal pricing data, including known maturityteta the coupon rate based
upon the most recent reset market clearing rageptite/yield representing the average rate ofmeseccessfully traded securities,
and the total principal balance of each security.

The Company's derivative financial instruments r@eorded at fair value in the Company's consoliti#t@lance sheets and
are valued using a pricing model, which is primatilased on market observable external inputs, ditu forward and spot
exchange rates for foreign currencies, and corsither impact of the Company's own credit risk,ny.aChanges in counterparty
credit risk are also considered in the valuatioderivative financial instruments.

The Company's cash and cash equivalents, restricast, and time deposits are recorded at carrymigey which
approximates fair value based on Level 1 measursmen

The Company's debt obligations are recorded ayicgrvalue in its consolidated balance sheets, whiay differ from their
fair values. The carrying value of the Senior Natgesdjusted for any unamortized discount, whiclmas material. The carrying
value of the Euro Debt, which was repaid upon igurity in October 2013, was adjusted for any fgmeiurrency fluctuations, any
unamortized discount, and the unamortized fair &adjustment associated with the early terminatiban interest rate swap that
was designated as a fair value hedge. The faiegatfi the Company's debt obligations are estima&seéd on external pricing data,
including available quoted market prices of thesbtdnstruments, and of comparable debt instrumeitts similar interest rates,
credit ratings, and trading frequency, among ofaetors. The following table summarizes the camgynalues and the estimated fair
values of the Company's debt obligations:

March 29, 2014 March 30, 2013
Carrying Value Fair Value® Carrying Value Fair Value®
(millions)
2.125% Senior Notes $ 300 $ 300 N/A N/A
Euro Debt N/A N/A $ 267 $ 272

@ Based on Level 2 measurements.

Unrealized gains or losses on the Company's debtotl@esult in the realization or expenditure oflgaunless the debt is
retired prior to its maturity.

Non-financial Assets and Liabilities

The Company's non-financial assets, which primarilgsist of goodwill, other intangible assets, praperty and equipment,
are not required to be measured at fair value m@tarring basis and are reported at carrying vafieevever, on a periodic basis or
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat their carrying value may not be fully reaade (and at least annually for
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets)onAfinancial instruments are assessed for impaitnamd, if applicable,
written-down to and recorded at fair value, consitgexternal market participant assumptions.

During Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 202, Company recorded non-cash impairment chargesitae the carrying
values of certain long-lived store assets to tlfigir values. The fair values of these assets weterchined based on Level 3
measurements. Inputs to these fair value measutsnieciuded estimates of the amount and timing hef $tores' net future
discounted cash flows based on historical expegienarrent trends, and market conditions. The fahg table summarizes the
impairment charges recorded during Fiscal 2014aFi8013, and Fiscal 2012:
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Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Aggregate carrying value of long-lived assets erittlown to
fair value $ 1 3 19 $ 3
Impairment chargé® 1) (19) 2

@ See Note 11 for details of impairment charges dmin Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012.

No goodwill impairment charges were recorded duramy of the fiscal years presented. In Fiscal 2Ghé, Company
performed its annual goodwill impairment assessmisitig a qualitative approach as of the beginninthe second quarter of the
fiscal year. In performing the assessment, the Gomjdentified and considered the significanceetévant key factors, events, and
circumstances that affected the fair values antilaying amounts of its reporting units. Thesedexincluded external factors such
as macroeconomic, industry, and market conditiassyell as entity-specific factors, such as the gamy's actual and planned
financial performance. Additionally, the results thie Company's most recent quantitative goodwilpaimment test were also
considered, which indicated that the fair valuegfeporting units significantly exceeded theispective carrying values. Based on
the results of its qualitative goodwill impairmeadsessment, the Company concluded that it is nog fikely than not that the fair
values of its reporting units are less than thespective carrying values, and there were no riegpunits at risk of impairment.

16. Financial Instruments
Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to changes in foreign coyrexchange rates relating to certain anticipateshdlows from its
international operations and potential changebénvilue of reported net assets of certain obitsifin operations. Consequently, the
Company periodically uses derivative financial instents to manage such risks. The Company doe®mtet into derivative
transactions for speculative or trading purposes.

The following table summarizes the Company's ontlitay derivative instruments on a gross basis asrded in the
consolidated balance sheets as of March 29, 20d Manch 30, 2013:
Derivative Liabilities

Notional Amounts Derivative Assets

March 29, March 30, March 29, March 30, March 29, March 30,
Derivative Instrument® 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Balance Balance Balance Balance
Sheet Fair Sheet Fair Sheet Fair Sheet Fair
Line®) Value Line®) Value Line®) Value Line®) Value
(millions)
Designated Hedges:
FC — Inventory purchases $ 476 $ 366 © $ 2 PP $ 14 AE $ (5 AE $ 2)
FC — Othef) 223 25 — — — — AE ) AE 1)
NI — Euro Debt — 140 — N/A — @ — N/A — ©
Total Designated Hedges  $ 699 $ 531 $ 2 $ 14 $ @ $ (3)
Undesignated Hedges:
FC — Othef $ 280 270 C) $ 6 PP $ 1 — $ — AE $ (2
Total Hedges $ 979 $ 801 $ 8 $ 15 $ (7 $ (5)

@

(b)

138 sur 172

FC = Forward foreign currency exchange contracts; Net Investment Hedge; Euro Debt = Euro-denoteid&.5% notes that
matured on October 4, 2013.

PP = Prepaid expenses and other current assets;AMderued expenses and other current liabilities.
$1 million included within prepaid expenses anceotturrent assets and $1 million included withimestnon-current assets.

15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

F-30

139 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

@ Primarily designated hedges of foreign currencyedeinated intercompany royalty payments, marketingtributions, and
other net operational exposures.

® As of March 30, 2013, a portion of the previousiytstanding Euro Debt's €209 million principal ambwas designated as a
hedge of the Company's net investment in certaiitsoEuropean subsidiaries. The entire principabami of this hedge was
de-designated prior to the Euro Debt's maturityQmtober 4, 2013. See Note 15 for a summary of #reying value and the
estimated fair value of the Euro Debt as of Mar6hZ013.

®  Primarily undesignated hedges of foreign curreneyeininated intercompany loans.
@  $2 million included within prepaid expenses anceoiturrent assets and $4 million included withineotnon-current assets.

The Company records and presents the fair valual§ of its derivative assets and liabilities ia @onsolidated balance sheets
on a gross basis, even though they are subjecastemnetting arrangements. However, if the Compeare to offset and record the
asset and liability balances of all of its forwdadeign currency exchange contracts on a net basiscordance with the terms of
each of its master netting arrangements, spreass:@ight separate counterparties, the amountermessin the consolidated
balance sheets as of March 29, 2014 and March BB ould be adjusted from the current gross ptesien as detailed in the
following table:

March 29, 2014 March 30, 2013
Gross Amounts not Gross Amounts not
Offset in the Offset in the
Consolidated Consolidated
Gross Amounts Balance Sheet that Gross Amounts Balance Sheet that
Presented in the are Subject to Presented in the are Subject to
Consolidated Master Netting Net Consolidated Master Netting Net
Derivative Instrument Balance Sheet Agreements Amount Balance Sheet Agreements Amount
(millions)
FC — Derivative assets $ 8 3 1 s 7 % 15  $ 3) $ 12
FC — Derivative liabilities $ 7 % 1 3 ®) $ B) $ 3 % )

The Company's master netting arrangements do qoireecash collateral to be pledged by the Comparits counterparties.
Refer to Note 3 for further discussion of the Compa master netting arrangements.

The following tables summarize the pretax impacthef effective portion of gains and losses from @menpany's derivative
instruments on its consolidated financial statemémntthe fiscal years presented:

Gains (Losses) Gains (Losses) Reclassified
Recognized in OCI from AOCI to Earnings
Fiscal Years Ended Fiscal Years Ended Location of Gains (Losses)
March 29, March 30, March 31, March 29, March 30, March 31, Reclassified from
Derivative Instrument 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 AOCI to Earnings
(millions)
Designated Cash Flow Hedges:
FC — Inventory purchases $ (100 % 21 % 29 % 10 $ 32 % (2) Cost of goods sold
FC — Other — @ 5 — 4 (3) Foreign currency gains (losses)
$ () $ 20 $ 34 3 10 $ 36 $ (5)
Designated Hedge of Net
Investment:
Euro Deb® $ — % 1 $ 16 $ — 3 — 3 —
Total Designated Hedges $ (10) $ 31 $ 50 $ 10 $ 36 % (5)

@  Amounts recognized in OCI relate to remeasuremérth® Euro Debt, which was repaid in October 204a8d would be
recognized in earnings only upon the sale or ligticch of the hedged net investment.

During Fiscal 2014, the Company also recorded @darcurrency gain of2 million associated with the discontinuance of
certain cash flow hedges, as the related forecastadactions were no longer probable of occurring.
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As ol March 29, 201, it is expected that approximat $5 million of net losses deferred in AOCI related to derivativ

financial instruments will be recognized in earrsirayer the next twelve months. No material gainfosses relating to ineffective
hedges were recognized during any of the fiscalsypeesented.

The following table summarizes the impact of gaind losses from the Company's undesignated hedgeacts on its
consolidated financial statements for the fiscarggresented:

Gains (Losses)
Recognized in Earnings

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31, Location of Gains (Losses)
Derivative Instrument 2014 2013 2012 Recognized in Earnings
(millions)
Undesignated Hedges:
FC — Other $ 20 % 4 3 1 Foreign currency gains (losses)
Total Undesignated Hedges $ 20 % 4) 3 1

The following is a summary of the Company's risknagement strategies and the effect of those sieateg the consolidated
financial statements.

Foreign Currency Risk Management
Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

The Company primarily enters into forward foreigmrency exchange contracts as hedges to redudskitfrom exchange
rate fluctuations on inventory purchases made igerdity's non-functional currency, intercompanyaity payments made by certain
of its international operations, intercompany cimttions to fund certain marketing efforts of itgeérnational operations, and other
foreign currency-denominated operational cash flofs part of its overall strategy to manage theelenf exposure to the risk of
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, pritpao changes in the value of the Euro, the Japanén, the Hong Kong Dollar,
the South Korean Won, and the Australian Dollag, @ompany hedges a portion of its foreign curremqyosures anticipated over a
two-year period. In doing so, the Company usesidareurrency exchange forward contracts that gélyenave maturities of three
months to two years to provide continuing coverdigeughout the hedging period.

Hedge of Net Investment in Certain European Sudnsédi
Historically, the Company designated the princigadount of its outstanding Euro Debt as a hedgésofiet investment in
certain of its European subsidiaries. To the extlasignated as a net investment hedge, changée iBuro Debt's carrying value
resulting from fluctuations in the Euro exchangee raere reported in equity within foreign currertegnslation gains (losses), a
component of AOCI, as the debt was a highly eféectiedge. The Euro Debt was repaid upon its mgtiri©ctober 2013.

See Note 3 for further discussion of the Compaagt®unting policies relating to its derivative ficéal instruments.
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Investments

The following table summarizes the Company's stesrts and non-current investments recorded in thmesalalated balance
sheets as of March 29, 2014 and March 30, 2013:

March 29, 2014 March 30, 2013
Short-term Non-current Short-term Non-current
Type of Investment < 1lyear 1-3years Total < 1lyear 1-3years Total
(millions)
Available-for-sale:
Government bonds — U.S. $ 1 3 — % 1 % 21 % 8 $ 29
Government bonds — non-U.S. — — — 67 25 92
Corporate bonds — non-U.S. — — — 36 46 82
Variable rate municipal securities —
U.S. — — — 17 — 17
Auction rate securitié3d — 2 2 — 2 2
Total available-for-sale investments$ 1 3 2 3 3 3 141 % 81 $ 222
Other:
Time deposits $ 487 $ — 8 487 $ 184 $ — 8 184
Total investments $ 488 $ 2 $ 490 $ 325 % 81 $ 406

@ Auction rate securities have characteristics sintdashort-term investments. However, the Compaay dlassified these

securities as non-current investments in its cadatdd balance sheets as current market conditiathsnto question its
ability to redeem these investments for cash withinnext twelve months.

No significant realized or unrealized gains or &s®n available-for-sale investments or other-tlegmmporary impairment
charges were recorded in any of the fiscal penwdsented. Refer to Note 19 for further detail.

See Note 3 for further discussion of the Compaagtounting policies relating to its investments.

17. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Company operates most of its retail stores uvagous leasing arrangements. The Company aleopies various office
and warehouse facilities and uses certain equiponagiér numerous lease agreements. Such leasimggamants are accounted for
as either operating leases or capital leases.idrctintext, capital leases include leases wherebyCompany is considered to have

the substantive risks of ownership during consioacof a leased property. Information on the Conyfmiperating and capital
leasing activities is set forth below.

Operating Leases

The Company is typically required to make minimuemtal payments, and often contingent rental payspamder its
operating leases. Many of the Company's retailesteases provide for contingent rental paymentedapon sales, and certain
rental agreements require payment based solely peraentage of sales. Terms of the Company's legserally contain renewal
options, rent escalation clauses, and landlordhitives. Rent expense, net of sublease income, p@Eeximately $455 million, $430
million, and $427 million in Fiscal 2014, Fiscal1®) and Fiscal 2012, respectively. Such amounisdeccontingent rental charges
of approximately $176 million, $174 million, and&million in Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fis2@l 2, respectively. In addition

to such amounts, the Company is normally requiceday taxes, insurance, and certain occupancy celsting to the leased real
estate properties.
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As of March 29, 2014, future minimum rental paynseahder noncancelable operating leases with leasgstin excess of
one year were as follows:

Minimum Operating
Lease Payment&®

(millions)

Fiscal 2015 $ 336
Fiscal 2016 315
Fiscal 2017 290
Fiscal 2018 271
Fiscal 2019 247
Fiscal 2020 and thereafter 927

Total minimum rental payments $ 2,386

@ Net of sublease income, which is not significaraiy period.

® Includes a $74 million operating lease obligatietated to the land portion of the build-to-suitdeagreement for a new
Polo flagship store on Fifth Avenue in New YorkyCéntered into in Fiscal 2014, as further describeldw.

Capital Leases

Assets under capital leases, including build-ta-‘&sises, amounted to approximately $259 milliod $83 million at the end
of Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013, respectively, nebacumulated amortization of approximately $19lionl and $16 million,
respectively. Such assets are classified withip@my and equipment, net in the consolidated balaheets based on their nature. As
of March 29, 2014, future minimum rental paymentsler noncancelable capital leases, including boiduit leases, with lease
terms in excess of one year were as follows:

Minimum Capital
Lease Paymentd®

(millions)

Fiscal 2015 $ 24
Fiscal 2016 24
Fiscal 2017 24
Fiscal 2018 23
Fiscal 2019 23
Fiscal 2020 and thereafter 98

Total 216
Less: amount representing interest (46)

Present value of net minimum rental payments $ 170

@ Net of sublease income, which is not significanaimy period.

® Includes lease payments related to the Companyld-tousuit lease agreement for a new Polo flagsitgwe on Fifth
Avenue in New York City entered into in Fiscal 20Ifhe total commitment related to this lease isS52dllion,
comprised of a $74 million operating lease obligiatrelated to the land portion of the lease (inethéh the minimum
operating lease payments table above) and a $ll6@muabligation related to the building portion tife lease (included
in the minimum capital lease payments table above).

Employee Agreements

The Company has employment agreements with ceem@tutives in the normal course of business whiavige for
compensation and certain other benefits. Theseeagmets also provide for severance payments und@irceircumstances.
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Other Commitments

Other off-balance sheet firm commitments amountedapproximately $1.381 billion as of March 29, 20JAcluding
inventory purchase commitments of approximatelyl®.billion, outstanding letters of credit of apgroately $9 million, interest
payments related to the Company's 2.125% SenioesNoft approximately $29 million, and other committseof approximately
$237 million, comprised of the Company's legallpding obligations under sponsorship, licensing, afiger marketing and
advertising agreements, distribution-related ageses) information technology-related service ages@s) and pension-related
obligations.

Litigation
Wathne Imports Litigation

On August 19, 2005, Wathne Imports, Ltd. ("Wathp#ie Company's then domestic licensee for luggagehandbags, filed
a complaint in the U.S. District Court in the Saarth District of New York against the Company and Ralph Lauren, its Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, asserting, among othargs, federal trademark law violations, breathamtract, breach of obligations
of good faith and fair dealing, fraud, and negligerisrepresentation. The complaint originally sdugimong other relief, injunctive
relief, compensatory damages in excess of $25@mjland punitive damages of not less than $750amilOn September 13, 2005,
Wathne withdrew this complaint from the U.S. DistrCourt and filed a complaint in the Supreme Cafithe State of New York,
New York County, making substantially the samegat®ons and claims (excluding the federal traden@akms), and seeking
similar relief. On February 1, 2006, the Court geainthe Company's motion to dismiss all of the eauws action, including the cause
of action against Mr. Lauren, except for breackeaitract related claims, and denied Wathne's mdtiom preliminary injunction.
Following some discovery, the Company moved for mamy judgment on the remaining claims and Wathonssmoved for partial
summary judgment. In an April 11, 2008 Decision &rder, the Court granted the Company's summaignjht motion to dismiss
most of the claims against the Company, and deMaithne's cross-motion for summary judgment. Watippealed the dismissal of
its claims to the Appellate Division of the Supre@eurt. Following a hearing on May 19, 2009, thepAltate Division issued a
Decision and Order on June 9, 2009 which, in |gvge, affirmed the lower Court's ruling. Since th&athne has made various
attempts to expand the scope of its claim and #raadies sought by making various motions and pugssiéveral intermediate
appeals.

At this time, Wathne's principle remaining claimtigt the Company required that Wathne discontitheeuse of the Polo
Sport brand on handbags in violation of its corttréctrial date has not been scheduled and the @amjntends to continue to
contest the remaining claims and dispute any afledgmages in this lawsuit vigorously. Managemerdgsdoot expect that the
ultimate resolution of this matter will have a nr@kadverse effect on the Company's consolidateahtial statements.

Other Matters

The Company is otherwise involved, from time todjnn litigation, other legal claims, and proceegirinvolving matters
associated with or incidental to its business,udirlg, among other things, matters involving creditd fraud, trademark and other
intellectual property, licensing, and employee tietes. The Company believes that the resolutioswfently pending matters will
not individually or in the aggregate have a matexitverse effect on its financial statements. Havethe Company's assessment of
the current litigation or other legal claims cogldange in light of the discovery of facts not praseknown or determinations by
judges, juries, or other finders of fact which a in accord with management's evaluation of thesjble liability or outcome of
such litigation or claims.

In the normal course of business, the Company itép agreements that provide general indemnifinat The Company
has not made any significant indemnification payteemder such agreements in the past, and doesimently anticipate incurring
any material indemnification payments.

18. Equity
Capital Stock
The Company's capital stock consists of two classesmmon stock. There are 500 million shareslat€A common stock

and 100 million shares of Class B common stock @igbd to be issued. Shares of Class A and ClassrBmon stock have
substantially identical rights, except with resp@ctoting rights. Holders of Class A common stac& entitled to one vote per
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share and holders of Class B common stock ardeshtid ten votes per share. Holders of both clae$esock vote together as a
single class on all matters presented to the stddkhs for their approval, except with respecti® ¢lection and removal of directors
or as otherwise required by applicable law. Allstaihding shares of Class B common stock are owgddrbRalph Lauren, the
Company's Chairman of the Board and Chief Execuiiffecer, and entities controlled by the Lauren figmand are convertible at
any time into shares of Class A common stock oneafor-one basis.

Class B Common Stock Conversions

During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014, Mr. Laureonverted 3.0 million shares of Class B commamlstnto an equal
number of shares of Class A common stock pursiaethiet terms of the security, which were subsequesatid in a block trade.

During the third quarter of Fiscal 2013, the LauFamily, L.L.C., a limited liability company manatjby the children of Mr.
Lauren, converted 950,000 shares of Class B constamk into an equal number of shares of Class Angomstock pursuant to the
terms of the security, which were subsequently salthe open market as part of a pre-determinesdiesyatic trading plan.

These transactions resulted in reclassificatiorthiniequity, and had no other effect on the Comfsanognsolidated balance
sheets.

Common Stock Repurchase Program

A summary of the Company's repurchases of Classmmon stock under our common stock repurchase gmogg presented

below:
Fiscal Years Ended
March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Cost of shares repurchased $ 548 @ $ 450 $ 395
Number of shares repurchased 32 @ 3.0 3.2

@ Includes a $50 million payment made in March 201®ler a share repurchase program with a third-pémgncial
institution, in exchange for the right to receilemses of the Company's Class A common stock ateéhnelusion of the
93-day repurchase term. The $50 million prepaymeas$ recorded as a reduction to additional paidapital in the
Company's consolidated balance sheet as of MarcBA(®B. The related 0.3 million shares were deéislen the Company
during Fiscal 2014, based on the volume-weightextage market price of the Company's Class A comstack over the
93-day repurchase term, less a discount.

As of March 29, 2014, the remaining availabilityden the Company's Class A common stock repurchesgrgm was
approximately $580 million, reflecting the Februdry2014 approval by the Company's Board of Dinecto expand the program by
up to an additional $500 million of Class A comnsinck repurchases. Repurchases of shares of Clasmfon stock are subject
to overall business and market conditions.

In addition, during Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013, anslc&l 2012, 0.4 million, 0.4 million, and 0.2 milii shares of Class A
common stock, respectively, at a cost of $60 mmilli®47 million, and $24 million, respectively, weserrendered to, or withheld by,
the Company in satisfaction of withholding taxescomnection with the vesting of awards under then@any's 1997 Long-Term
Stock Incentive Plan, as amended (the "1997 Ineemian"), and its Amended and Restated 2010 LargyStock Incentive Plan
(the "2010 Incentive Plan").

Repurchased and surrendered shares are accountegitfeasury stock at cost and held in treasurfufare use.
Dividends
Since 2003, the Company has maintained a regukmteqly cash dividend program on its common st@k.May 21, 2012,

the Company's Board of Directors approved an irseréa the Company's quarterly cash dividend ordtamon stock from $0.20
per share to $0.40 per share. On November 5, 208, ompany's Board of Directors approved a furiherease to
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the Company's quarterly cash dividend on its comstook from $0.40 per share to $0.45 per shareidBinds paid amounted to
$149 million, $128 million, and $74 million in Fiak2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012, respectively

19.

149 sur 172

Conversion of Stock-based Compensation Awards

In connection with the formation of the Office dfet Chairman, the Company entered into employmerdgeagents with

certain of its executive officers, which becameeetive during Fiscal 2014, and converted certaillyfiested and expensed
stock-based compensation awards to a cash comdributo a deferred compensation account. The Compecorded the excess of
these awards' then current redemption value owar thriginal grant-date fair value to retained éags, with a corresponding
increase to other non-current liabilities in then@any's consolidated balance sheet.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents the components ofratbenprehensive income (loss), net of tax, accutadlan equity:

Balance at April 2, 2011

Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax:

OCI before reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from
AOCI to earnings

Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax

Balance at March 31, 2012

Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax:

OCI before reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from
AOCI to earnings

Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax

Balance at March 30, 2013

Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax:

OCI before reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from
AOCI to earnings

Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax

Balance at March 29, 2014

Net Unrealized Net Unrealized Total
Foreign Gains (Losses) on Gains (Losses) Net Unrealized Accumulated
Currency Derivative on Available- Gains (Losses) Other
Translation Financial for-Sale on Defined Comprehensive
Gains (Losses) Instruments ® Investments® Benefit Plang® Income (Loss)
(millions)
216 4 3 — 3 4 s 216
(569 29 1 @) (22)
— 3 — — 3
(50) 32 2) (19)
166 36 1 (6) 197
(939 19 4 (1) (71)
— (32) — — (32)
(93) (13) 4 1) (203)
73 23 5 ) 94
5%c) (20) 4) — 28
— ) 1) — (8)
52 27) (5) — 20
125 4 s — 3 @ % 114

@ OCI before reclassifications to earnings for Fis2@l3 and Fiscal 2012 are net of tax provision$bimillion and $5
million, respectively. The tax effect for FiscalI2Dactivity was not material. The tax effects onoants reclassified to
earnings are presented in a table below.

®  All amounts are presented net of taxes, which atematerial.

© Foreign currency translation gains (losses) inchadeprovisions of $2 million, $3 million, and $4illion for Fiscal 2014,

Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012, respectively.
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The following table presents reclassifications frA@Cl to earnings, by component:

Fiscal Year Ended

Location of Gains (Losses)

March 29, March 30, March 31, Reclassified from AOCI to
2014 2013 2012 Earnings
(millions)
Gains (losses) on derivative financial
instruments(a):
FC — Inventory purchases $ 10 $ 32 % (2) Cost of goods sold
FC — Other — 4 (3) Foreign currency gains (losses)
Tax effect 3) 4) 2 Provision for income taxes
Net of tax $ 7 % 32 % (3)
Gains on available-for-sale securities:
Sales of available-for-sale securities $ 1 3 — $ — Interest and other income, net
Tax effect — — — Provision for income taxes
Net of tax $ 1 3 — % —

@ FC = Forward foreign currency exchange contracts.

20. Stock-based Compensation
Long-term Stock Incentive Plans

The Company's stock-based compensation awardsieently issued under the 2010 Incentive Plan, tvinas approved by
its stockholders on August 5, 2010. However, angrpawards granted under the1997 Incentive Plaraiesubject to the terms of
that plan. Any awards that expire, are forfeiteda@ surrendered to the Company in satisfactiolaxds are available for issuance
under the 2010 Incentive Plan. On September 243,20 Company registered with the SEC an additibryamillion shares of its
Class A common stock for issuance pursuant to @® 2ncentive Plan. As of March 29, 2014, 3.8 miilshares remained available
for future issuance under the Company's incentiaeg

Equity awards that may be made under the Compangé&ntive plans include, but are not limited t9, gtock options,
(ii) restricted stock, and (iii) restricted stockits ("RSUs").

Impact on Results

A summary of the total expense and the associatedie tax benefits recognized related to stockébasenpensation
arrangements is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Compensation expense $ 93 @ $ 88 $ 78
Income tax benefit $ (34) $ (29) $ (26)

@ Includes approximately $10 million of acceleratédck-based compensation expense recorded withtruogisring and
other charges in the consolidated statement ofniecdor Fiscal 2014 (see Note 12). All other stoekédd
compensation expense is recorded within SG&A expens
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Stock Options

Stock options are granted to employees and nonesmeldirectors with exercise prices equal to tlrenfearket value of the
Company's Class A common stock on the date of g&ptions generally become exercisable ratablyd@plavesting schedule) over
a three-year vesting period, subject to contin@nmgloyment. Stock options expire seven years fiwdate of grant.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricingehto estimate the fair value of stock optiorsnged, which requires

the input of both subjective and objective assuomgtiincluding the following:

Expected Term —Fhe estimate of expected term is based on therluat exercise behavior of employees and non-eyago

directors, as well as the contractual life of tipian grants.

Expected Volatility —The expected volatility factor is based on thedmisal volatility of the Company's common stock &

period equal to the stock option's expected term.

Expected Dividend Yield -Fhe expected dividend yield is based on the Corylpajuarterly cash dividend of (i) $0.20 per
share for grants made during and after the fouutrtgr of Fiscal 2011, but prior to the first gearof Fiscal 2013, (ii) $0.40 per
share for grants made during and after the firsrtgu of Fiscal 2013, but prior to the third quadéFiscal 2014, and (jii) $0.45 per

share for grants made during and after the thiattgu of Fiscal 2014.

Risk-free Interest Rate —Fhe risk-free interest rate is determined using timplied yield for a traded zero-coupon

U.S. Treasury bond with a term equal to the opgiexpected term.

The Company's weighted average assumptions usestitoate the fair value of stock options grantednduthe fiscal years

presented were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
Expected term (years) 4.2 4.5 4.7
Expected volatility 32.9% 44.3% 44.7%
Expected dividend yield 0.98% 1.05% 0.72%
Risk-free interest rate 1.1% 0.6% 1.3%
Weighted-average option grant date fair value $45.83 $47.89 $49.13
A summary of stock option activity during FiscallZ0is as follows:
Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Price Term Value®
(thousands) (years) (millions)
Options outstanding at March 30, 2013 2954 $ 91.26 81 231
Granted 840 179.45
Exercised (673) 78.18
Cancelled/Forfeited (95) 155.44
Options outstanding at March 29, 2014 3026 $ 116.66 41 $ 143
Options vested and expected to vest at March 28420 2965 $ 115.49 41 $ 143
Options exercisable at March 29, 2014 1804 $ 85.06 8.0 134

@ Aggregate intrinsic value is the amount by whick tharket price of Class A common stock at the enthe period

exceeds the exercise price of the stock optiontipield by the number of options.
®  The number of options expected to vest takes iotsideration expected forfeitures.
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Additional information pertaining to the Compansteck option plans is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Aggregate intrinsic value of stock options exerd{@e $ 63 $ 7% $ 101
Cash received from the exercise of stock options 52 9 4 61
Tax benefits realized on exercise 24 29 36

@ Aggregate intrinsic value is the amount by which tharket price of Class A common stock exceededtthek option's
exercise price when exercised, multiplied by theber of options.

As of March 29, 2014, there was $23 million of tatarecognized compensation expense related toasbed stock options
granted expected to be recognized over a weightethge period of 1.4 years.

Service-based RSUs and Restricted Stock Awards

The Company grants service-based RSUs to certdis eénior executives and restricted shares assCAacommon stock to
its non-employee directors.

Service-based RSUs granted to executives genesslyover a three to five-year period, subjech®éxecutive's continuing
employment. The fair values of service-based RS¥dased on the fair value of the Company's ClasemrAmon stock on the date
of grant, adjusted to reflect the absence of divitdefor restricted securities not entitled to dérid equivalents.

Restricted shares granted to non-employee diregestsratably over a three-year period and are atteduor at fair value on
the date of grant. Holders of restricted sharesatitled to receive cash dividends in connectidth the payments of dividends on
the Company's Class A common stock.

A summary of restricted stock and service-based B&Wity during Fiscal 2014 is as follows:

Restricted Service-
Stock based RSUs
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Grant Average Grant
Number of Date Fair Number of Date Fair
Shares Value Shares Value
(thousands) (thousands)

Nonvested at March 30, 2013 5 $ 134.28 98 $ 79.52
Granted 3 164.76 — —
Vested 3) 118.57 (88) 71.07
Forfeited — — 3) 154.55

Nonvested at March 29, 2014 5 $ 159.71 7 $ 145.88

Restricted Service-
Stock based RSUs
Total unrecognized compensation at March 29, 2é1illigns) $ 02 $ 0.3
Weighted-average period expected to be recognived(gears) 15 1.3
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Additional information pertaining to restricted ekoand service-based RSU activity is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012

Restricted Stock:

Weighted-average grant date fair value of awardstgd $ 164.76 $ 173.33 N/A

Total fair value of awards vested (millions) $ 1 % 1 N/A
Service-based RSUs:

Weighted-average grant date fair value of awaresated N/A $ 150.17 $ 140.86

Total fair value of awards vested (millions) $ 16 $ 22 3 15

Performance-based RSUs

The Company grants performance-based RSUs to ser@mutives and other key executives, as well asineof its other
employees. Performance-based RSUs generally yagbgn the completion of a three-year period ofetialiff vesting), subject to
the employee's continuing employment and the Cogipathievement of certain performance goals estedal at the beginning of
the three-year performance period or (ii) ratalolyer a three-year period of time (graded vestirsgihject to the employee's
continuing employment during the applicable vestiegiod and the achievement by the Company of iceparformance goals in
the initial year of the three-year vesting peribdr performance-based RSUs subject to cliff vesting number of shares that may
be earned ranges between 0% (if the specified hbleggperformance level is not attained) and 1508pérformance meets or
exceeds the maximum achievement level) of the awarifinally granted. If actual performance exceéus pre-established
threshold, the number of shares earned is calclzeed on the relative performance between spddéiels of achievement.

Beginning in July 2012, certain of the cliff vegfiperformance-based RSU awards granted by the Gomijmaaddition to
being subject to continuing employment requirements the Company's performance goals noted abow@)so subject to a market
condition in the form of a total shareholder ret(IfiSR") modifier. The actual number of shares thegt at the end of the respective
three-year period is determined based on the Coyigpanhievement of the three-year performance giedsribed above, as well as
its TSR relative to the S&P 500 over the relatagahyear performance period. At the end of theetlyear performance period, if
the performance condition is achieved at or abbeepre-established threshold, the number of sheaeeed is further adjusted by a
TSR modifier payout percentage, which ranges batw&6 and 125%, based on the Company's TSR penfiaaemnalative to that of
the S&P 500 index over the respective three-yedogeDepending on the total level of achieveméme, actual number of shares
that vest for performance-based RSU awards witBR modifier may range from 0% to 187.5% of the alsariginally granted.

The fair value of the Company's performance-bassddkthat are not subject to a TSR modifier is basethe fair value of
the Company's Class A common stock on the datearftgadjusted to reflect the absence of dividdondshose securities that are
not entitled to dividend equivalents. The fair vabf the Company's performance-based RSUs withRa&difier is determined on
the date of grant using a Monte Carlo simulatiotuation model. This pricing model uses multiple siations to evaluate the
probability of the Company achieving various stomlice levels to determine its expected TSR perfocearanking. The
assumptions used to estimate the fair value obpmdnce-based RSUs with a TSR modifier grantechdutie fiscal years ended
March 29, 2014 and March 30, 2013 were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 30,
2014 2013
Expected term (years) 2.9 3.0
Expected volatility 32.6% 34.0%
Expected dividend yield 0.98% 1.13%
Risk-free interest rate 0.4% 0.3%
Weighted-average grant date fair value $169.14 $136.16
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A summary of performance-based RSU without TSR Kledand performance-based RSU with TSR Modifidivity during
Fiscal 2014 is as follows:

Performance-based Performance-based
RSUs — without TSR Modifier RSUs — with TSR Modifier
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Grant Average Grant
Number of Date Fair Number of Date Fair
Shares Value Shares Value
(thousands) (thousands)

Nonvested at March 30, 2013 1,015 $ 112.80 73 $ 136.16
Granted 307 171.93 78 169.14
Change due to performance/market condition

achievement 141 76.33 — —
Vested (627) 85.79 — —
Forfeited (38) 141.80 (6) 150.32
Nonvested at March 29, 2014 798 $ 148.93 145 ¢ 153.29
Performance-based Performance-based
RSUs — without TSR RSUs — with TSR
Modifier Modifier
Total unrecognized compensation at March 29, 2é1illigns) $ 41 % 9
Weighted-average period expected to be recognived(gears) 15 1.9

Additional information pertaining to performanceskd RSU without TSR Modifier and performance-baR& with TSR
Modifier activity is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012

Performance-based RSUs — without TSR Modifier:

Weighted-average grant date fair value of awardstgd  $ 17193 $ 137.45 $ 124.43

Total fair value of awards vested (millions) $ 109 % 610% 56
Performance-based RSUs — with TSR Modifier:

Weighted-average grant date fair value of awarestgd  $ 169.14 $ 136.16 N/A

Total fair value of awards vested (millions) $ — 3 — N/A

21. Employee Benefit Plans
Profit Sharing Retirement Savings Plans

The Company sponsors defined contribution benéditcovering substantially all eligible employéeshe U.S. and Puerto

Rico who are not covered by a collective bargairiggeement. The plans include a savings plan featoder Section 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue Code. The Company makes discegtianatching contributions to the plans, whichdnisially were equal to 50%

of the first 6% of salary contributed by an eligitdmployee. On November 7, 2011, the Company'sdBoiabDirectors approved a

supplemental discretionary matching contribution gtan years beginning with Fiscal 2012, wherebyhd# Company achieves a
"stretch” or a "maximum” performance target basedertain goals established at the beginning oh éacal year, the matching

contribution will be increased to 75% or 100%, extjvely, of the first 6% of salary contributed &jgible employees, not to exceed
the maximum contribution permitted by the plan.

Under the terms of the plans, a participant becoh®@86 vested in the Company's matching contribstifter five years of
credited service. Contributions made by the Compamgyer these plans were approximately $10 millioreach of Fiscal 2014,
Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012.
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International Defined Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors certain single-employer defirenefit plans and cash balance plans at intematiocations which
are not considered to be material individuallyrothie aggregate to the Company's financial statesnBension benefits under these
plans are based on formulas that reflect the enspgleyyears of service and compensation levelsgitingir employment period. The
aggregate funded status of the single-employenddfbenefit plans reflected net assets of $1 mikind net liabilities of $2 million
as of March 29, 2014 and March 30, 2013, respdygtiesnd were primarily recorded within other norremt assets and other
non-current liabilities, respectively, in the Compa consolidated balance sheets. These singlesgemilefined benefit plans had
aggregate projected benefit obligations of $51iamilland aggregate fair values of plan assets ofrfiibn as of March 29, 2014,
compared to aggregate projected benefit obligatmn$45 million and aggregate fair values of plasets of $43 million as of
March 30, 2013. The asset portfolio of the singtgyer defined benefit plans primarily consistdiréd income securities, which
have been measured at fair value largely using IL2vueputs, as described in Note 15. Pension expémsthese plans, recorded
within SG&A expenses in the Company's consolidatidements of income, was $5 million, $4 millionda$5 million in Fiscal
2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 2012, respectively.

Union Pension Plan

The Company participates in a multi-employer pemgian and is required to make contributions towtekers United union
(which was previously known as UNITE HERE) (the Tahi") for dues based on wages paid to union empleyA portion of these
dues is allocated by the Union to a retirement fwidch provides defined benefits to substantiallyumionized workers. The
Company does not participate in the managemeriteoptan and has not been furnished with informatiih respect to the type of
benefits provided, vested and non-vested benefiassets.

Under the Employee Retirement Income Security Adi9Y4, as amended, an employer, upon withdraweah for termination
of a multi-employer plan, is required to continueding its proportionate share of the plan's unéahdested benefits. Such liability
was assumed in conjunction with the acquisitionceftain assets from a non-affiliated licensee. Tmnpany has no current
intention of withdrawing from the plan.

Other Compensation Plans

The Company has a non-qualified supplemental reére plan for certain highly compensated employebese benefits
under the 401(k) profit sharing retirement savipigss were expected to be constrained by the aperat certain Internal Revenue
Code limitations. These supplemental benefits vest time and the related compensation expensecinized over the vesting
period. Effective August 2008, the Company amentedplan, resulting in a suspension of the annaoatributions for substantially
all plan participants. Further, affected particiizanere provided with a one-time election to eitwéhdraw all benefits vested in the
plan in a lump sum amount or remain in the plan mrueive future distributions of benefits vesteeéra three-year period. As of
both March 29, 2014 and March 30, 2013, amountsuadcunder this plan totaled approximately $9 wnilland were classified
within other non-current liabilities in the congtdied balance sheets. Total compensation expewsgniged related to these
benefits was not material in each of the threeafigears presented.

Additionally, the Company has deferred compensatioangements for certain key executives which ggiyeprovide for
payments upon retirement, death, or terminatioeroployment. The amounts accrued under these plans approximately $20
million and $3 million as of March 29, 2014 and &30, 2013, respectively, and were classified iwitither non-current liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheets. The March P34 2balance reflects the conversion of certain atkex stock-based
compensation awards to a cash contribution intefarted compensation account (see Note 18). Totapensation expense related
to these compensation arrangements was not maitergglch of the three fiscal years presented. Towapgany funds a portion of
these obligations through the establishment ot &iasounts on behalf of the executives particigatinthe plans. The trust accounts
are classified within other non-current assetfiéndonsolidated balance sheets.
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22. Segment Information

The Company has three reportable segments baseits dusiness activities and organization: Wholes&etail, and
Licensing. These segments offer a variety of prtglttrough different channels of distribution. TWnolesale segment consists of
women's, men's, and children's apparel, accessdragse furnishings, and related products which solel to major department
stores, specialty stores, golf and pro shops, b@dCompany's owned, licensed, and franchised ttaiés in the U.S. and overseas.
The Retail segment consists of the Company's iatedrworldwide retail operations, which sell pragutirough its retail stores, its
concession-based shop-within-shops, and its e-coocastes, which are purchased from the Compaiggadees, suppliers, and
Wholesale segment. The Licensing segment generatesues from royalties earned on the sale of thag2ny's apparel, home,
and other products internationally and domesticlipugh licensing alliances. The licensing agregsigrant the licensees rights to
use the Company's various trademarks in conneetitnthe manufacture and sale of designated pradincspecified geographic
areas for specified periods.

The accounting policies of the Company's segmeartEensistent with those described in Notes 2 arf8laBs and transfers
between segments are generally recorded at costreaigd as transfers of inventory. All intercompaavenues, including such
sales between segments, are eliminated in consolidand are not reviewed when evaluating segmeribpnance. Each segment's
performance is evaluated based upon operating iadeefore restructuring charges and certain othertiome items, such as legal
charges, if any. Certain corporate overhead expergated to global functions (including expensessknior management, overall
brand-related expenses, and certain other corpreketted expenses) remain at corporate, while sther allocated to the segments
based upon specific usage or other allocation nasthes appropriate.

Net revenues for each of the Company's reportagments are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Net revenues:

Wholesale $ 3,486 $ 3,138 $ 3,247
Retail 3,798 3,625 3,432
Licensing 166 182 181

Total net revenués $ 7,450 $ 6,945 $ 6,860

@ The Company's sales to its largest wholesale custdviacy's, accounted for approximately 12% ofatal net revenues
in Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013, and approximat@Bt bf its total net revenues in Fiscal 2012.

During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2014, the Compahanged the manner in which it allocates certasis for management
reporting due to strategic changes it implementedldbalize certain functions that will positionetlCompany for future growth.
These changes included realigning certain cosisdegt segments and retaining other costs at th@elevel for certain of the
Company's global functions. Management believesettehanges allow for a better representation ofneay operations and are
aligned with how segment performance is assessed. r&asult of these changes, the Company deterrttia¢d is more appropriate
to retain certain previously allocated corporatpemses within its unallocated corporate expendas. &xpense realignment did not
result in a change to the Company's reportable eatgnAll prior period segment information has beszast to reflect the change in
the Company's segment measurement on a compagsite bhis recast had no impact on the Compangfaeet net revenues or on
its consolidated financial statements in any figeaiod.

F-44

160 sur 172 15/03/2016 16:1



RL-2014.03.29-10K http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1037038/@E¥D38140000

RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Operating income for each of the Company's reptatabgments, which has been recast to reflectabehf quarter Fiscal
2014 change in segment measurement, is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Operating income:

Wholesal&) $ 963 $ 903 $ 835
Retail) 572 615 553
Licensingd®) 150 152 149
1,685 1,670 1,537
Unallocated corporate expenses (553) (531) (486)

Gain on acquisition of Chafss 16 — —
Unallocated restructuring and other charges®net (18) (12) (12)
Total operating income $ 1,130 $ 1,127 % 1,039

@ During Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013, the Compangndsd non-cash impairment charges of approxim&elgnillion and
$2 million, respectively, to write-off certain fideassets related to its European wholesale opesat®ee Note 11 for
additional information.

®)  During Fiscal 2013, the Company recorded non-castetaimpairment charges of $15 million to write dogertain
long-lived assets, primarily in connection with tReigby Closure Plan and certain underperformingestén Europe.
Fiscal 2012 included asset impairment charges ah#libn primarily to reduce the net carrying vatuef certain retail
stores' long-lived assets to their estimated falues. See Notes 11 and 12 for additional inforomati

© During Fiscal 2013, the Company recorded non-casktampairment charges of $2 million related te write-off of
certain intangible assets in connection with thgt®uClosure Plan. See Notes 11 and 12 for additiof@mation.

@ See Note 5 for further discussion of the gain aguésition of Chaps.

© The fiscal years presented included certain unaiimt restructuring and other charges (See Notewt#3h are detailed
below:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Restructuring and other charges, net:
Restructuring charges, net:
Wholesale-related $ — $ 1 $ (5)
Retail-related — (10) (6)
Corporate operations-related (8) Q) @
Unallocated restructuring charges, net (8) (12) (12)
Other chargédd (10) — —
Total unallocated restructuring and other charges, $ (18) $ (12) s (12)

@ See Note 12 for a description of accelerated shaded compensation expense recorded during Figtdl 2
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The following table summarizes the Company's quigrteportable segment operating income, whichbieen recast to
reflect the fourth quarter Fiscal 2014 change gnsent measurement, for the first three quartefSsufal 2014.

Three Months Ended

June 29, September 28, December 28,
2013 2013 2013
(millions)
Operating income:

Wholesale 207 243 217
Retail 165 135 221
Licensing 35 40 40
407 418 478
Unallocated corporate expenses (147) (121) (130)

Gain on acquisition of Chags 16 — —
Unallocated restructuring and other chargegbnet — 2 (14)
Total operating income 276 295 334

@ See Note 5 for further discussion of the gain aquésition of Chaps.

®  Primarily includes severance and benefit costsaiat®al with restructuring of the Company's corpmraperations, as
well as $10 million of accelerated stock-based cemsption expense recorded during the three monthsdeDecember
28, 2013 (see Note 12).

The following tables summarize the Company's deatien and amortization expense and capital expereti for each of its
reportable segments, which have been recast ertefle fourth quarter Fiscal 2014 change in segmeasurement, with no impact
on total costs:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Depreciation and amortization:

Wholesale $ 66 $ 67 $ 64
Retail 125 116 115
Licensing — 2 1
Unallocated corporate 67 48 45

Total depreciation and amortization $ 258 3 233 $ 225

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Capital expenditures:

Wholesale $ 53 § 39 % 83
Retail 252 158 135
Licensing 1 — —
Unallocated corporate 84 79 54

Total capital expenditures $ 390 $ 276 $ 272
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The following table summarizes total assets foheafcthe Company's reportable segments, which baea recast to reflect
the fourth quarter Fiscal 2014 change in segmeasorement, with no impact on the Company's tosdtas

March 29, March 30,
2014 2013
(millions)
Total assets:

Wholesale $ 2663 $ 2,166
Retail 2,334 1,921
Licensing 198 229
Corporate 895 1,102

$ 6,090 $ 5,418

Total assets

Net revenues and long-lived assets by geograpbétitm of the reporting subsidiary are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Net revenues:
The America®:®) $ 4983 $ 4586 $ 4,403
Europé? 1,580 1,447 1,487
Asido) 887 912 970
Total net revenues $ 7,450 $ 6,945 $ 6,860
March 29, March 30,
2014 2013
(millions)
Long-lived assets:
The America®):(b) $ 966 $ 582
Europé? 172 182
Asid® 184 168
$ 1,322 $ 932

Total long-lived assets

@ Net revenues and long-lived assets for certaimefGompany's licensed operations are included nvithé geographic
location of the reporting subsidiary which holde tiespective license.

® Includes the U.S., Canada, and Latin America. Be¢nues earned in the U.S. during Fiscal 2014aF&#13, and Fiscal
2012 were $4.744 billion, $4.388 bhillion, and $8illion, respectively. Long-lived assets locatedhe U.S. were $948
million and $567 million as of March 29, 2014 anafgh 30, 2013, respectively.

© Includes Australia, China, Hong Kong, Japan, Madaalaysia, New Zealand, the Philippines, Singap&ayth Korea,
Taiwan, Thailand, and Vietnam.
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23. Additional Financial Information
Cash Interest and Taxes

Cash paid for interest and income taxes is asvislio

Fiscal Years Ended

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012
(millions)
Cash paid for interest $ 20 $ 18 $ 24
Cash paid for income taxes $ 302 3 339 % 189

Non-cash Transactions

Significant non-cash investing activities includéed capitalization of fixed assets and recognitibrelated obligations in the
net amount of $45 million, $53 million, and $45 Iiih in Fiscal 2014, Fiscal 2013, and Fiscal 20E3pectively. In addition, the
Company recorded an asset as construction in gegaad a corresponding capital lease obligatioB2%0 million within its
consolidated balance sheet in connection with aleege for a new Polo flagship store in New YorkyQipon taking possession of
the property in July 2013 (See Note 17).

Significant non-cash activities in Fiscal 2014 aleoluded the $16 million gain recorded in connattiwith the Chaps
Menswear License Acquisition in April 2013 (See &6).

Significant non-cash financing activities includéeé conversions of 3.0 million shares and 950,0@0es of Class B common
stock into an equal number of shares of Class Ancomstock during Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013, retsgely, as described further
in Note 18.

There were no other significant non-cash investinfinancing activities for the fiscal years pretseh
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Ralph Lauren Corporation is mesipte for the preparation, objectivity, and infggof the consolidated
financial statements and other information contimethis Annual Report. The consolidated finanstatements have been prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generakgepted in the United States and include some mimidhat are based on
management's informed judgments and best estimates.

These consolidated financial statements have badited by Ernst & Young LLP in Fiscal 2014, Fis@i13, and Fiscal
2012, which is an independent registered publioactng firm. They conducted their audits in aceorck with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt&s) and have expressed herein their unquabfétions on those financial
statements.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, whiaversees all of the Company's financial reporgimecess on behalf of
the Board of Directors, consists solely of indepariddirectors, meets with the independent regidtaoeountants, internal auditors,
and management periodically to review their redpecactivities and the discharge of their respectigsponsibilities. Both the
independent registered public accountants andntieenial auditors have unrestricted access to thiit AZAommittee, with or without
management, to discuss the scope and resultsipftidits and any recommendations regarding theesysf internal controls.

May 15, 2014
/S/ RALPH LAUREN /S!/ CHRISTOPHER H. PETERSON
Ralph Lauren Christopher H. Peterson
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive YRoesident, Chief Administrative Officer and

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of RalpH.auren Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Ralph Lauren Corporation and subg&diéthe "Company")
as of March 29, 2014 and March 30, 2013, and tle&e consolidated statements of income, compréemscome, equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the peeioded March 29, 2014. These financial statememetshe responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to@sgpan opinion on these financial statements @sedr audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBio(United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenatidglit to obtain reasonable assurance about whtinénancial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includeamixing, on a test basis, evidence supporting theuats and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes agsgghe accounting principles used and signifiegsitmates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statetm@resentation. We believe that our audits provadeeasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respect® tonsolidated financial
position of Ralph Lauren Corporation and subsidmiat March 29, 2014 and March 30, 2013, and thedinlated results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of theghyears in the period ended March 29, 2014, ifioconity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Company's internal control over financial reportis of March 29, 2014, based on criteria estaldisive Internal
Control - Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatioh the Treadway Commission ("1992
framework") and our report dated May 15, 2014 esped an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
May 15, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of RalphLauren Corporation

We have audited Ralph Lauren Corporation and sigsgd’ (the "Company's") internal control overdfirtial reporting as of
March 29, 2014, based on criteria establishethiarnal Control - Integrated Frameworiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("1992nfevork™). The Company's management is responsimenfaintaining
effective internal control over financial reportingnd for its assessment of the effectiveness t&frrial control over financial
reporting included in the accompanying Managemdégjgort on Internal Control Over Financial Repati®ur responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company's internal cbatrer financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d@nited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenatidit to obtain reasonable assurance about wheffeetive internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all nieterespects. Our audit included obtaining an usi@ading of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thamaterial weakness exists, testing and evaluatiteg design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on thesssskrisk, and performing such other proceduregeasonsidered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provide=saaonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtiis a process designed to provide reasonableasssuregarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacst of financial statements for external purposesaccordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's infecoatrol over financial reporting includes thoselipies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records thate@asonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettifansactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable @sseithat transactions are recorded as necesspeyrit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepteduating principles, and that receipts and expenekt of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngangent and directors of the company; and (3) peova@hsonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauited acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @étmisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of caanpé with the policies or procedures may detegorat

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of
March 29, 2014, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@ynited States),
the consolidated balance sheets of the CompaniyMarach 29, 2014 and March 30, 2013, and the rdlatmsolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, equity and cash flmwseach of the three years in the period endedcM&9, 2014 of the
Company, and our report dated May 15, 2014 expdemseinqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
May 15, 2014
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RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table sets forth selected historiwancial information as of the dates and for teeqds indicated.

The consolidated statement of income data for ethe three fiscal years in the period ended M&2h2014 as well as the
consolidated balance sheet data as of March 29, @6d March 30, 2013 have been derived from, andldtbe read in conjunction
with, the audited financial statements, footnotes ather financial information presented elsewhieegein. The consolidated
statements of income data for the fiscal years émdaril 2, 2011 and April 3, 2010 and the consdidhbalance sheet data at
March 31, 2012, April 2, 2011, and April 3, 2010vhabeen derived from audited financial statemerts included herein.
Capitalized terms are as defined and describeldeirtonsolidated financial statements or elsewhereim The historical results are
not necessarily indicative of the results to beeetgd in any future period.

Fiscal Years Ended®

March 29, March 30, March 31, April 2, April 3,
20149 20139 2012 20119 2010

(millions, except per share data)

Statement of Income Data:
Net revenues:

Net sales 7284 $ 6,763 $ 6,679 $ 5482 $ 4,796
Licensing revenues 166 182 181 178 183
Net revenues 7,450 6,945 6,860 5,660 4,979
Gross profit 4,310 4,156 3,998 3,318 2,899

Depreciation and amortization expense (258) (233) X225 (194) (181)
Impairments of assets Q) (19) 2) ) )
Restructuring and other charges (18) (12) (12) 3) )
Operating income 1,130 1,127 1,039 845 707
Interest expense, net a7 (16) (13) (11) (20)
Net income $ 776 $ 750 $ 681 $ 568 $ 480
Net income per common share:

Basic $ 855 $ 821 $ 735 $ 591 $ 4.85

Diluted $ 843 $ 8.00 $ 713 $ 575 % 4.73
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 90.7 91.3 92.7 96.0 98.9

Diluted 92.0 93.7 95.5 98.7 101.3
Dividends declared per common share $ 1.70 $ 160 $ 0.80 060 $ 0.30

@ The fiscal year ended April 3, 2010 consisted ofvegks. All other fiscal years presented consisfes? weeks.

®) Reflects the Chaps Menswear License Acquisitioratiffe in April 2013, which resulted in the recdgnm of a $16
million gain on acquisition, as well as the Ausaadnd New Zealand Licensed Operations Acquisiéfiactive in
July 2013 (see Note 5 to the accompanying audibedalidated financial statements).

© Reflects the acquisition of the Ralph Lauren-brahiesiness in Latin America effective in June 2ah2,discontinuance
of the majority of products sold under the Ameridaning brand effective with the Fall 2012 wholesaselling
season, and the wind down of the Rugby brand dpasaduring the second half of the fiscal year.

@ Reflects the South Korea Licensed Operations Adipriseffective in January 2011.
© Reflects the Asia-Pacific Licensed Operations Asijjioin effective in January 2010.
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RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Working capital

Total assets

Total debt (including current maturities of debt)
Equity

March 29, March 30, March 31,
2014 2013 2012 April 2,2011  April 3, 2010
(millions)
$ 797 % 974 % 672 $ 453 $ 563
490 406 616 678 660
2,359 1,842 1,954 1,646 1,529
6,090 5,418 5,416 4,981 4,649
030 267 274 292 282
4,034 3,785 3,653 3,305 3,117
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RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The following table sets forth the quarterly finaénformation of the Company:

Quarterly Periods Ended®

June 29, September 28,  December 28, March 29,
2013 2013 2013 2014
(millions, except per share data)

Net revenues $ 1,653 $ 1915 $ 2,015 $ 1,867
Gross profit 1,004 1,084 1,172 1,050
Net income 181 205 237 153
Net income per common shdke:

Basic $ 198 $ 226 $ 261 $ 1.70

Diluted $ 194 $ 223 % 257 % 1.68
Dividends declared per common share $ 040 $ 0.40 $ 0.45 $ 045

Quarterly Periods Ended®

June 30, September 29,  December 29, March 30,
2012 2012 2012 2013
(millions, except per share data)

Net revenues $ 1,593 $ 1,862 $ 1,846 $ 1,644
Gross profit 992 1,095 1,094 975
Net income 193 214 216 127
Net income per common shdbpe:

Basic $ 210 $ 234 % 237 % 1.40

Diluted $ 203 % 229 % 231 % 1.37
Dividends declared per common share $ 040 $ 0.40 $ 0.40 $ 0.40

@ All fiscal quarters presented consisted of 13 weeks

® Per common share amounts for the quarters angidatis have been calculated separately. Accordiggbsterly amounts
may not add to the annual amount because of diféeein the average number of common shares odistaduring
each period.
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